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MISSION
AND

fiE ap £

China State Construction Development
Holdings Limited pursues the core values
of “integrity, innovation, pragmatism

and excellence”, adheres to the business
philosophy of “quality assurance and

value creation”, strictly manages corporate
governance, actively fulfills its social
responsibility. The Group also continues

to pursue continuous adding value on
shareholders, employees, working partners
and society under the all-win harmonious
situations. It is committed to developing
sustainably and building a century-long
foundation. In the new era, it is progressing
towards the world’s most competitive
facade technology conglomerate.

TREEEXEEARQIFARTIHE - AIH -
BE - RE] Z&/D\Ffﬁ#ﬁ RITImERE -
BEEABI2KEER  BRETEXESL &
BETHESEE T@Tiﬁ‘ﬁ"ﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁi 8T
SERHF HENFEEE TEAE - -BIR
IFEARR EBFERBER EFRAD
E2RBARFINFRMREHEE -
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

NEIEBRE

China State Construction
Development Holdings Limited

TEEEEZXEERR LA

Construction
Engineering
Business

BRERIEBXER

Operating
Management
Business

BEEERER




The key financial and business performance indicators comprise
revenue growth; profitability growth; return on equity and dividend
payout. Details of the key performance indicators are stated as below.

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12A318ILFE

Revenue

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

Total assets

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Return on equity attributable to
owners of the Company (%)

Basic earnings per share
(HK cents)

Dividend (HK cents)

003
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

TEMBREBFRIEBOEELREE AT
BENEE  ERERERR AR - TERRE
BHHEAROT -

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20204 20214 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT BB T AT BT T
(restated)
(E3)
BET 4,243,167 4,619,412 4,535,657 6,294,827
RN B IR R EAE 5 A
182,780 175,560 194,344 291,976
BEBE 6,739,198 7,053,994 7,388,898 8,809,629
AN ARG
1,027,564 1,125,325 1,403,019 1,607,735
RN AR R A AR 2 (%)
17.8 15.6 13.9 18.2
FREARZF BW)
8.48 8.14 9.02 13.55
B B (L) 2.2 1.2 3.0 4.7

REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
EERH OF THE COMPANY
HKS billion AR REELZF
BETET HKS million
B E BT
10 500 422
7.7
8 400
6.3
292
6 . )3 300
4.2 i 194
, 200 183 176
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 0 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (&%)
2022 REVENUE BY SEGMENTS
2022ﬂ5ﬁ%|3|45(f_:& Operating
Management
Construction Business
Engineering 8 7 o BEEIRER
Business 0
BETRER

* Construction Engineering Business including facade
contracting and general contracting business

* BRTEEBEERBERE
R 48 0 2 7%
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MAJOR EVENTS OF THE YEAR

EFERER

<g—

'MARCH = A

*

Awarded the “Caring Company” Label

China State Construction Development Holdings
together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “CSCD Group”)
was awarded the “Caring Company” label
by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for
consecutive nine years, which fully demonstrates
its corporate image of proactively fulfilling social
responsibility and giving back to the society.

EEIBRARBEIRERR
hEREREEEARAR ([830)%[HAAT] &
RAEFAAMREALE S TARERLEE)
REE RN RRG IS AR ERRNE SRR
BRENFRUKS W RS UERERTHE
R THOMHBNOETR -

Limited (“830” or “Company”,

-~ QEEEY
caringcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

FRnFEERERD

for identification purpose only

APRIL 19 A

Implementing the National “Dual

Carbon” Policy in A Proactive Manner
Shenyang Huanggu Thermoelectricity Company
Limited*,
national “Dual Carbon” policy in a proactive manner,

a subsidiary of 830, implemented the

and was awarded the “Excellent Thermal Power
Plant with Stable Emission of Air Pollutants in
Heating Period” by Shenyang Municipal Bureau of
Ecology and Environment.

MEBERE R &5 BXR

B30I T RB 2R T HRA AMEE AR St
W BEEBTEREERERN REPARS
S F8 S B O R 9 -

AMEHHREFRAF (MFHRE)
2021-20224

KUK G R DRE LKA

%R

KRTEEFER
Zo=-=#mA+/ARB
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MAJOR EVENTS OF THE YEAR
EKiSVNE S5

Il

| |
I — 1

Signing Green Revolving Loans

The CSCD Group entered into its first three-year
unsecured green revolving loan facility of HK$300
million with China Construction Bank Corporation
Hong Kong Branch. This green finance plan will help the
Group expand its “green building” capabilities, and get
the Group one step closer to reaching “carbon peak”
and “carbon neutral” sustainable development strategic
goals, so as to implement the Group’s sustainable
development concept.

e | BEIRBRREN

TREERXEEEPERZ
RRTBRODBRAREBTED
THYEEBBIRT=F
HEERNGERBRREN -
EEZKEERAAAHAE
BiR(GEZ2EIRN @
BRWOEE] - [HP M
RERRRBEEAREE—Z
ERAEEAFERRIES -

Winning the Bids for the Tseung Kwan O
Chinese Medicine Hospital Project

Far East Facade (Hong Kong) Limited (“Far East Facade
Hong Kong"), a subsidiary of 830, won the bid for
the Tseung Kwan O Chinese Medicine Hospital
project, which is the first Chinese medicine hospital
in Hong Kong and is another key project of the
Company in the field of public works.

TERERTEERER

830} T AR (F8) AR A A ((ERER ) R+ 8
BERTEBEREL AREEMABER LAAE
AHTREH X~ EREE ©
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MAJOR EVENTS OF THE YEAR
EKCSVAN

JUNE < B

Winning the Bid for Phase IV of
Galaxy Project in Macau

Far East Facade Hong Kong, a subsidiary of 830,
won a subcontract of approximately HK$2,240
million for curtain wall works for the Cotai Phase IV
project of the new integrated resort development at
Galaxy Resort & Casino in Cotai, Macau. This project
will be the largest curtain wall contract in the world
in terms of single contract value.

FAZERPEE T HHIE B
SIETERBERNAFIREEN BB E24ETH
DEEBRELK P RIBPIRE 2 ROT B BRI KR
SR AEBBERBE ZERKENPIEE
ENERIR HIREKAEZREBANSESR
AHWBERBEL -

Completion of the First External
Equity Financing

The CSCD Group completed its first external
equity financing by way of top-up placing of
100,000,000 shares at a premium of HK$2.20 per
share, raising net proceeds of HK$219 million, which
was the only stock in the Hong Kong stock market
to achieve a premium placing in 2022.

TEREXEIIRERE
FEREEEEERRE Y MERE LR
L3 o 15 T R p——
TOREERSIER 78
FEEEEE2.1918 T 22022 =
EHERTIEE -—BRNE ot
REHRE -

-
ocicchzan @

tification purpose only
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JULY/ £ R

Winning the Bid for the First BIPV
Project

Netfortune (Shanghai) Aluminium Works Company
Limited* (“Far East Shanghai”), a subsidiary of
830, successfully won the bid for the supply and
installation of BIPV systems for the commercial
development at A& SR E (Laixi Qingbei
Hi-Tech Park*), Qingdao City, Shandong
Province, which is the first BIPV project won by

the Company and also a new exploration in the
photovoltaic facade industry. In the future, the
Company will continue to lead green building and
create a model of green energy conservation.

FiZE EBIPVIEH

830 T LB iR ETIIRARAA ([BRLEE])
RO ELREEETRASLSNERLEAR
BIPVEXRZGHERREIR - EL2 AP ENE
BBIPVEEE th 2 ARIEXRKRERBITE —XAFTHH
e RARDFBBEEENGERE TESEHL
B4 o




AUGUST N\ A

Completion of the Renovation of
Employee Photovoltaic Restaurant

Far East Facade (Zhuhai) Limited* (“Far East
Zhuhai”), a subsidiary of 830, actively implements
the national policy of “Dual Carbon” to promote
low-carbon production and life. The renovation
of the employee photovoltaic restaurant has
been completed and officially put into use. With
an installed area of 322.56 square meters, the
photovoltaic panels in the restaurant use cadmium

telluride thin film solar batter components, which
can produce about 39,000 kWh of green electricity
per year.

TRETIXREERE

8300 TERHIE (/5) ARAR ((ERHKE)) WS
BTERERIBE  RBEEEEERL  TRE
TRREBBUE EXBAER  EEARREEE
W R322.56F 77k - RAM(CHERABE BT -
GEANEEFBL3IEE -

2022058 FEHERAXEEERIA

MAJOR EVENTS OF THE YEAR
P2FERERL

SEPTEMBER 11 B

Launch of the Photovoltaic Facade
Product - Light S

Light S (the photovoltaic facade of lightweight
artificial stone), the latest photovoltaic facade
product developed by Far East Zhuhai, a subsidiary
of 830, was unveiled at the Sustainable Development
Summit of the Second Macao BEYOND EXPO and
Technology Conference of China State Construction
International Holdings Limited in 2022, marking a
major breakthrough of the Company in the field of
BIPV ("BIPV").

BN REAAEMmLight S

830 T RR KB RFT MM KRB HEEMLight S
(BEHAMKXRER) N E == RFIBEYONDE
MPAlfEEen B BRRESEPRABREERE
E2022F B AE® L8 F5EE A FEBIPV ([ %
REE—B]) BIEMWERER o

.
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MAJOR EVENTS OF THE YEAR
EKCSVAN

NOVEMBER +— A

Project Undertaken and Supervised
by China Overseas Supervision

was Awarded the National Quality
Works Project Award

The Hanjing Financial Centre (& = 4 &t/ ) project
undertaken and supervised by China Overseas
Supervision Company Limited* (“China Overseas
Supervision”), a subsidiary of 830, was awarded “the
First Class National Quality Works Projects Award
of 2022-2023 (Published)”. Located in Nanshan
District, Shenzhen City, the project is a premium grade
A Office buildings integrating commercial, office and
sightseeing functions, and is also the world’s highest
corewall outdoor full steel structure building, the super
high-rise building with the largest consumption of steel

in the world, and the world’s largest butterfly node
building.

= e

FREEAEREEFEREBEIRR
830/ TSR ARAR ([FBER]) REMNER
S B0 IE B BIT2022-203F EE - HEREE IR

R(EQAR) - ZBABUNRINTEILE  EEE #
AMBER-—RBNEBEFRESFE  AREAZSHZLAE
HNERMERRE ERASEHAERZNBESERSE
WREZRVEHHEE -

Completion of the OPPO International
Headquarters Project VMU

Relying on the experience of dual-curved profiles
processing of the Murray Road Project, Far East (Shanghai),
a subsidiary of 830, efficiently solved the processing
technical difficulties such as double-curved
finished steel and aluminium-packaged steel in
the OPPO International Headquarters Project with
high-difficulty, and completed sample production,
which was highly recognized by the owner and
received a written commendation letter.

5t B OPPOEH I # #8 I8 B VMU
83001 i 5 LKA E it
FIBIE A R b 0T
BB BURRTER
OPPOEIM & M A + &
CRETE R EE ES

HE BHEEXISER
AYHAEERER -

Entering into A Sustainability-Linked
Loan Facility

On 18 November 2022, 830 (as the Guarantor) and
Far East Facade Hong Kong as the Borrower) entered
into their first sustainability-linked loan facility of
HK$400 million with Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited.

This latest green financing can
help the Group to implement
its sustainability goals.

HIVACE=S: §:4=F ¢
B#EMR

20224F11 5188 » 830 (fEA¥E
BAN) RREES (EAEZRA)
R B TR 7T (SR BARA
FIRTEERBIETN TS
BRRREHNEN -

HERSFFERESENARERTEAIRHEERERE

for identification purpose only




D:Ecﬁgmﬁﬁ =¥

20226 5% FHEREAXEEMERDA

MAJOR EVENTS OF THE YEAR
EKiSVNE S5

China Overseas Supervision was
Accredited as National High-Tech
Enterprise

China Overseas Supervision, a subsidiary of 830, has
been accredited as a National High-Tech Enterprise
successfully, representing the official recognition of
the Company’s capabilities in technology research and
development, technological innovation and achievement
transformation in the field of engineering management,
marking a new level of the Company’s comprehensive
strength.

FEEEEREXS R EXRAE

B30T HEERIEFBERRBF ML ERT - K
REQAFETRERASLORMFE - RITAH - RR
BEBENEIEFRY BEREANRARNB LY

Gl -
Cach 2P,
o] I

. L i 2 2
= #9757 G £ e
: =¥ &
o GERR R EAT EBRG conzmise B
EiEatE,20228 125 19H t R 8 e
T % ¥ gw%
2 * b 3 = * F3
b, & ‘*‘i‘ e ¥ ey
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Best Small and Medium-Cap Company

In December, 830 was rated as the Best Small and
Medium-Cap Company, demonstrating the Company's
shares were recognised by the capital market.

EFEEFIHELA
127 - 30T FZEF I
mEAR FEAAR
REFEARATISRA o

Awarded Sustainable Operation
Award in the InnoESG Prize

In December, 830 won the Sustainable Operation
Award in the InnoESG Prize, affirming the Company’s
unremitting efforts in sustainable development.

¥ FBInnoESG & 1Y 7T 3
BEER

128 > 830% 18InnoESGH#E 1 &Y
AREEER ST T RAK
A EERBE LELRT®
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman and Non-executive Director
Zhang Haipeng

Executive Directors

Wu Mingging (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Wang Hai
Wong Man Cheung

Non-executive Director
Huang Jiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Zhou Jinsong
Chan Man Ki Maggie
Zhang Xinyu

COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Zhou Jinsong, CPA (Chairman)
Chan Man Ki Maggie
Zhang Xinyu
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Remuneration Committee

Zhang Haipeng

Wu Mingging

Zhou Jinsong (Chairman)
Chan Man Ki Maggie
Zhang Xinyu

Nomination Committee

Zhang Haipeng (Chairman)
Wu Mingging

Zhou Jinsong

Chan Man Ki Maggie
Zhang Xinyu

Sustainability Committee

Wu Mingging

Wong Man Cheung (Chairman)
Zhou Jinsong

Chan Man Ki Maggie

Zhang Xinyu
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNREH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Zhang Haipeng
Wu Mingging

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lau Shuk Yin Connie

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MaplesFS Limited

P.O. Box 1093

Queensgate House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

16th Floor, Eight Commercial Tower

8 Sun Yip Street

Chai Wan

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
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MaplesFS Limited
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Cayman Islands

ROBFETERIE

BEZBEELERAR
EBE

BERE169
BRSSP O7E

AfREE

P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HANEEREEBTELEX MR

55
HEESHR
SR EES 161

B BED

2 S B Ry

CES S

£ 2 R 25 B B8 X B




PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

China Merchants Bank Corporation Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

STOCK CODE
00830

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.cscd.com.hk

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Annual Results Announcement
20 March 2023

Closure of register of members
for Annual General Meeting

1-6 June 2023 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
6 June 2023

Closure of register of members
for Final Dividend

15-16 June 2023 (both days inclusive)

Payment of Proposed Final Dividend
6 July 2023
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN PROGRESS OVERVIEW
ITEARBEAME

Year of

Estimated

Project

Project Name Project Type Completion
st B

HBEW HEER BIFH

Facade Contracting Works

i LREEE

Mainland China
A Bl A it

ByteDance Chengdu Office Building Commercial 2024
ER AN [SES
Guangzhou Baiyun Cultural Hotel Hotel 2023
BMBE LB E BIE
Laixi Qingbei Hi-Tech Park BIPV System Commercial 2024
KA E IS BEBIPVE R R HT FEES
OPPO Dongguan Research and Development Center Commercial 2024
OPPOR ZEH & .1y [GES
OPPO International Headquarters Commercial 2024
OPPOEI & #2 &5 EES
Shenzhen Great Wall International Logistics Center Commercial 2023
RINRBEE DR $ L EES
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Finance Tower Commercial 2023
AIEEEARESRAE [EES
Zhuhai Zhuao Bay Century Centre Commercial 2023
HERREHLZH O EES
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN PROGRESS OVERVIEW
TRERBEARE

Project Name

BEAR

Facade Contracting Works

i LREEE

Project Type

HEEH

Year of
Estimated
Project
Completion
CHREEE
BRIFH

Hong Kong, Macau & Others
FE R KEM

Cheung Kong Center Phase 2, Hong Kong

BERERIH L2

Chinese Medicine Hospital, Tsueng Kwan O, Hong Kong
BRBERPERER

Galaxy Macau Phase 4, Macau

EPI R4

Hong Kong Baptist University Academic Building Complex and Hostel, Hong Kong
ERREREREREBRES

Immigration Headquarters, Tseung Kwan O, Hong Kong
BERBERAFEEH

Kai Tak Sport Center, Hong Kong

BAREEER

Lohas Park Package 12, Town Lot No. 70RP (site D), Tseung Kwan O, Hong Kong
EE B ERETORPI M EDE B HEM 124

New Acute Hospital, Kai Tak, Hong Kong

BRRMEZERR

New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6551, Kai Tak Area 4C, Hong Kong
BBRIEH LEARE6551554CR

New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6552, Kai Tak Area 4C, Hong Kong
FERRIEH NEARES2HACE

New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6553, Kai Tak Area 4C, Hong Kong
BEBRIBH N EANRE6S535ACE

New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6554, Kai Tak Area 4A, Hong Kong
BBRIBH LA R E655454AR

New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6568, Kai Tak Area, Hong Kong
BB BB LN F65685K

New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6576, Kai Tak Area 4B, Hong Kong
BEBREHTNEARFE6576554BE

New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6577, Kai Tak Area 4A, Hong Kong
BBRIEH LEANRE6577HR4AR

New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6603, Kai Tak, Hong Kong

BB BRI L AR F66035

New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6607, Kai Tak Area 4A, Hong Kong
BEREMNENRF66075IAR

Office Development at 2 Murray Road, Central, Hong Kong
BERHRRENEREXERIER

Commercial
RS
Hospital
s

Hotel

B

Public Building
AP YN
Public Building
AP YN
Public Building
AP YN
Residential
F=
Hospital
B
Residential
Tr=x
Residential
=
Residential
=
Residential
T=
Residential
T=
Residential
=
Residential
F=E
Residential
=
Residential
(Es
Commercial

[GE3

2023

2024

2024

2023

2023

2023

2024

2025

2024

2023

2024

2024

2024

2023

2024

2024

2023

2023
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN PROGRESS OVERVIEW
ITEARBEAME

Year of
Estimated
Project
Project Name Project Type Completion
CHREEE
HBEW HEER BRIFH
Facade Contracting Works
BiEIiEER
Redevelopment of Merry Terrace at Seymour Road, Hong Kong Residential 2023
EREEEEEEERIEE F=
Residential Development at NKIL 6549 Hing Wah Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Hong Kong Residential 2023
BERDE NKIL 6549 BEHFEIER F=E
Residential and Commercial Development at No. 53, 53A, 55 and 55A Multipurpose
Kwun Tong Road, Hong Kong Complex 2023
EEBEESS3 53A  S5RSSAFERAEER ZRBRAE
Six Pacific Place Commercial 2023
N2V EES
Wong Chung Hang Station, Package 3, Aberdeen Inland Lot No.476, Hong Kong Residential 2024
BEREBIT E4765 MR E I35 r=
Wong Chung Hang Station, Package 4, Aberdeen Inland Lot No.467, Hong Kong Residential 2024
BEREB BT E467TRIMBE BT LA F=
No,éth America
it
1568 Broadway, New York, USA Commercial 2023
5 Bl 41491568 Broadway RS
St Jacques Victoria Sur Le Parc, Montreal, Canada Residential 2023
NE KK F St Jacques Victoria Sur Le Parc =
The One, Toronto, Canada Residential 2023
MEKXZm%The One =
YUL Condos, Montreal, Canada Residential 2023
MEXZHEFBEYUL Condos F=
1 Square Phillips, Montreal, Canada Residential 2024
MERSEHFE Square Phillips F=

General Contracting Works
HEEEE

Residential Development at RBL No. 1201, Wong Ma Kok Road, Stanley, Hong Kong Residential 2023

s
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| am pleased to present to shareholders the business review and
prospects of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In 2022, the Group continuously focused on the principal business of

facade contracting, adhered to the business strategy of “Expanding
Hong Kong and Macau, Developing Mainland China and Shrinking

Overseas”, leveraged the brand advantages of “Far East Facade”, fully

seized the market opportunities, empowered business development
with innovative technologies, reduced cost and increased efficiency
through refined management, and achieved rapid growth in the core
performance indicators. In 2022, the newly signed contract amounted
to HK$10,127 million, exceeding HK$10,000 million for the first
time, and the revenue of principal business amounted to HK$7,669
million, representing an increase of 21.8% as compared with last
year; the profit attributable to the shareholders amounted to HK$422
million, representing an increase of 44.5% as compared with last year;
the earnings per share amounted to HK19.11 cents, representing a
year-on-year increase of 41.0% as compared with the end of last year.
In consideration of the Company’s profitability, cash flow level and
capital requirements for future development, the Board recommends a

final dividend of HK2.4 cents per share.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, geopolitical divergence was intensified and the Russian-
Ukraine conflict triggered energy and food crises and supply
chain blockades, and global inflation remained high. In order
to curb inflation, the United States raised interest rates seven
times during the year, which continuously triggered a wave of
global interest rate hikes and slowed down the global economic
growth. By upholding giving priority to stability and seeking
growth in stability and adopting a loose monetary policy of
cutting interest rate and reserve requirements, China achieved
steady economic growth. Rooted in Hong Kong and Macau, and
facing Mainland China, the Group adhered to the marketing
strategy of “big markets, big landlords, big projects”, as well
as the prudent bidding strategy, fully leveraged the internal
synergies, and proactively explored high-end facade projects
with brand effect. During the year, the Company continued to
maintain its leading position in the facade market in Hong Kong,
won the bidding for Phase IV of Galaxy project in Macau, the
world’s largest contract value of stand-alone building facade,
and hit a record high in the newly awarded contract value
of the facade business in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Moreover, the Company maintained steady growth in its general
contracting business as well as high-quality development in its
mainland business operations.

1. Facade Contracting Business

Hong Kong and Macau regions are the long-established
key markets of the Group. The Group continued to
strengthen its brand effect, competitive edge and
performance capabilities, and further enhanced its
leading position in the facade market of Hong Kong. As a
recognised premium provider of overall high-end facade
solutions in Hong Kong and Macau, the Group focused on
deepening the strategic cooperation with existing major
clients, actively expanding its strategic client base and
enhancing synergies within the Group. The Group achieved
outstanding performance in the Hong Kong and Macau
markets and successively secured large-scale residential and
commercial projects. In 2022, the Group's newly awarded
facade projects in Hong Kong and Macau included Phase
4 of Galaxy project in Macau, Kai Tak No. 6551, 6554
and 6577 of the large-scale residential projects, Chinese
Medicine Hospital project in Tseung Kwan O and Kai Tak
Acute Hospital project in Hong Kong. The Group carefully
organized the internal design, procurement, production
and installation resources, vigorously implemented the
project incentive mechanism and strengthened safety
control to ensure construction period, quality, safety and
efficiency of the projects.
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There is huge potential in the facade market in Mainland
China, but the price competition in the industry is severe.
In 2022, the Group continued to adhere to the competitive
strategy of differentiation. Relying on its high-end brand,
high-end technologies, experience accumulated in
challenging projects and the influence of reliable quality
established by “Far East Facade”, the Group focused on
“big markets, big landlords, and big projects”, and hit a
record high in the newly awarded contract value. During
the year, the Group won the bid for a number of iconic
facade projects in Mainland China, including No. 2&5
building of OPPO’s Chang’an R&D Centre, Lailai Nanping
Times Square, ByteDance’s office building in Chengdu and
Huawei’s R&D and Production building in Qingpu District,
Shanghai.

The Group attaches great importance to technological
innovation empowering its principal facade business and
continues to enhance its core competitiveness. Boasting
the world’s leading technologies in the facade of super-tall
skyscrapers and the complex hyperbolic special-shaped
facade, the Group has industry-leading automated
production lines and equipment, as well as the intelligent
manufacturing information system of the entire industry
chain, which greatly enhances the Group’s capabilities
in refined management, and continuously improves the
project efficiency and performance quality. During the
year, the Group successfully launched the photovoltaic
facade product - Light S, continued to develop new
photovoltaic facade products, explored the blue ocean
field of photovoltaic facade, and led the development of
green buildings in the industry.

General Contracting Business

The general contracting business has been developing
steadily. The Group actively participated in the bidding
of small and medium-sized housing construction projects
in Hong Kong and deepened the internal collaboration.
Moreover, its projects in progress had been carried out
smoothly, with the residential project at 128 Wong Ma Kok
Road, Stanley being implemented in an orderly manner.

Operating Management Business

While reinforcing and optimising the existing supervision
business, China Overseas Supervision under the Group
proactively transformed into a full-process consultation
business, and successfully won the bid for the first
municipal whole-process consulting project, Longlan
Avenue North Extension Project.
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While proactively expanding its heat supply market,
Huanggu Thermoelectricity, a subsidiary of the Group,
deeply explored the possibilities for energy saving and
consumption reduction. During the year, it accurately
regulated the heat supply parameters through the
intelligent control systems, sharply reduced the
consumption of coal-fired and hydropower and achieved
significant emission reduction effect.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2023, due to various uncertain factors such
as geopolitical conflicts, high inflation, and repeated epidemics,
it is expected that the global economic growth will continue to
slow down and the growth of developed economies such as the
United States and the European Union will weaken significantly.
However, China’s economy is expected to grow rapidly as it
further optimizes epidemic prevention and control measures and
vigorously implements favorable policies to expand domestic
demand. With the reopening of Hong Kong, Macau, mainland
China and other countries, the economy is expected to recover
strongly, which will further release the demand for construction
in Hong Kong and Macau. Meanwhile, the deepening of the
construction of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay
Area will also bring significant development opportunities to the
construction industry in Hong Kong and Macau.

Business and Development Strategies

The facade contracting business is the Group's core business.
With the business philosophy of “closely focusing on high-end
markets and providing high-quality services”, the Group will
integrate advantage of resources, improve its operational and
management and control models by taking into consideration
the features of various markets, and optimise business
deployment. It will further develop the Hong Kong and Macau
markets and steadily explore the Mainland China market,
and reduce the proportion of overseas markets in an orderly
manner. The Group will further utilise and integrate existing
resources and production capacity, continue to strengthen
the construction period, quality, safety, capital and cost
management of projects, improve the synergies created during
the design, production and installation processes, strengthen its
capabilities in research and development as well as innovation,
and enhance its comprehensive competitiveness in the facade
business. To maintain the desired level profitability, the Group
will further increase its brand promotion and market expansion,
strengthen the management of projects on hand, consolidate
its core competitiveness in design, procurement, production and
construction, and strictly control the project risks.
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Committed to building its design teams, the Group will
strengthen such function in Hong Kong and North America
while expanding the design team in Mainland China, and will
continuously recruit professional talents to meet the personnel
demand at the peak time. Meanwhile, the Group will provide
stronger support to its overseas staff members through measures
such as setting up an overseas core management team and
establishing a basic welfare system for the remuneration and
benefits of its employees working overseas, so as to maintain
the stability of overseas teams and enhance its cohesiveness and
performance capability.

Through continuous exploration and practices, the Board and
the management aim to establish and maintain a healthy system
where various stakeholders, including shareholders, the Board,
the management, employees, customers and suppliers, facilitate
each other and contribute to the sustainable growth of the
Group's profitability and capacity.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude
to all shareholders, customers and suppliers for their strong support
and to all employees for their hard work and commitment.

By Order of the Board

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
Zhang Haipeng

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2023
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OVERALL PERFORMANCE

Our facade contracting business in Hong Kong continued to benefit
from the good progress on existing projects and achieved record-high
revenue and profit. Capitalising on its strong order book and proven
execution capabilities, the Group recorded aggregate revenue of
HK$7,669 million (2021: HK$6,295 million) the year ended 31
December 2022, an increase of 21.8% as compared to last year. The
profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$422 million
(2021: HK$292 million), an increase of 44.5% as compared to last
year. The basic earnings per share was HK19.11 cents which was
calculated based on diluted weighted average number of shares (2021:
HK13.55 cents), an increase of 41.0% as compared to last year. In
consideration of the Company’s profitability, cash flow level and
capital requirements for future development, the Board recommends a
final dividend of HK2.4 cents per share.
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Segment Analysis
Facade Contracting Business

As a result of good progress on curtain wall projects in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, the segment’s revenue increased to HK$5,784
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$4,478
million), representing an increase of 29.2% as compared to last year.
The gross profit increased to HK$696 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: HK$356 million), representing an increase of
95.5% as compared to last year. The operating profit increased by 1.4
times to HK$589 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$249 million) as compared to last year.

General Contracting Business

As a result of the commencement of construction works of the new
project awarded in 2021, the segment’s revenue recorded an increase
to HK$895 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$807 million). The operating profit decreased to HK$2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$97 million) due to the
fact that the certain profitable projects substantially completed in
2021 have made less contribution in 2022.

Operating Management Business

Affected by the depreciation of the Renminbi on revenue and the
increase of cost of coal of the thermoelectric plant in mainland China,
the segment’s revenue decreased to HK$990 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$1,010 million) and the operating
profit decreased to HK$64 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$181 million) respectively.

Administrative, selling and other operating expenses

With the expansion of facade contracting business, administrative,
selling and other operating expenses increased by 6.2% to HK$291
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$274 million).

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s finance costs
increased to HK$51 million (2021: HK$30 million) as a result of the
reduction in interest capitalisation of a certain property and the
interbank offered rate rising in the second half of the year. Excluding
the effect of interest capitalization, the finance costs increased by
21%.

New Contracts Awarded and Project in Progress

The Group recorded an accumulated new contract value of HK$10,127
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 and achieved the full
year target of 2022.
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As of 31 December 2022, the on-hand contract value amounted to
approximately HK$26,108 million, among which the backlog was
approximately HK$13,403 million.

20226 5% HERERXEEMERDA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB w LT

H E2022F 128318 EFANBHEBE
261.0818 7T HAKRTALFEL A5 8134.038
7T|:o

Project in Progress

New Contract EREA
Business Segments Awarded Total Value Backlog
2 EB HMESNE BEVE REGHE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BEBET) (BEBABT) (BE¥BEET)
Facade Contracting 8,594 20,358 10,996
HEIR
General Contracting 524 4,110 1,713
A A
Operating Management 1,009 1,640 694
el
Total 10,127 26,108 13,403
HEr

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operation with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers. At 31
December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$975
million (31 December 2021: HK$928 million), total borrowings of
the Group were HK$1,326 million (31 December 2021: HK$1,333
million). The Group’s net gearing ratio (net debt to total net assets) as
at 31 December 2022 was approximately 17.6% (31 December 2021:
25.6%). Furthermore, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
(including performance guarantee facilities, working capital facilities
and loan facilities) of approximately HK$2,030 million, the Group
had sufficient financial resources to meet the business development
and expansion. The Group’s borrowings are principally on a floating
rate basis and have not been hedged by any interest rate financial
instruments.

RBEESRUKEER
AEE-—BUAABAEER R REEEFKIE
TAREEEREAHEEREE S - K2022
F12A318 AEBEHBRERBEFEMELE
9.75(87T (2021412 A31H : B#9.28BIT) - M
AEEEHBERBK13.26/27T (2021F12A
318 : B¥13.3387L) - AEEMR2022F12A31
HRFEELR (B FERNFEERT)OA
17.6% (2021412 A318 : 25.6%) ° IL4h - K&
EARARAMBETEGEHEE BERORERE -
HELASRMERERME) N AEK20.30ET

AEEARHUBERANENEBERRIER -
REBNEREZZNFERER  WEBBEM
iﬁJ)ijZFvﬁI/E\

HEITH R o

029




030

China State Construction Development Holdings Limited 2022 ANNUAL REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHRRA N

The maturities of the Group’s total bank borrowings as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are set out as follows:

N &= E 2022412 A31H K20214612A318 &
IRITERAEI BB REHH AT

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

20224 20214

12A31H 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BE T T BT T

On demand or within one year ERES—FAEE 419,794 824,563
More than one year but not exceeding —F LA E B ERRE

two years 508,340 551
More than two years but not more than MEREETBBASF

five years 397,672 508,042

Total bank borrowings SR1THE AR ABRR 1,325,806 1,333,156

The portfolio of the currencies of cash and cash equivalents of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is set out as

AN EE 20224912 8310 K2021412A318
ReRBESEEMEBHAEINT

follows:
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
12A31H 12A31H
% %
Renminbi AR 78 71
Hong Kong Dollars ok 15 25
United States Dollars eV 1
Macau Pataca JRPTEE 1 1
Others HAty 5 2

Top-up placing of shares of the Company

In order to raise further capital for the Company, on 20 June 2022,
China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong Securities Limited,
Haitong International Securities Company Limited (together, the
"Placing Agents”), Add Treasure Holdings Limited (“Add Treasure”)
and the Company entered into a placing and subscription agreement
pursuant to which the Placing Agents agreed to place, up to
100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by Add Treasure to
six or more independent placees, being professional, institutional and/
or other investors, at a price of HK$2.20 per share (the “Placing”) and
Add Treasure agreed to subscribe for, and the Company agreed to
allot and issue to Add Treasure, ordinary shares of the Company at a
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price of HK$2.20 per share, in the same amount as the total number
of ordinary shares actually placed (the “Subscription”). The Placing
was completed on 22 June 2022 and an aggregate of 100,000,000
ordinary shares were issued to Add Treasure at the price of HK$2.20
per share on 24 June 2022. The closing price of the shares was
HK$2.16 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 17 June 2022,
being the date of the last trading day immediately prior to the date of
the placing and subscription agreement. The net proceeds from the
Subscription (after deducting related expenses) were approximately
HK$219,000,000, representing a net price of HK$2.19 per share
and approximately 70.78% and 29.22% of which would be used
as general working capital for material and contracting payments
for facade projects in Macau and Hong Kong, respectively. The net
proceeds were fully utilised as of 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s equity attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to HK$2,092 million (31 December 2021:
HK$1,671 million), comprising issued capital of HK$23 million (31
December 2021: HK$22 million) and reserves of HK$2,069 million (31
December 2021: HK$1,649 million).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative treasury policy in cash and financial
management. The Group's treasury activities are centralized in
order to achieve better risk control and minimize funding cost. Cash
is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in
Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi. The Group’s liquidity and financing
requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new investments
or maturity of bank loans, the Group will consider new financing while
maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

In 2022, the net cash inflow from operating activities was HK$246
million.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 4,964 (31
December 2021: 4,434) employees. The Group has sound policies
of management incentives and competitive remuneration, which
align the interests of management, employees and shareholders’
alike. The Group sets its remuneration policy by reference to the
prevailing market conditions and the performance of the individuals
concerned, subject to review from time to time. The components of
the remuneration package consist of base salary, allowances, fringe
benefits including medical insurance and contributions to pension
funds as well as incentives such as discretionary bonus.
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Mr. ZHANG Haipeng RS &4+

Chairman and Non-executive Director F[E & IFHITE S
Chairman of the Nomination Committee IR ZZ E& * &
Member of the Remuneration Committee # £ 8 €5k B

Aged 47, was appointed as Chairman of the Board and a Non-executive Director on 18 August 2018. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology, and obtained a degree of Master of Business Administration from
Hong Kong Baptist University and a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from Nankai University
and was awarded the title of Senior Engineer. He joined A B £ B £ R 2 A (China State Construction
Engineering Corporation*, “CSCEC”) in 2000 and was seconded to China State Construction International
Holdings Limited (“CSC”, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)
and its subsidiaries in 2002. Mr. Zhang has been a director of certain subsidiaries of CSC since 2008. Currently,
he is a director of China Overseas Holdings Limited (“COHL") and the chairman and executive director of CSC.
CSCEC, COHL and CSC are controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Zhang has over 23 years of experience in
investment and construction engineering management.

475%  M2018FB8AIBHEZ I REFREFAINTEF - RALEXNMBELEARE IHAFAEAREAE
TRHERBLEMN  MEAASSREEABETIHERBELEM  UHEEFESRTRAMBE - (8720005 1A
BEZEEEARARA(FPREEE])  R2002FEETEZEBEREEERAR ([FHREEBRK]  BREEBAX
SHERDRER ETRF) REMBARF - RAEEB2008FREFRHRZEMBEETHBRARMNES - IR A E
BHIEEBERABD([PEEN)NEERTHEZEBBENIERNTES -PEKE PRSI RPERZERR
BRARBERER - REAERENBZETREETHAB23FLR -

Mr. WU Mingqing R B85& 4

Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer 8l & - $i1TE = FTHAES,
Member of the Nomination Committee 2% & E &5k &

Member of the Remuneration Committee %% 8 €k &

Member of the Sustainability Committee Al {5 ZXRES €K E

Aged 58, was appointed as Vice Chairman of the Board, an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on
18 August 2018. Mr. Wu is also a director of the Company’s subsidiaries. He graduated from Shanxi University
of Finance and Economics and obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from Nankai
University. Mr. Wu was awarded the title of Senior Accountant. He joined CSCEC in 1986 and was seconded to
CSC in 2000. Mr. Wu has been a director of certain subsidiaries of CSC since 2002. He was an executive director
of CSC between June 2014 and August 2018. Mr. Wu has over 37 years of experience in financial management,
construction engineering, infrastructure investment and project management.
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Mr. WANG Hai Ti8%& 4%

Executive Director, Senior Vice President #1172 £ - S & BI4&

Aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director on 15 August 2012. Mr. Wang is also a director of the Company's
subsidiaries. He joined the Group in March 2012 and held various senior management positions including Chief
Executive Officer and Associate Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Wang ceased to be Associate Chief
Executive Officer on 21 September 2015 when he was reallocated to North America taking charge of North
America business. He graduated from Tianjin University and Greenwich University. Mr. Wang joined CSCEC in 1994
and started getting involved in the operation of certain subsidiaries of CSC since 2003. He has over 29 years of
experience in international corporation management in the industry of building and infrastructure investment in
North America, Hong Kong and Mainland China.

505% ' M2012F8AISAELZEARITTES - TAENERARAINBARMNES - tBH2012F3A MALRER - &
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Mr. WONG Man Cheung TE# %4

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer #1717 % - B/EMIEAE
Chairman of the Sustainability Committee AI B REEZE & [F

Aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director on 1 July 2022. Mr. Wong graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration (Financial Services). He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and was a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Wong is also
an individual member of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association. He joined the Group in November 2020
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Wong has over 26 years of experience in accounting, audit,
financial management, corporate financing, business development, strategic planning and advisory, business
controlling, risk management and investor relations. He was involved in a wide range of businesses including, but
not limited to, property development and investment, construction, engineering, hospitality, trading, manufacturing,
telecommunication, mining, distribution and retailing.
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Mr. HUANG Jiang &I &4

Non-executive Director 3EE1TE £

Aged 48, was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 16 March 2017. Mr. Huang graduated from Chongging
Jianzhu University and holds a Master’s degree in Project Management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
an Executive Master’s degree in Business Administration from Nankai University and was awarded the title of Senior
Engineer. He joined CSCEC in 1997 and was seconded to CSC in 2000. Mr. Huang has been a director of certain
subsidiaries of CSC since 2007. Currently, he is an Assistant President of CSC. Mr. Huang has over 26 years of
experience in contract and project management.

485% * 2017 F3A16BEEZTAENTEE - EALEXENEERERE IHFEFEIAZHEAEREEL
BNEEAASCSATEAEINERB TSN  UHEERRITIRANBE - R 1997F MA R EEE - R2000F
EE R EEEER B AL A2007FRATPRBZEERETHEARES  RATHEZEARPERH - MES
HMIBEEEIRFEAE26FEH -

Mr. ZHOU Jinsong B S # &4

Independent Non-executive Director %37 FF# 178 =

Chairman of the Audit Committee B ZE € X%

Member of the Nomination Committee £ 2 & 8 €K 2
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee % 2 € ¥ &
Member of the Sustainability Committee AI /& EEZ B8 &k 8

Aged 52, was appointed as a Director on 8 March 2010 and was subsequently designated as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 10 March 2010. Mr. Zhou graduated from Guangdong Radio and TV University in 1992
and obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from Harbin Institute of Technology in 2003. He is a
Certified Public Accountant licensed in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). Mr. Zhou has extensive experience
in accounting, audit and business advisory in various audit firms and private companies in the PRC. He was an
accountant supervisor in the fund management office of the Shenzhen Cultural Development Department (&Il
TEXEEEREEBFESBE /AP A ZE)from 1995 to 2002. Mr. Zhou is currently the President of Weiya, an
accounting firm in Shenzhen.

525% ' M2010F3ACHELZ T AE S HEM2010F3A10A AT BYIFENTES - HLERIONFEERER
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Ms. CHAN Man Ki Maggie R 2 H 7z +

Independent Non-executive Director &7 JE# 1T & =

Member of the Audit Committee T2 % B & 5k 8

Member of the Nomination Committee 2 2 Z E & 8
Member of the Remuneration Committee ¥ Fi|Z& 8 €k &
Member of the Sustainability Committee AJ /B EREE B &K 8

Aged 54, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 1 July 2022. Ms. Chan obtained her
Bachelor degree in Laws and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1991 and 1992
respectively. She is the founder and managing partner of CMK lawyers, a law firm in Hong Kong, and has over 28
years of experience in providing legal advices and services as a solicitor in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan is also a lawyer in
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and her practice institution is Sino-Win Law Firm.

Ms. Chan is an Accredited Mediator and a China-Appointed Attesting Officer in Hong Kong. She is also the
founding president of The Small and Medium Law Firms Association of Hong Kong. Furthermore, Ms. Chan is a
Specially Invited Mediator of Guangdong Court for Cross-border Commercial Dispute Resolution in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, a Mediator of Shenzhen Qianhai International Commercial Mediation Centre,
and an Arbitrator of China Guangzhou Arbitration Commission, Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration and
Qingdao Arbitration Commission. She is currently an independent non-executive director of Wine’s Link International
Holdings Limited, Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited and Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited. The aforesaid
companies are all listed in Hong Kong.

Ms. Chan has also undertaken various community positions in Hong Kong including being an Ex-officio Member of
Election Committee and Chairman of Appeal Tribunal Panel (Building Ordinance). She was awarded the Medal of
Honor in 2012 and Justice of the Peace in 2015 by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
Ms. Chan was also conferred with Honorary Fellow by City University of Hong Kong in 2013. She was elected as a
Hong Kong Deputy to the National People’s Congress of the PRC (the 13th session and the 14th session) in 2017
and 2022 respectively, an executive member of the All-China Women's Federation Executive Committee in 2018, a
president of All-China Women's Federation Hong Kong Delegates Association Ltd. in 2021 and a Legislative Council
Member of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2022.
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Mr. ZHANG Xinyu & X F % 4

Independent Non-executive Director %37 JEEh1TE F

Member of the Audit Committee BiXZ B €5 8

Member of the Nomination Committee 22 Z E & 8
Member of the Remuneration Committee %% 8 €5k &
Member of the Sustainability Committee AI /B % EE 8 & 8

Aged 34, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 1 July 2022. Mr. Zhang graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Engineering Degree in Civil Engineering. He is a Member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers (“HKIE”) and Co-opted Member of The HKIE Council and a Chartered Engineer of
the Institution of Civil Engineers. Mr. Zhang is also a Chartered Member of The Chartered Institute of Logistics and
Transport. He worked for MTR Corporation Limited and was responsible for the construction of various new railway
projects and train operations. Mr. Zhang is a Legislative Council Member of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region elected in 2022. He has over 12 years of experience in engineering field.
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Mr. Ll Jing Z&§ £ 4

Vice President gl #8 %k

Aged 54, graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and University of South Australia with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics and a Master’s degree in Business Administration, holding the certification of senior
accountant. Mr. Li joined CSCEC in 1991 and was seconded to the COHL Group in 1996. He joined the Group in
April 2020 and has over 32 years of experience in financial management, internal auditing, internal control and risk
management.

545  EENLBMEARBRFRANTEARE  BEKLERELRTIHEERLEM  YHASRSETAEE -
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FEit  PENERAREESHTEEE2FLR -

Mr. WANG Yapeng F 5 JI§ %&£ 4

Vice President Bl 42 %,

Aged 47, graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology and Renmin University of China, and
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering and a Master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. Wang joined CSCEC
in 2004 and was seconded to the COHL Group in 2007. He joined the Group in 2018 and has over 24 years of
experience in business operation, enterprise management, human resources and administration.
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Mr. ZHU Minfeng % 81 5 &

Assistant President B2 48 %%

Aged 43, graduated from Southeast University and Huazhong University of Science and Technology, and holds a
Bachelor’s degree and a Master’s degree in Engineering. Mr. Zhu joined the CSC Group in 2002 and was seconded
to the Group in 2018. He has over 20 years of experience in construction engineering management.
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Mr. CHAN Sun Nung PR 37885 4 /

Technical Director %5t 42 B5

Aged 63, obtained a Master’'s degree in Construction Engineering and Management from Griffith University,
Australia. Mr. Chan is the vice president of Hong Kong Facade Association. He joined the Group in 2003 and has
over 42 years of experience in curtain wall design.

635  EEMRMREIFEH AL EEREEIRENERE LTS - MAEF AT ERER GRS TFE B
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Mr. MOK Wai Him B E 34t 4

Project Director T 242 E5

Aged 62, graduated from the University of Essex, United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Science degree in Applied
Physics and obtained a Master’s degree in Instrumentation and Analytical Science from the University of Manchester
Institute of Science and Technology, United Kingdom. Mr. Mok is a member of the Institute of Measurement and
Control in the United Kingdom and an associate member of the Chartered Institution of Building Services Engineers.
He joined the Group in 1996 and has over 34 years of experience in project management.

6255  BEENRENERHALR  BERERAYVESESL 24 IFEARESBITHFAREIER ZEHELD
PRMBRELEMN RALERREEFAELERHE GG RBHETRATIEMBEEREE  R1996F INAK
SE MAEEEERETEEBIMFLER -

Mr. LAU Sai Ying, Alan 23 5 & /

Marketing Director T #; 42 8%

Aged 62, graduated from the University of Manitoba, Canada with a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering.
Mr. Lau is a member of Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a registered professional engineer in Hong Kong.
He joined the Group in 1997 and has over 33 years of construction, engineering and facade system project
management and marketing experience in Canada and Hong Kong.
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Mr. GAO Fei R &4

Deputy General Manager, Far East Facade (Hong Kong) Limited
EREE (BB ERAAEREE

Aged 37, graduated from the Harbin Institute of Technology with Bachelor of Engineering and Bachelor of Science
degrees, and holds a Master’'s degree in Business Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University. Mr. Gao
joined the CSC Group in 2009. He joined the Group in September 2020 and has over 14 years of experience in
construction management.
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Mr. HONG Jianping £ 2 ¥ 54
General Manager, Shenyang Huanggu Thermoelectricity Company Limited*
B ERAREERAABLE

Aged 57, graduated from Xi'an University of Architecture and Technology with a Bachelor of Engineering degree
and obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Nankai University. Mr. Hong joined the COHL
Group in 1998 and was seconded to the CSC Group in 2008. He joined the Group in 2014 and has over 33 years of
experience in investment, mergers and acquisitions, plant management and enterprise management.
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GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and recognises that good corporate governance is fundamental to the
long-term success of the Company and delivering sustainable value
to shareholders. Accordingly, the corporate governance principles of
the Company emphasise a well-balanced and effective Board, sound
risk management and internal control systems, and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles, and complied with all
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board is responsible for establishing the Group’s purpose, values
and strategy, and for setting the tone at the top. The Board ensures
that the Group’s culture is aligned with its purpose, values and
strategy.

As a large professional facade enterprise dedicated to innovation,
low-carbon environmental protection and sustainable development,
the Group always upholds the corporate culture of “Creating Trends”,
pursues the core values of “integrity, innovation, pragmatism and
and adheres to the business philosophy of “quality
assurance and value creation.” The Group strictly implements
corporate governance, actively fulfills its social responsibility, and
pursues continuous value enhancement for shareholders, employees,
working partners and society. The Group is constantly committed to

excellence”

building differentiated competitive advantages through technology
empowerment and refined management. In the new era, the Group is
progressing towards the world’s most competitive facade technology
conglomerate.
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EER
|
| | | |
Audit Committee Nomlna_\tlon Remune_ratlon Sustaln:i\blllty
ERESS Commlgee Commlltee Co*mmlttei
REEE® FMEER ARFERREEES
THE BOARD EER

The Board has a collective responsibility for promoting the Company’s
long-term sustainable success and enhancing shareholder value which
is achieved by having members with a balanced range of individual
skills and experience. The Board is responsible for the stewardship of
the Group, directing and guiding strategic objectives, overseeing and
monitoring performance, and discharging certain legal responsibilities.
The Board delegates the day-to-day operation of the Group to the
management under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer.
The Board has established four committees to assist it in discharging
certain governance responsibilities. Details of the Board committees’
responsibilities are described more fully in the “Board Committees”
section of this report. The Board reserves for its consideration and
decision matters affecting the Group as a whole including approval
of the Group’s financial statements, dividends, external financing,
Board appointments, major acquisitions, disposals and certain
material contracts, and broad policies; oversight of systems of internal
control and risk management (supported by the Audit Committee),
sustainability, governance matters, and compliance arrangements.

Board Composition and Diversity

The Group is led by an effective and committed Board, with a
culture of openness and transparency at Board meetings. As at 31
December 2022, there were eight Directors on the Board: three
Executive Directors and five Non-executive Directors (including three
Independent Non-executive Directors).
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The following changes to the Board composition took place during the
year:

(1) Mr. Hong Winn resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 July 2022;

(2)  Ms. Kwong Sum Yee Anna resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director with effect from 1 July 2022;

(3)  Mr. Wong Man Cheung was appointed as an Executive Director
with effect from 1 July 2022;

(4)  Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director with effect from 1 July 2022; and

(5)  Mr. Zhang Xinyu was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director with effect from 1 July 2022.

Throughout the year, the number of Independent Non-executive
Directors on the Board meets the one-third requirement under the
Listing Rules. The names of the Directors in office as at 31 December
2022 are set out in the “Board of Directors and Committees” section
of this Annual Report and their biographical details are set out on
pages 33 to 37.

The Board diversity policy sets out the Board’s approach to diversity.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, culture,
educational background, professional experience, knowledge and
length of service and the ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board
and the Board will have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company's
business. The Company is focused upon increasing Board diversity
without compromising on the calibre of Directors. In determining
suitable candidates for the Board appointment, the Nomination
Committee and the Board pay due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board and disclose in the circular to shareholders how the
individual who is proposed to be elected as Independent Non-executive
Director at the general meeting contributes to the diversity of the
Board.

Es
|
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Balance of the Board Directors’ Tenure (years) Age

EXZRNTE EXEH () Fie

B Executive Director $ii7&# % B <4 B <41
E Non-executive Director JE$177t % B 4-8 E 41-50

7 Independent Non-executive Director F>8 ¥ >50

BIAFNITES

Expertise / Experience

%E / I%STS_N R

63%

¥ Finance and Accounting B Construction

&=
M REt 38% 5
7 Risk Management and B International Corporation
Compliance o Management
ARERRAR 0% pmEaRgE
¥ Legal 13% 7 Investment
B RE

¥ Public Services 13%

RNER

7 Engineering
Tig

38%




The Board currently has eight members with one of whom being a
female member. While the Board targets to maintain the current level
of female representation, it will continue to take opportunities to
increase the proportion of female members over time as and when
suitable candidates are identified. The male to female employee ratio
of the Group (including senior management) was about 5.7:1 as at
31 December 2022. The Group will continue to apply a range of
diversity perspectives including but not limited to gender, age, culture,
educational background, professional experience and knowledge in
employee recruitment. In addition, there will be no discrimination
based on gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
nationality, religion, socioeconomic status, physical ability, family
background and other factors. Since the Group’s core business is
construction which is largely male dominated, it may be difficult to
increase the proportion of women in the short term. However, the
Group strives to improve gender diversity by (i) focusing on diversity
during the recruitment process; (ii) raising industry awareness in young
people by running recruitment programmes with universities; and (iii)
providing equal opportunities through a transparent rewards system.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the
diversity policy and considers that the size of Board is appropriate and
effective in terms of carrying out its duties and responsibilities, and
the Directors have a broad range of expertise and experience from a
variety of sectors which, we believe, contributes significantly to the
effectiveness of the Board.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Zhang Haipeng, is responsible for
the effectiveness of the Board in its role of directing the Company
and achieves this through promoting a culture of constructive
debate and openness among all Board members, both executive and
non-executive. To support this, from time to time, the Chairman
meets with Independent Non-executive Directors privately without
other Directors present. The Chairman encourages high standards of
corporate governance and ensures that the Board receives accurate,
timely and clear information, and is consulted on all relevant matters.
The Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that Board meetings
are planned and conducted effectively, including setting the agenda
for each Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate,
matters proposed by Directors. With the support of the Executive
Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues to be deliberated at
Board meetings. The Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wu Mingging, is
responsible for the day-to-day operation and management of the
Group, and implementation of Board decisions, policies and strategies.
The Chief Executive Officer assumes full accountability to the Board
for the overall operation of the Group and has responsibility for
overseeing and delivering operational performance of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election

Save for Mr. Huang Jiang, Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie and Mr. Zhang
Xinyu who were appointed not for a specific term, all Non-executive
Directors were appointed under letters of appointment for a term of
three years. Directors appointed by the Board shall hold office until
the first general meeting following their appointments in the case
to fill a casual vacancy or until the next following annual general
meeting in the case as an addition to the Board. Such Directors shall
then be eligible for re-election. In addition, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. A retiring Director is
eligible for re-election and re-election of retiring Directors at general
meetings are dealt with by separate resolutions.

If an Independent Non-executive Director serves more than nine years,
his/her further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders and the circular to shareholders will
include the reasons why the Board believes he/she is still independent
and should be re-elected.
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Board Independence

The Company recognises that board independence is critical to good
corporate governance. The Board (comprising more than one-third
Independent Non-executive Directors) and the Audit Committee
(being made up by Independent Non-executive Directors only)
exceed the independence requirements as set out in the Listing
Rules. Independence Non-executive Directors receive fixed fees for
their role as members of the Board with additional fees payable to
reflect chairmanship of Board committees. None of the Independence
Non-executive Directors receive equity-based remuneration which is
linked to performance of the Group. Directors can seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to facilitate proper
discharge of their duties.

In assessing the independence of a Non-executive Director, the
Company takes into account the criteria affecting independence as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Every Independent Non-executive
Director is required to confirm in writing to the Company his/her
independence upon his/her appointment as Director as well as on
an annual basis with reference to such criteria. The Nomination
Committee is mandated to assess annually the independence of all
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Although Mr. Zhou Jinsong
has served more than nine years, the Company continues to consider
him to be independent having regard to (i) his annual confirmation
on independence; (ii) the absence of his involvement in the
day-to-day management of the Company; and (iii) the absence of any
relationships or circumstances which would interfere with the exercise
of his independent judgement.

The above mechanisms are in place to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms will be
reviewed annually by the Board with attention to ensuring that the
Board remains independent in judgement, and continues to present
an objective and constructive challenge to the assumptions and
viewpoints presented by the management.
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Board Process

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year. Additional
meetings of the Board or the Board committee established by it
to consider specific matters, can be convened, when necessary.
Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association. During the year, the Board held
five meetings. In addition to physical meetings, Directors participate
in the deliberation and approval of routine and operational matters
of the Company by circulation of written resolutions with supporting
explanatory materials. For regular meetings of the Board and Board
committees, Directors receive notice and agenda at least 14 days in
advance and supporting Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the
meetings. For ad hoc meetings, Directors are given as much notice as
is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Directors are given
the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings and raise other matters that are not on the agenda during
the meetings. Directors are given sufficient time for discussion at the
Board meetings. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and
full responses will be given if possible.

Where Directors have not been able to attend a Board or Board
committee meeting, they have reviewed the papers circulated for
that meeting and provided their comments directly or through the
Company Secretary, to the Chairman or the committee chair, as
appropriate. In addition to formal Board meetings, the Chairman had
private discussion with Independent Non-executive Directors during
the year.

Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can
ask for further information if necessary. Management is responsible
for providing such explanation and information to the Board as will
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other matters put before the Board for approval. All members
of the Board are provided with monthly updates with respect to the
operating information and performance of the Group to enable the
Directors, individually and collectively, to discharge their legal and
regulatory duties.

All Directors also have direct access to the Company Secretary for
advice and, if required, can seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense. There is an agreed procedure to enable them
to do so which is managed by the Company Secretary.
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If a conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or a Director fVEFERFKEEFEMN=EE  AAHESE
arises, the matter will be discussed at a physical meeting, as opposed #eE e Film MIFUAEMREFAEE -
to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent Non-executive EE2EIBEH X 5H 8B B AN 8B IEBT
Directors with no material interest in the proposed matter or EZE¥elEeZEEHFEHESEE -
transaction will be present at the meeting to deal with the conflict.

Draft version of meeting minutes of the Board and Board committees @:#%% EZRLEFEZEC @ ALENVREE
will be sent to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after HEAEBEAEXEESREETR  MEFHLE
the meetings and final version of minutes will be placed on record MHKREREESET R H FHEBTDIRER o
after approval at the next meeting.

The following table shows Directors’ attendance at meetings and  TF&REF|EZ 20224 HEe % REI|ER
training in 2022:

Meetings attended/eligible to attend

EERE/ TERRE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Sustainability General Training
Board ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meetings (Note 3)
IEEER il
EEZR EWZEE HMZEE  R#ZEE £ H kExg k=)
Chairman and Non-executive Director IREFYNES
Zhang Haipeng Rl 5/5 - i n - 0 /
Executive Directors gz
Wu Mingging L) 55 - " 0 "n 0 /
Wang Hai b 45 - - - - 0 /
Wong Man Cheung (Note 1) TEE M) 0N - - - N - /
Non-executive Director *4178%
Huang Jiang I 55 - - - - 0N /
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHNES
Zhou Jinsong [ 5/5 44 i 0 N 0N /
Hong Winn (Note 2) Hong Winn (K32) 33 0 /1 20 - o -
Kwang Sum Yee Anna (Note 2) Bivia (B3k2) £l n i n - 0N -
Chan Man Ki Maggie (Note 1) R (M) 0 0 - - i -
Zhang Xinyu (Note 1) FMF (W) n n - - N -
Notes: Mz -
1. Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan and Mr. Zhang joined the Board on 1 July 2022. 1. FhEAE ML+ RELEER2022E781BIMAE
ESSE
2. Mr. Hong and Ms. Kwong resigned from the Board with effect from 1 2. Hongt E MB X T B EAEEHK - 52022474
July 2022. 1 #E AR o
3. Training includes attending trainings organised by the Company, 3. EIAELXMAAREHENEY  Hte 25

seminars, conferences and courses, and reading relevant materials. MR2 - LARBEHRBER -
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Training and Commitment

A package, which has been compiled and reviewed by the Company’s
legal advisers, setting out the duties and responsibilities of directors
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements, is
provided to each newly appointed Director. Guidelines for directors
have also been forwarded to each Director for his/her information
and ready reference. Directors are encouraged to attend internal
and external briefings and courses on aspects of their respective
committee specialisms. Training and regular updates on relevant legal,
regulatory and corporate governance matters are provided to Directors
as appropriate. Directors are required to provide the Company with
details of training undertaken once a year.

In 2022, members of the management (including Executive Directors)
participated in a variety of training activities, including attending
seminars and receiving regulatory updates relevant to their business as
well as anti-corruption practices. They received sufficient internal and
external training to better equip them to fulfil their roles in supporting
the Company.

The Board recognises the importance of individual members having
sufficient time available to discharge their duties effectively. Additional
commitments of Directors are carefully reviewed on appointment,
before new Directors are accepted onto the Board. Directors are
expected to attend all meetings of the Board and Board committees of
which they are members, as well as the annual general meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has four committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Sustainability Committee and each of which has specific written terms
of reference approved by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Sustainability Committee are available on the Company’s
website or, on request, from the Company Secretary. Verbal reports
on meetings of the committees are provided at each regular Board
meeting by the relevant committee chairs.

The committees are provided with all necessary resources including
access to independent professional advice, if necessary, to enable
them to undertake their duties in an effective manner. The Company
Secretary acts as secretary to the committees.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed solely of Independent
Non-executive Directors with Mr. Zhou Jinsong as chairman and
Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie and Mr. Zhang Xinyu as members of the
committee. Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie and Mr. Zhang Xinyu were
appointed to the committee following the resignation of Mr. Hong
Winn and Ms. Kwong Sum Yee Anna. Mr. Zhou Jinsong, who served
on the committee throughout the year, possesses appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters which is
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee meets at least four times a year and its primary
duties include ensuring the Group’s financial statements (including
annual, half-year and quarterly results) present a true and balanced
assessment of the Group’s financial position; reviewing the Group's
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
systems; reviewing the Group’'s financial and accounting policies
and practices; and recommending the appointment and approving
remuneration of external auditor. Other duties of the committee are
set out in its specific terms of reference.

The committee met four times in 2022. Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer, and Deputy General Manager, Finance and Treasury
Department were regular attendees at the meetings of the committee.
External auditors were invited to attend two of those meetings to
discuss various accounting issues and audit findings, and the audit
plan with the committee.

The work of the committee during the year included reviewing the
results announcements and financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021, and for the first quarter, half-year and third quarter
of 2022, the annual report and interim report. To aid its review, the
committee considered the report from the management and the
report from external auditor on the outcomes of the annual audit.
The committee also reviewed the continuing connected transactions,
internal control, risk management and internal audit matters,
approved the audit plan and fee for the 2022 year end audit before
audit commencement and made recommendation to the Board on the
re-appointment of auditor.

In addition, the Audit Committee monitors the audit and non-audit
services rendered to the Group by its external auditor to ensure that
their engagement in non-audit services will not impair their audit
independence or objectivity. An independence confirmation has
been obtained from Ernst & Young which confirms that they are
independent of the Group in accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the
Company and its subsidiaries by Ernst & Young and other firms of
its worldwide network for the financial year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately HK$2,711,000 and HK$604,000
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of tax services
amounting HK$214,000, sustainability consultancy services amounting
HK$309,000 and other services for ad hoc projects amounting
HK$81,000.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhang Haipeng, the
Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director and its other
members include Mr. Wu Mingging, Vice Chairman, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer and the three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Jinsong, Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie and
Mr. Zhang Xinyu. Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie and Mr. Zhang Xinyu were
appointed to the committee following the resignation of Mr. Hong
Winn and Ms. Kwong Sum Yee Anna. All other members served on
the committee throughout the year.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year and is
responsible for reviewing the Board structure, size and composition,
identifying and nominating to the Board candidates who are
appropriate for appointment or re-appointment as Directors, assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendation to the Board on succession planning.

The committee held two meetings in 2022. The work of the committee
during the year included consideration of the composition of the
Board to ensure there was an appropriate balance of skills, knowledge
and experience and the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors, and considering and making recommendation to the Board
on the proposed appointment of Executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Directors. The committee also considered and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of the Directors at
the annual general meeting.
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The Company has adopted a policy for nomination of Directors
which sets out the principles that guide the committee to identify
and evaluate candidates for nomination as well as the procedures for
nomination. The committee will take into account the candidate’s
character and integrity, qualifications, diversity contributions,
independence (for the appointment of Independent Non-executive
Director), time commitment and any other relevant factors as may be
determined by the committee or the Board from time to time. The
committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new Director and the biographical information (or relevant details)
of a candidate, evaluate the candidate based on the criteria as set
out above. The committee will then recommend to the Board the
appointment of the candidate for directorship, if appropriate. The
Board decides the appointment based upon the recommendation of
the committee.

In assessing the independence of Directors, the committee recognises
that Mr. Zhou lJinsong has served on the Board for more than nine
years but having considered his annual confirmation of independence
and the absence of any relationships or circumstances which
would interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement,
the committee remains confident that Mr. Zhou and continue to
demonstrate independent character and judgement in carrying out his
duties.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhou Jinsong, an
Independent Non-executive Director and its other members include
Mr. Zhang Haipeng, the Chairman of the Board and Non-executive
Director, Mr. Wu Mingqging, Vice Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer and two Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie and Mr. Zhang Xinyu. Ms. Chan Man
Ki Maggie and Mr. Zhang Xinyu were appointed to the committee
following the resignation of Mr. Hong Winn and Ms. Kwong Sum Yee
Anna. All other members served on the committee throughout the
year.
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year and is
responsible for formulating and making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management of the Group with reference to the Group'’s
overall performance, individual’s responsibilities and performance and
the prevailing market conditions, as well as reviewing and making
recommendations on the Company’s share scheme, bonus structure
and other compensation related issues. The committee determines the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management and reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s remuneration policy. The committee also has the responsibility
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors.

The committee held one meeting in 2022. Deputy General Manager,
Human Resources Department was invited to attend the meeting
to discuss the Group’s remuneration policy and remuneration
proposal for the Directors to be appointed. The committee made
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Independent
Non-executive Directors which were determined with reference
to their responsibilities, time commitment and the then prevailing
market condition. The committee also reviewed and approved the
Group’s policy on salary adjustment and discretionary bonus which
applies to Directors and senior management of the Company and the
policy has been set to align with the Group’s operating performance
while taking into account the general economic condition, individual
performance and contribution, and remuneration benchmarks against
peer companies. In addition, the committee reviewed and considered
the appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy and
structure of the Group with reference to the construction market
practices, the Group's performance and remuneration offered by peer
companies.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The remuneration of members of the senior management by band
for the year end 31 December 2022 is set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Sustainability Committee

The Sustainability Committee is chaired by Mr. Wong Man Cheung,
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer and its other members
include Mr. Wu Mingging, Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer and the three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zhou Jinsong, Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie and Mr. Zhang
Xinyu.

The Sustainability Committee was elevated to a Board committee in
August 2022 underscoring importance attached to environmental,
social and governance. The committee meets at least twice a year
and is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Group’s sustainability strategies, identifying
potential risks and opportunities in relation to the sustainability issues
(including climate-related risks and opportunities) and proposing
countermeasures. The committee also reviews and monitors the the
performance of the Group by assessing the sustainable goals and
targets, performance indicators and the completion progress and make
recommendations on the strategies for improvement. Other duties of
the committee are set out in its specific terms of reference.

roadmaps and goals,

The committee held one meeting in 2022. The work of the committee
during the year included reviewing and making recommendation to
the Board on the Group'’s sustainability strategies, roadmap and goals.
The committee also reviewed the progress of the Group’s sustainability
efforts and achievements, the key focus areas and action plans as well
as the target setting of the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Group and the
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is a matter for
the whole Board. Whilst the Company Secretary reports to the Board
through the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, all Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary for the
ongoing discharge of their duties and responsibilities. The Company
Secretary maintains dialogue with each of them on an individual basis.

The Board is supported by the Company Secretary who ensures that
the Board is able to function effectively and efficiently. In addition to
making logistical arrangements for meetings, the Company Secretary
is responsible for advising the Board on all governance matters,
managing the policies and procedures relating to the Board and
ensuring that the Directors receive information in a timely manner.
Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board committees are taken
and kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.

During the year, the Company Secretary attended over 15 hours of
professional training.

el
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has undertaken the responsibility for performing the
corporate governance duties pursuant to the CG Code and is
committed to ensuring that an effective governance structure is in
place to continuously review, monitor and improve the corporate
governance practices within the Group with regard to the prevailing
legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, the work of the Board in this area included reviewing
the policies and practices on the Group’s corporate governance,
monitoring the Company’s legal and regulatory compliance and
training and continuing professional development of Directors and
senior management, developing relevant policies to ensure compliance
with the latest change in the laws and regulations and reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure in this
report.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code in their securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently, and that judgements
and estimates made are prudent and reasonable. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the applicable laws have
been complied with.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, were not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and on such basis, the Board has prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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The responsibilities of external auditor of the Company with respect to
financial reporting are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for maintaining appropriate systems of
internal control and risk management, policies and procedures within
the Group and the Audit Committee has the delegated responsibility
to assess on an ongoing basis the effectiveness and relevancy of the
systems. Such systems are designed to identify and control rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Processes and procedures are in place to ensure
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use and for publication and to ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Group has established a risk management framework to enable
the Board and the management of the Company to discharge their risk
management-related responsibilities with appropriate delegation and
checks and balances. Various operational committees including Project
Tendering Committee, Procurement and Subcontracting Committee,
3MS Committee and Safety Production Committee which stand at the
highest level of the Group's risk governance structure below the Board
have been established to manage the risks and opportunities across
the project lifecycle. These committees provide direct oversight of the
formulation of institutional risk appetite, and control and monitor the
levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake with regard to its
financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market conditions and
regulatory requirements.

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework
comprises a number of approval and review gates that cover the
business lifecycle from initial project pursuit through to delivery and
completion. All gates are mandatory and require approval at Group
level by the operational committees, by divisional or business unit level
depending upon the nature and complexity of projects.

To ensure that decisions are taken at the right level within the Group
by those best placed to take them, the Company has in place a policy
on delegation of authority for expenditure which sets out limits and
conditions for the authority afforded to each function and senior
individuals. The policy ensures there is a consistency of approach
across the business units and allows the business to operate efficiently
without creating burdensome processes. The policy will be reviewed
from time to time to realign them with changes to the Group's
business structure leading to stronger accountability.
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The Group has also set up procedures for assessing sustainability
risks. The Group will first grasp an industry overview by analysing and
evaluating a wide range of risk analysis reports and trend analysis
reports and identify sustainability risks that are relevant to the
Group after taking into account the business nature of the Group.
The impact of such risks on the Group’s financial performance,
development strategy, operational management, reputation, etc will
be assessed and a list of potential sustainability risks will then be
drawn up. The Group will consider its own sustainable development
matters and create a sustainability risk database by filtering, adding to
and shortening the list. The risks may come from a variety of sources
including uncertainties in the financial market, possible project failure,
legal liability, credit risk, accidents, natural causes and disasters,
deliberate attack from rivals, uncertain causes and events. Relevant
departments will be invited to rate the risks in the database in terms of
“the likelihood of the sustainability risk’s occurring” and “the severity
of the sustainability risk’s impact”. The Group will prioritise the risks
based on their rating and review the management of high-risk items
so as to enhance or formulate risk management plans for continuous
improvement of the risk management work.

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by the holding
group’s Intendance and Audit Department and an ad hoc team
mandated from time to time to carry out regular and irregular audit
on the governance and control processes of the Group. During the
year, the Finance and Treasury Department conducted an audit on the
Group'’s overseas business units, project implementation, materials and
equipment procurement, and fixed assets management. The findings
and recommendations were reported to the Audit Committee.

The Group had conducted an annual review on its risk management
and internal control systems which covered the financial year 2022
and there were no material internal control defects or significant
areas of concerns identified. The Board considered that the Group's
risk management and internal control systems remain adequate and
effective in evaluating, determining and managing significant risks
that the Group may take in achieving its strategic objectives. Upon
reviewing the report by the management, the Board confirmed that
there were adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function as well as those relating to the its
environmental, social and governance performance and reporting.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for employees
and those who deal with the Group to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity, about possible improprieties in matters related to the
Group, in order to help detect and deter misconduct or malpractice
or unethical acts in the Group. The Company has also adopted a
standalone anti-corruption policy which sets out the basic standard
of conduct for directors, officers and employees of the Group and
provides guidance on acceptance of advantage and handling of
conflict of interest when dealing with the Group's business.
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In addition to the inside information disclosure policy adopted by the
Board, the Group has in place policies and procedures to regulate
employees conduct on handling, disseminating and preserving
confidential information (including inside information) with designated
teams to review their implementation and monitor compliance.

The Group will continue to review and develop risk management and
internal control systems and procedures to manage and mitigate the
impact of risks both within and outside its control.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Company will be approximately 30% of the
profits available for distribution, which will be declared/recommended
by the Board for distribution semi-annually when the Board approves
the interim results and annual results. The amount of dividends
actually distributed to shareholders will depend upon the earnings and
financial position, operating requirements, capital requirements and
any other conditions that the Directors may deem relevant. There is no
assurance that dividends of any amount will be declared or distributed
in any year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are encouraged to maintain direct communication with
the Company. Shareholders who have any enquiries to be put to the
Board may send a letter to:

Company Secretary

20226 5% HERERXEEMERDA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERERRSE

BREEREMNARTHERBERRIN  AEEE
HEBERMIZF  URBETHRBEIE - MM
REREEE (BEAREBERINTAR  THER
PMERERIBRRMEFAETMEESRBN -

REB B BB RECE R E IR K A0 e 2 H
B MR Fr - #& DAE 38 o R0 1K 2 L 422 i) 65 ) A 79 e
VASI O LR o

g B BUER

R B Y BB B A A A i 0 i M 2 #930%
BRIk - BXFIRE—R DHEEERILAESD
HEEREFEBRAEERERBEEIK °
EREDIRTARRRENRESEHRF ARG
ZBNMEFBAMRR 2EER  ERBREAR
AEFTRERSARNEAEMGEENE - A2
AEZRESRERNFETIRSE D K EMNSEED
PR e

R SR A& F
AT BB B A D TR B R R - R
EOEFBIRLEH - AR

NEIME

Address: China State Construction Development Holdings Limited
16th Floor, Eight Commercial Tower
8 Sun Yip Street
Chai Wan
Hong Kong

The Company maintains procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director at a general meeting. The procedures
for such proposal are available on the Company’s website.

Should shareholders wish to call an extraordinary general meeting,
it must be convened according to the articles of association of the
Company, which state as follows:

o Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company can, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the above address, require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Investors play a valuable role in the corporate governance of the
Company. The Board is committed to maintaining an open and
ongoing dialogue with investors.

The Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
conducted analyst presentations following financial results
announcements. Full year and half year results presentation materials
are made available on the Company’'s website so that shareholders
receive the same information as institutional investors.

The Company’s general meetings provide the best opportunity for
exchange of views between the Board and shareholders by maintaining
an on-going dialogue with shareholders. The chairman of the Board
as well as the chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Sustainability Committee and
any other committees (as appropriate) or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees attend general meetings to
answer shareholders’ questions. Member(s) of the independent board
committee will attend and be available to answer shareholders’
questions at general meetings convened for the approval of connected
transactions or any other transactions that are subject to independent
shareholders’ approval.

The shareholders communication policy was updated in 2022 to
elaborate on the multiple avenues available for shareholders to
communicate with the Company and vice versa. Such Policy aims
at setting out the various channels and platforms adopted by the
Company for shareholders to communicate their views on various
matters affecting the Company, as well as steps taken to solicit and
understand the views of shareholders and stakeholders. The Board
will review regularly the implementation of the policy ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company’s website (www.cscd.com.hk) has a dedicated Investor
Relations section where a range of valuable information can be found,
including:

corporate information;

- published financial reports and results announcements;

- details on the Company’s corporate governance arrangements;
and

- announcements and circulars.

There was not any change in the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
the provision of corporate management services. The activities of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries are shown in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on pages 107 and 108 respectively.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segments is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK4.1 cents per share was paid to shareholders
on 11 November 2022. The Board recommended the declaration of
a final dividend of HK2.4 cents per share payable on 6 July 2023 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 16 June 2023. Together with the interim dividend
of HK4.1 cents per share, this results in total dividends for the
year of HK6.5 cents per share and represents a total distribution of
HK$146,610,000.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, including a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year, the important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of
2022 and the likely future developments, is set out in the “Financial
Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” sections of this Annual Report.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Below are the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group that
could adversely impact the Group’s business, financial condition, and
profitability. There may be other risks in addition to those disclosed
below that are not known to the Group or may not be currently

material but could turn out to be material in the future.

Risk
= B

Description
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Management Measures
EEER

Foreign Exchange

SMNE

Interest Rate

Market

%

The Group's foreign currency exposures
primarily arise from certain sales or
purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the unit’s functional currency.
These sales or purchases are mainly
denominated in United States dollar,
Renminbi, Australian dollar, Canadian
dollar, Pound Sterling, and Macau Pataca.

AEBZIERREIEREEEEMIAE
Nt ERE NNz BT ZE THER
BE - Eiiiﬁ’iiﬁﬁﬁié%u%ﬁ\/\
R BRI N RETORPIEETE -

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
related to variable rate borrowings.

AEBE 2 MEREREER
MERAER -

LR BN KRB

If being affected by national or

market trends, political change, or
new developments in infrastructure
expenditure, it may cause customers to
postpone, reduce or change existing or
future projects, which may impact the

Group's strategy, business model, revenue,

or profitability in the short or medium
term.

Wmﬂlﬁiﬁ% CBURRBRER
XHEHMTE z%ﬁl%}gﬁﬁ - Hl
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AEERE R PR - ZHRA W
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The Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
by closely reviewing the movement of the

foreign currency rate and adapting natural

hedge strategies. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group did not engage in the
use of other financial instruments for hedging
purposes, and there were no hedging instruments
outstanding as of 31 December 2022.

REE T ) B EIMNEE RSB WA AL R
M - FELABSIEIMERE R - MELZE2022F12H31H
IEFEE  AEETEGCHEMSF T AETHF -
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The Group has established policies and procedures
for assessing, booking, and monitoring such risk
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
fluctuation should the need arise.

AEBEEBIER - L8 MEE N XEROEEK
FiZfF  WERUBREEBE HTERN XK -

The Group's strategy to focus on more resilient
and stable infrastructure, property markets, and
geographies will help mitigate this risk. It is
essential that counterparties’ financial solvency and
strength must always be considered before signing
contracts. During the life of a contract, such
assessments are updated and reviewed whenever
possible. The Group also seeks to ensure that it is
not over-reliant on any single counterparty.
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Risk Description Management Measures

[ B B EEEE

Bidding The Group’s success depends on its All bids are subject to rigorous estimating and
ability to identify, price, and execute tendering processes within the risk management
the right volume and quality of bidding framework. The Group has defined delegated
opportunities in order to generate authority levels for approving all tenders. Reviews
profitable orders consistently. This in turn  are conducted following all tenders to ensure that
requires the Group to have a competitive lessons are learnt and applied to future tenders.
business model and overhead costs.

B’z AEBOKDEARABNEEHERE MERSFHEYRERREEERNEREREN

Project Performance

HEELD
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As the Group focuses on the high-end
facade market, the construction projects
that the Group undertakes are complex in
design, engineering, and construction. In
case of any failure to deliver the projects
on time, meet customers’ requirements,
and comply with its own cost assumptions
and reporting, the Group may face

the risks of financial loss, claims, and
reputational damage.
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Each business unit has defined operating
procedures to address the risks inherent in project
delivery. In addition, the Group’s risk management
system has been refined with intensified control,
which helps identify and quantify project-specific
risks and implement mitigating actions. This has
further strengthened the ability to manage the
project risks through common minimum standards
in project and commercial management.

With respect to the overseas market, the Group
adopts a conservative strategy, taking on only
new projects with substantial profit margins and
focusing on fulfilling the existing projects.
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Management Measures

EEIEN

Safety and Health

Infectious Disease

&

As the Group’s business involves
engineering and construction, which poses
considerable risks to safety and health,
the operation and reputation of the Group
will be significantly impacted by any
work-related injury or death incident of
workers.

AREFBNEBFRIREMT FEEA
MZTHEEFRRR  WELEETERIEST
i BLEBEENBEASHE

The COVID-19 pandemic has not yet

fully ended. With the gradual lifting of
global anti-pandemic measures, the risk of
spreading influenza viruses and mutated
strains will likely increase in the workplace,
which can affect daily operations.
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The Group has formulated and implemented the
Work Safety Supervision and Management System,
Corporate Safety Management System Manual —
Internal Code of Conduct on Safety, and Safety
and Health Policy. The Group has also established a
safety management committee which is responsible
for holding regular meetings to review existing
internal safety policies and measures. At each
project site, the Group deploys safety supervisors
to conduct internal risk assessments and ensure
adequate precautionary measures are provided,
which can provide a healthy and safe working
environment for employees and subcontractor
workers.

AEBEHENEMR(EEEELEEERGIE)
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The Group has set up a committee for pandemic
prevention and control which would closely
monitor the policy requirements and adjust the
measures in light of the actual circumstances, in
order to maintain the daily operations. We will
continue to maintain some current anti-pandemic
measures, including the provision of sufficient
preventive materials for employees, good
ventilation and frequent disinfection in office
areas, and policy and technical support for remote
working.
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Risk Description Management Measures
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Product Quality and Product quality and responsibility are The Group carries out quality management in
Responsibility essential to safety in the engineering and  strict accordance with the ISO 9001-2015 quality
construction industries. Should any defect management system requirements. The Group
of the quality control system result in has formulated and implemented internal quality

quality or service problems, the Group may management systems such as the Manufacturing

face the risks of reputational damage and  Management System and the Heating

reduced competitiveness, profitability, and Management, promoting the institutionalization

market share. and standardization of product manufacturing and
quality management.

All products must undergo stringent procedures
for quality inspection before dispatching from
the factory in the facade construction business.
At the same time, a comprehensive product
protection procedure is conducted before delivery
to ensure the products are of high quality. In case
any quality issue is identified with the dispatched
products, the Group will investigate immediately
for verification and arrange recall and replacement
of the products timely.
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Management Measures

EEIEN

Supply Chain

e g

The Group is closely related to its supply
chain partners for successful operational
delivery, which also means the exposure to
various risks in the supply chain, including
financial, technical, quality, safety, and
ethics due to the subcontractors/suppliers.

In the post-pandemic era, the supply chain
continues to be confronted by pressure.
The change in policies in different
jurisdictions may hinder the transportation,
leading to the delivery difficulties from
time to time. Especially in the overseas
market, the transportation and logistics
sectors remain vulnerable.

AEBRDOEB N BB EERHEE R
DREE - I BERE RSB EE D 8%
EE sk mE RS RN HEERR
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The Group aims to develop long-term relationships
with key subcontractors or suppliers, working
closely with them to understand their operations.
The Group makes contingency plans to address
subcontractors'/suppliers’ failure and obtains
project retentions, bonds, and/or letters of credit
from subcontractors/suppliers where appropriate
to mitigate the impact of any insolvency. For other
non-financial factors, the Group also aims to work
as much as possible with preferred suppliers and
subcontractors who have undergone rigorous and
risk-based prequalification processes and share the
same values.

The Group also avoids being over-reliant on
any single supplier or subcontractor, so that the
operations can be maintained even when the
supply chain is being disrupted.
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Management Measures
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Climate Change

A

= ks
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As the frequency and impact of extreme
weather have increased, the risks posed
by climate change to the Group's business
have become more prominent (e.g.,
hurricanes, rainstorms, and floods may
cause damage to the construction sites;
Extremely hot weather may negatively
impact workers’ health. All these may

cause a delay in the construction progress).

Moreover, regulatory requirements have
been tightened in this regard, and a
more climate-resilient business model has
become an irresistible trend.

BEEmIm AR E IR R AP EREEM
SR Ml B S AN 52 [ 2R 75 7 2R e [ B 1B
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To address extreme weather, the Group has
formulated emergency measures and has arranged
all departments to implement proper prevention
work in office areas and construction sites.

In view of the transition risks such as policy, legal
and regulatory risks arising from climate change,
the Group will coordinate departments at all levels
to closely follow national policies and market
trends and take timely measures to mitigate the
impact on the Group’s business. The Group also
considers adopting the risk analysis and disclosure
framework of the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosure (“TCFD"). In addition, to
accelerate the low-carbon transformation, the
Group is committed to reducing the carbon
footprint during the entire cycle of design,
production, and installation in facade engineering.
In terms of investment and operation business,
the Group has drawn up the 14th Five-Year Plan,
paying close attention to market changes and
seeking opportunities for clean energy application
and development.
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Risk Description Management Measures
AR 35 BRI
Talents The inability to recruit and retain The Group recruits for critical positions based on
competent management staff and competency and leadership. The Board and the
employees who share the same value and  Group regularly review the succession planning
conduct code with the Group may hamper process to identify and develop talents with
the Group’s growth prospects. high potential. The Group provides appropriate
remuneration and incentive schemes to help attract
and retain key employees.
AT REBERRBEREER NI RRALE AEEERSHREBASDREE I LEET

Technological
Innovation

Bl &1

EEEBELREBTANESEEAEBRE
BREENRASENERNSR

Applying new technologies, such as
BIM and MiC, brings development
opportunities to the industry. Failure to
seize the opportunities may harm the
Group's competitiveness and long-term
development.

FWBIM ~ MICEFT MM ER BITETER
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The Group has set up a leading group for
innovation works and a design and development
group to carry out the R&D and application of new
technologies, including BIM, smart factory, and
modular facades with inner push-type installation
techniques. The subsidiaries of the Group have
formulated detailed guidance on technological
innovation and development, intellectual property
management, etc. In addition, the Group considers
collaborating with external R&D and/or academic
institutions to jointly develop new products and
services.
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Management Measures
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Business Conduct

[GES

-
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The Group operates in various markets
that present business conduct-related risks
involving fraud, bribery, or corruption,
whether by its own staff or third parties
such as partners or subcontractors. Those
risks are higher in some countries and
sectors. Overall, the construction industry
has a higher risk profile than other
industries.

AEBETRTISETEE ZEMHL
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The Group adopts a zero-tolerance attitude
towards corruption and associated corrupt
practices, strictly complying with the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance and any other anti-corruption
ordinance.

The Group has formulated and implemented

the Ethical and Disciplinary Code that strictly
prohibits any director or employee from soliciting
or accepting any benefit by virtue of their position
and work. Employees who detect any violation can
make an anonymous report through the internal
reporting mechanism. The Group also actively
provides anti-corruption training to its directors
and employees.

In addition, the Group implements risk assessment,
due diligence, and financial control throughout
the business process and operation. Any
non-compliance or defect in monitoring systems
will be timely addressed to minimize relevant risks.
REBHESREBNBRITARREEREE -
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Risk Description Management Measures
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Cyber and Cyber-attacks, data fraud or theft, failure ~ The Group strengthens its information security

Information Security

WERELLD
Legal
ER

of information infrastructure, and other
cybersecurity incidents may threaten

the integrity, confidentiality, and system
availability, negatively affecting the
Group's reputation, financial situation, and
operation.

BEWE  BHMFRER FERERR
MHEERER L2 EHNAETHBEIE TE
- REUERRRGAAN  HEERE
MBERRMEERREXTHEE -

The Group operates in different markets,
and its businesses are subject to a variety
of complex, demanding, and evolving
legal, tax, and regulatory requirements.

AEBERZETAMSEE  EXBEE
SEBEM BT R THERAER W
WREERE -

framework by enhancing authorization and
authentication mechanisms. To reduce cyber
security risks, the Group regularly backups

the data, encrypts important information and
formulates contingency plans in response to
different information security incidents. In addition,
the Group also provides regular training and
conducts phishing tests to promote the awareness
of cyber security.

REE R IR R EBREBE R AR(CERLE2RE
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The Group has established a legal department
staffed by qualified employees. The Group also
engages external lawyers or consultants to advise
on business activities and new legal policies,
making action plans to respond to any change
timely. In addition, the Group regularly reviews
compliance status against regulatory requirements.
The Group has formulated comprehensive policies,
guidelines, and manuals with proper training
courses provided to its employees.
RNEBERLDEREEHM  HEaBERNATAR
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The construction industry is regulated by the local authorities in which
the business units operate. In general, contractors must comply with
certain requirements mandated by the applicable laws and regulations
and may be required to obtain permits or licenses in order to carry
on certain businesses such as general contracting, facade contracting,
design and manufacturing, and construction supervision in certain
countries. Apart from the specific laws and regulations, the Group
is also subject to the general laws and regulations governing the
environment, employment, anti-competition and anti-corruption
regardless of its nature of business.

In addition, the Company, as a listed company, is subject to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Buy-backs, and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group seeks to ensure compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations through various measures such as internal controls and
approval procedures, trainings and oversight of various business units
with the designated resources at different levels of the Group.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

Sustainability Development

The Group has strengthened the sustainability governance structure
in 2022 to enhance the oversight of sustainability matters. The
Sustainability Committee was elevated to a Board committee in this
regard and is chaired by an Executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. Under the committee, the sustainability
leading group comprised of the senior management team was
formed, together with the sustainability working group, to assist the
supervision and implementation work.

Guided by the Group’s sustainability policy, we have developed 5
strategic sustainability focuses, including environmental management,
sustainable supply chain, talent development, community support and
technological innovation. We take a further step to develop targets
and action plans to realize our organizational goals gradually.
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Environmental Policy and Performance

The environmental policy stipulates our commitment to protect the
natural environment, and reduce the use of resources and waste from
our daily operations. We have established the management structure
to navigate the development of environmental practices and goals.
To foster our steps in achieving the carbon neutrality target, we also
utilize the sustainable financing instrument in support of our green
projects and sustainable practices. A green loan and sustainable linked
loan were successfully signed this year with the China Construction
Bank Corporation Hong Kong Branch and Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Asia) Limited respectively, which enables us to drive
business development in a responsible manner.

Our Relationship with Key Stakeholders

We always endeavor to maintain a good and long-term relationship
with our employees, customers and suppliers. We regularly
communicate to understand their opinions in order for improving the
Group’s sustainability performance.

Employee:
Talent Development

Employees are the key to long-term company success. Cultivating
knowledge and skills becomes an integral part of our employment.
We have a comprehensive set of policies in place for the management
of our human resources. A series of training programmes have been
provided to our employees with topics in relation to technical skills,
anti-corruption, safety, and health knowledge etc. Moreover, we
have established a target to increase average training hours of our
employees every year through structured training plans.

Health and Safety

In the construction industry, there are potential work-related safety
risks. We, therefore, take responsibility to provide a safe working
environment for our employees and prioritize safety among others.
Through establishing a safety taskforce, we strive to identify the
key risk factors of our business activities and ensure sufficient
precautionary and protective measures are in place to prevent any
accidents. Regular management and site meetings were conducted to
keep track of the safety performance of the Group.
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Customer:
Project Quality

We pledge to provide high-quality and innovative products to our
customers. We closely collaborate with our clients such as the property
developer and the main contractors, in order to understand and satisfy
their needs. By leveraging our technology, innovation, and expertise
in facade construction, we are able to provide a wide range of
innovative and environmental-friendly products, such as BIPV (Light S
product) and passive facade system. Our products undergo a stringent
inspection and verification process to ensure that the quality meets
with our internal policy and client specification.

Suppliers:
Sustainable Procurement

A collaborative relationship with the suppliers can improve our overall
product and construction quality. We are committed to monitoring
their environmental and social performance through the procurement
department’s supplier selection and evaluation process every year.
Any specific environmental, safety and health requirements are
clearly stated in the contract. Suppliers from the local community
who demonstrate a good performance in environmental aspects
are prioritized, with an aim to reduce our emission arising from the
transportation and manufacturing process of the materials.

Details of the sustainability management, targets and measures can be
found in the Company’s Sustainability Report 2022.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 215.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Particulars of the movements of property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company completed a placing of an aggregate of 100,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company held by Add Treasure Holdings
Limited at a placing price of HK$2.20 per share to six or more
independent placees on 22 June 2022, and allotted and issued
100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a subscription price
of HK$2.20 per share to Add Treasure Holdings Limited on 24 June
2022, pursuant to a top-up placing arrangement. Details of the top-up
placing arrangement are set out in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this Annual Report.
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RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2022
amounted to HK$1,305,861,000 (2021: HK$1,042,643,000).
Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements
and the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 111
respectively.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report
are:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Zhang Haipeng

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Mingging (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Hai
Mr. Wong Man Cheung'

Non-executive Director
Mr. Huang Jiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Jinsong

Mr. Hong Winn’

Ms. Kwong Sum Yee Anna’
Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie'
Mr. Zhang Xinyu'

' Appointment effective 1 July 2022
? Resignation effective 1 July 2022

Notes:

Pursuant to article 84(1) of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Zhang Haipeng and Mr. Wu Mingqging will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Wong Man Cheung, Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie and Mr. Zhang Xinyu who
were appointed by the Board, will hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The change in emoluments of the Directors is set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company has received annual confirmation from all Independent
Non-executive Directors regarding their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered each of them to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company discloses
that during the year, Messrs. Zhang Haipeng, Wu Mingging and
Huang Jiang held directorships and/or senior management positions
in the Company’s holding companies and/or their subsidiaries. These
companies are engaged in construction, property development and
related businesses.

The Board is independent of the boards of directors of the Company’s
holding companies and their subsidiaries. With the presence of
appropriate portion of Independent Non-executive Directors in the
Board, the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently
of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of its holding group.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

The articles of association of the Company provides that every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred or sustained by him
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of his duty as a Director provided that this indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attach to the Director. A directors and officers insurance policy is
in place to protect the Directors against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
adopted by the Company (the “Model Code") were as follows:

(a) Interests and short positions in the

shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company

Long positions in the shares of the Company

EERNEKRND HEROKRES
Mz MK

M2022F12A31  EFRARAEETHRAER
Aol EAMEEEZE(EERBSFRBER
Bl [ 35 5 RS G0 EXVED) MG - KRG
REHFHPHES  WEREFESRBAE G EXVE
FIRSDEBAM AR REBHEXRZMERA
Al ([BRFT]) M= AR (BIEBEE SRS
ERNABENESRARBIERITERABHER
ARERBRENRZRAR)  KEEAR AR
BHREEIEMNEIS2EREFENELMadsk
LIRBARFMEMN EMBITAEZETES
RPWZESFA([EESFA]) BB AR 7 K5
REFTMEZRABWT ¢

(a) RADARMD - HEAKRGRE
SHWEZRKRE

RARBIRIDEO R

Number of

ordinary shares % of shares in

(Note)

Name of Director Capacity Nature of Interests held issue
FilsE thEBRTRG

ML 51 M EBRHE  EoL™Y

Zhang Haipeng Beneficial owner Personal interest 4,000,000 0.177

&8 g EmEA A B A # 5

Wu Mingging Beneficial owner Personal interest 5,500,000 0.244

RAF ExnfA A & A R 2

Huang Jiang Beneficial owner Personal interest 3,000,000 0.133

=pan Exn#EAA [EPNG: $

Note: The percentage is based on the total number of ordinary shares of
the Company in issue as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. 2,255,545,000
shares).
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(b) Interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the associated corporations of the
Company
Long positions in the shares of the associated
corporations of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Zhang Haipeng had personal
interests in 880,000 A-shares, representing approximately
0.002% of the then issued voting shares, in China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited (“CSCECL"),
held in his capacity as beneficial owner; and Mr. Wang Hai
had personal interests in 300,000 A-shares,
approximately 0.001% of the then issued voting shares, in
CSCECL held in his capacity as beneficial owner. The Company
was informed that all the interests in A-shares in CSCECL held by
Directors were granted to them by CSCECL pursuant to its share

representing

award scheme (details are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Nor any of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company (including their spouses and
children under the age of 18), during the year ended 31 December
2022, held any interests in, or was granted any right to subscribe for,
the securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURE

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2022 was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS
IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts that are
significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director or his/
her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the Company’s business were entered into or existed during the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of the Company,
as at 31 December 2022, other than the interests of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company as disclosed above, the following
persons had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company

RAERBROHER

Number of
ordinary shares % of shares
Name of Shareholder Capacity held in issue®”
FREEER MEBRTRG
Add Treasure Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1,596,403,279 70.78
("Add Treasure”)
MEBEREBERAR(NED) EmEAA
China State Construction International Interest in controlled corporation 1,596,403,279 70.78
Holdings Limited (“CSC")?
PR REBREEERA A REIEHEE K
(ThEREEREE])?
China Overseas Holdings Limited (“COHL")? Interest in controlled corporation 1,596,403,279 70.78
hERENEBAR AR ([HEEHN])P MRZEHEE R
B 2R ) B TR A A)(China State Interest in controlled corporation 1,596,403,279 70.78
Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited) (“CSCECL")?
RERERMARAR ([HERHD] REIEHEE K
SR EE AR A Al(China State Interest in controlled corporation 1,596,403,279 70.78
Construction Engineering Corporation*)
("CSCEC")?
FEREEEARAR ([REEE]) REEHDEE N R
Notes: MiEE -
1. The percentage is based on the total number of ordinary shares of the 1. AN TYIREARRQ R FR2022F12HA31H 2 %
Company in issue as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. 2,255,545,000 shares). TEBAR L (02,255,545,0000%) 5T &
2. Add Treasure is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSC which, in turn, is 2. MEATHEZERBHNE2ENBAT  MH
owned as to approximately 64.81% by COHL. COHL is a wholly-owned EONRIEE R R 4964.81% M A% 9 4E
subsidiary of CSCECL which, in turn, is a subsidiary of CSCEC. By virtue S AR EINAEPEBEOHNEZEWNBAT M

of the SFO, each of CSC, COHL, CSCECL and CSCEC is deemed to be
interested in the same 1,596,403,279 shares held by Add Treasure.

TEBEODTREENHEAR - REFF R
HBRGEARE  FEZERR  PREN TR

BHOERTREEBRSHEARMEFENR—#
1,596,403,2790% B¢ 15 B s o

*  for identification purpose only
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no other person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had
any interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The connected and continuing connected transactions required to
be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are
disclosed on pages 83 to 96.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined a mandatory
provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme"”) for all employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. The Group's employees outside Hong Kong are primarily
covered by the respective defined contribution schemes in accordance
with local legislation and practices. During the year, the Group
made contribution to these schemes amounting to approximately
HK$93,265,000. No forfeited contribution under these schemes are
available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company, or the laws of Cayman Islands, being
the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this Annual Report, based on publicly available
information and within the Directors’ knowledge, more than 25% of
the Company'’s issued share capital was held by the public.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers combined was less than 30% of the
total purchases of the Group. The five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 44.1% of the total revenue of the Group
and the revenue from the largest customer included therein accounted
for approximately 11.2%. The second and third largest customers
are subsidiaries of a controlling shareholder of the Company whereas
the fifth largest customer is another controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year did a Director,
close associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) have an interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

made any purchase, sale or redemption of any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers retired, and Ernst & Young was appointed,
as auditor of the Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 28 May 2020.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other change in the auditor of
the Company in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2023 annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

China State Construction Development Holdings Limited
Zhang Haipeng

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2023
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2022:

1. CSCECL Sub-construction Engagement
Agreement

On 19 October 2020, the Company entered into an agreement
("CSCECL Sub-construction Engagement Agreement”) with
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
("CSCECL") to renew the previous agreement entered into
between the parties on 11 October 2017. Pursuant to the
CSCECL Sub-construction Engagement Agreement, CSCECL and
its subsidiaries (together, the "CSCECL Group”) may engage
the Group as sub-contractor or service provider (as the case may
be) for provision of contracting and engineering works, project
consultancy service and project management service for the
CSCECL Group's construction works for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December
2023, provided that the total contract sum that may be
awarded by the CSCECL Group to the Group under the CSCECL
Sub-construction Engagement Agreement for each year shall not
exceed HK$1,000 million.

The Group will normally need to go through a tender or
similar process before being selected and appointed by the
CSCECL Group, or nominated by the ultimate employer, as
sub-contractor for the provision of contracting and engineering
works or service provider for provision of project consultancy
service and project management service (as the case may be)
for the CSCECL Group’'s construction works. The prices and
terms of the tenders are subject to the standard and systematic
tender submission procedures maintained by the Group, which
apply to tenders submitted to both connected persons and
independent third parties. In preparing and assessing the tender
documents, the Group will consider the technical requirements,
quantity specifications, expected completion time, customer’s
expectations and possible risks associated with a project. In
determining the pricing terms, the Group will review the costs
information maintained in its in-house database for material
supplies and contract prices from sub-contractors for the Group’s
previous projects and peripheral operation. The Group will also
review and compare previous tender prices submitted to both
connected persons and independent third parties so as to ensure
that the tender price to be submitted is no more favourable to
the CSCECL Group than those submitted to independent third
parties.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
FER S

Where the Group submits tender directly to the ultimate
employer and is nominated by the ultimate employer as
subcontractor or service provider of the CSCECL Group (as the
case may be), consideration to the Group will be ascertained by
the ultimate employer or its independent professional quantity
surveyor.

CSCECL is an intermediate holding company of the Company.
Accordingly, members of the CSCECL Group are connected
persons of the Company and the transactions contemplated
under the CSCECL Sub-construction Engagement Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions were
disclosed in the announcement dated 19 October 2020 and the
circular dated 20 November 2020. The CSCECL Sub-construction
Engagement Agreement was duly approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 11 December 2020.

CSC Sub-construction Engagement
Agreement and New CSC
Sub-construction Engagement Agreement

On 24 March 2020, the Company entered into an agreement
("CSC Sub-construction Engagement Agreement”) with China
State Construction International Holdings Limited (“CSC")
to supersede and replace the previous agreement entered
into between the parties on 11 October 2017. Under the
CSC Sub-construction Engagement Agreement, CSC and its
subsidiaries (together, the “CSC Group”) may engage the Group
as sub-contractor for provision of contracting and engineering
works, project consultancy service and project management
service for the CSC Group's construction works for a term
of three years commencing from 1 July 2020 and ending
on 30 June 2023, provided that the total contract sum that
may be awarded by the CSC Group to the Group under the
CSC Sub-construction Engagement Agreement for the period
between 1 July 2020 and 31 December 2020, each of the two
years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 and
the period between 1 January 2023 and 30 June 2023 shall not
exceed HK$3,000 million, HK$3,500 million, HK$3,500 million
and HK$3,000 million, respectively (the “Existing Annual Caps”).
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On 25 March 2022, the Company entered into a new agreement
(“New CSC Sub-construction Engagement Agreement”) with
CSC to revise the annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions pertaining thereto, and to supersede and replace
the CSC Sub-construction Engagement Agreement, whereby
the CSC Group may engage the Group as subcontractor of the
CSC Group for provision of contracting and engineering works,
project consultancy service and project management service for
the CSC Group's construction works for a term of three years
commencing from 1 July 2022 and ending on 30 June 2025,
provided that the total contract sum that may be awarded by the
CSC Group to the Group under the New CSC Sub-construction
Engagement Agreement for the period between 1 July 2022
and 31 December 2022, each of the two years ending 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2024 and the period between
1 January 2025 and 30 June 2025 shall not exceed HK$5,000
million, HK$7,000 million, HK$7,000 million and HK$4,000
million, respectively (the “New Annual Caps”). The New CSC
Sub-construction Engagement Agreement shall supersede and
replace the CSC Sub-construction Engagement Agreement with
effect from 1 July 2022 whereupon the balance of the Existing
Annual Caps (if any) remained available on 30 June 2022 will
be cancelled and replaced by the New Annual Caps with effect
from 1 July 2022.

As for the provision of contracting and engineering works, the
Group will normally need to go through a tender or similar
process before being selected and appointed by the CSC Group,
or nominated by the ultimate employer, as subcontractor of
the CSC Group. The price and terms of a tender are subject
to the standard and systematic tender submission procedures
of the Group which apply to tenders submitted to both
connected persons and independent third parties. In preparing
and assessing the tender documents, the Group will consider
the technical requirements, quantity specifications, expected
completion time, customer’s expectations and possible risks
associated with the project. In determining the pricing terms,
the Group will review the costs information maintained in
its in-house database for material supplies and prices from
sub-contractors for the Group's previous projects and peripheral
operation. The Group will also review and compare previous
tender prices submitted to both connected persons and
independent third parties so as to ensure that the tender price
to be submitted is no more favourable than those submitted to
independent third parties.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
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Where the Group submits the tender directly to the ultimate
employer and is nominated by the ultimate employer as
sub-contractor to the CSC Group, consideration to the Group
will be ascertained by an independent professional quantity
surveyor appointed by the ultimate employer.

As for the provision of project management service and project
consultancy service, the Group is typically engaged to provide
such services through direct appointment by the CSC Group.
The price and terms of each service provided to the CSC Group
shall be determined on a fair basis and on normal commercial
terms based on the scale, degree of difficulty of the project,
geographical location and duration of the project. The service
fees are determined based on a percentage of not more than
20% of the value or remaining value of the projects.

CSC is an intermediate holding company of the Company.
Accordingly, members of the CSC Group are connected persons
of the Company and the transactions contemplated under each
of the CSC Sub-construction Engagement Agreement and the
New CSC Sub-construction Engagement Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of the CSC Sub-construction Engagement
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement dated 24
March 2020 and the circular dated 17 April 2020. The CSC
Sub-construction Engagement Agreement was duly approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 28 May 2020. Details of the New CSC
Sub-construction Engagement Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement dated 25 March 2022 and the circular dated
29 April 2022. The New CSC Sub-construction Engagement
Agreement was duly approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 8
June 2022.
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CSC Operational Services Agreement

On 19 October 2020, the Company entered into an agreement
(“CSC Operational Services Agreement”) with CSC in relation to
the engagement of the CSC Group by the Group for provision
of mechanical and electrical engineering works, leasing of
machineries, provision of insurance services and issuance of
surety bonds, and supply of building materials to renew the
previous agreement entered into between the parties on 11
October 2017.

3.1

Mechanical and Electrical Engineering Works
Transactions

Under the CSC Operational Services Agreement, the
Group may engage the CSC Group as sub-contractor for
provision of mechanical and electrical engineering works
for the Group’s construction works (“Mechanical and
Electrical Engineering Works Transactions”) for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2021 and ending
on 31 December 2023, provided that the total contract
sum that may be awarded by the Group to the CSC Group
in respect of the Mechanical and Electrical Engineering
Works Transactions for each year shall not exceed HK$450
million.

Where the CSC Group is nominated as sub-contractor by
the ultimate employer, consideration to the CSC Group will
be ascertained by an independent professional quantity
surveyor appointed by the ultimate employer.
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3.2

Where the Group has the right to select contractors,
consideration to such contractors will be ascertained
under the supervision of an in-house qualified professional
quantity surveyor. Depending on the scale of a project
and the estimated value of the sub-construction contract,
the Group will shortlist at least three contractors from
its own list of pre-approved contractors to be invited to
tender based on the general selection criteria including
but not limited to the contractor’'s qualification grade,
financial stability, technical capability, cooperation record,
project management ability, quality of work and business
management capability and any specific criteria as required
for the project. If the contractors on the Group's list of
pre-approved contractors are not suitable for the works,
the CSC Group will participate in a tender with all bidders
(including independent third parties in the market).
The winning bid will be the one with the lowest tender
amount in accordance with the Group’s internal tender
procedures on the condition that the bidder also satisfies
all other essential requirements (including but not limited
to relevant experience, capability and historical relationship
and track records) as set out in the bid invitation.

Machineries Leasing Transactions

Under the CSC Operational Services Agreement, the Group
may lease machineries from the CSC Group for the Group'’s
construction works (“Machineries Leasing Transactions”)
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2021 and ending on 31 December 2023, provided that the
total rent payable in respect of the Machineries Leasing
Transactions for each year shall not exceed HK$25 million.

The Group will obtain at least three quotations from a
list of pre-approved vendors (which is subject to periodic
review and update by its management to ensure vendors’
machineries and equipment are in good operational
conditions). For the selection of a vendor, the lowest
quotation will be selected on the condition that the vendor
also satisfies all other essential requirements (including
but not limited to the specification and condition of the
machinery and equipment).

3.2.
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3.3

3.4

Insurance Services and Surety Bonds Transactions

Under the CSC Operational Services Agreement, the Group
may engage the CSC Group for provision of insurance
services (including but not limited to Public Liability
Employees’ Compensation insurance and Contractors’ All
Risks insurance) to the Group and issuance of surety bonds
for the Group’s construction works (“Insurance Services
and Surety Bonds Transactions”) for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31
December 2023, provided that the total premiums/fees
payable in respect of the Insurance Services and Surety
Bonds Transactions for each year shall not exceed HK$70
million.

The Group will obtain at least three quotations from
independent insurers (directly or indirectly through
insurance brokers) and the CSC Group. For the selection
of the insurers, the lowest quotation will be selected on
the condition that the insurer also satisfies other essential
requirements (including but not limited to paying ability,
financial strength, specialisation, historical relationship and
record of claim refusal).

Supply of Building Materials Transactions

Under the CSC Operational Services Agreement, the CSC
Group may supply building materials to the Group for the
Group's construction works (“Supply of Building Materials
Transactions”) for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023,
provided that the total sum payable in respect of the
Supply of Building Materials Transactions for each year
shall not exceed HK$150 million.

The Group will obtain at least three quotations from a
list of pre-approved suppliers (which is subject to periodic
review and update by its management to ensure a
portfolio of best in class suppliers is available for use). For
the selection of a supplier, the lowest quotation will be
selected on the condition that the supplier also satisfies
all other essential requirements (including but not limited
to relevant experience, qualities and specifications of
materials and track records).

3.3.

3.4.
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CSC is an intermediate holding company of the Company.
Accordingly, members of the CSC Group are connected
persons of the Company, and the Mechanical and
Electrical Engineering Works Transactions, Machineries
Leasing Transactions, Insurance Services and Surety Bonds
Transactions and Supply of Building Materials Transactions
contemplated under the CSC Operational Services
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the
transactions were disclosed in the announcement dated
19 October 2020 and the circular dated 20 November
2020. The CSC Operational Services Agreement was
duly approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 11
December 2020.

COLI Framework Agreement

On 29 March 2021, the Company entered into a new agreement
("COLI Framework Agreement”) with China Overseas Land &
Investment Limited (“COLI") to renew the previous agreement
entered into between the parties on 26 June 2018. Pursuant
to the COLI Framework Agreement, for a term of three years
commencing from 1 July 2021 and ending on 30 June 2024,
each of COLI and its subsidiaries (together, the “COLI Group”),
and the companies held as to 30% to 50% by the COLI Group
and their respective subsidiaries (excluding the COLI Group,
China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited and its subsidiaries)
(together, the “Minority Controlled Group”) may engage
the Group, and the Group may act as contractor or service
provider (as the case may be), for provision of contracting
and engineering works, project management, supervision and
consultancy services (“COLI Works”) in relation to the respective
construction works of the COLlI Group and the Minority
Controlled Group, provided that the maximum total contract
sums of works contracts in respect of the COLI Works that
may be awarded to the Group shall not exceed HK$310 million
for the period between 1 July 2021 and 31 December 2021,
HK$310 million for the year ending 31 December 2022, HK$510
million for the year ending 31 December 2023, and HK$155
million for the period between 1 January 2024 and 30 June
2024.
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The Group will normally need to go through a tender or similar
process before being selected and engaged by the COLI Group
or the Minority Controlled Group (as the case may be) for the
COLI Works. The prices and terms of the tender proposals
submitted by the Group to the COLI Group and the Minority
Controlled Group for the COLI Works are subject to the standard
and systematic tender submission procedures of the Group,
which apply to tender proposals submitted to both connected
persons and independent third parties. In determining the
pricing terms, the Group will conduct quantitative comparison
between the cost information maintained in its in-house
database for material and labour costs, and subcontractors’
quotations, and the preliminary quotations from subcontractors
and material suppliers, for cost estimation. The Group will also
take into account the contract value of the previous winning
bids, relevant market information such as material price trends,
and the chance of winning a bid. The Group will review and
compare the prices of previous tender proposals submitted to
both connected persons and independent third parties, so as to
ensure that the tender price is no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to independent third parties.

China Overseas Holdings Limited (“COHL") is a controlling
shareholder of both COLI and the Company. Accordingly,
members of the COLlI Group are connected persons of the
Company and the transactions contemplated under the COLI
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. Details
of the transactions were disclosed in the announcement dated
29 March 2021 and the circular dated 23 April 2021. The COLI
Framework Agreement was duly approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
held on 9 June 2021.
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COGO Framework Agreement

On 24 March 2021, the Company entered into a new agreement
(“COGO Framework Agreement”) with China Overseas Grand
Oceans Group Limited (“COGQO") to renew the previous
agreement entered into between the parties on 26 June 2018.
Pursuant to the COGO Framework Agreement, for a term of
three years commencing from 1 July 2021 and ending on 30
June 2024, the Group may tender for, and upon successful
tender, COGO and its subsidiaries (together, the “COGO
Group”) may engage the Group as service provider for provision
of project management, supervision and consultancy services
in relation to the property development projects of the COGO
Group in the PRC ("COGO Management Services”) provided that
the maximum total contract sums of service contracts in respect
of the COGO Management Services that may be awarded by the
COGO Group to the Group shall not exceed (i) HK$30 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB25 million) for the period
between 1 July 2021 and 31 December 2021; (ii) HK$60 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB50 million) for each of the
two years ending 31 December 2023; and (iii) HK$30 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB25 million) for the period
between 1 January 2024 and 30 June 2024.

The prices and terms of the tender proposals submitted by the
Group to the COGO Group are subject to the standard and
systematic tender submission procedures of the Group, which
apply to tender proposals submitted to both connected persons
and independent third parties. In determining the pricing terms,
the Group will conduct quantitative comparison between the
cost information maintained in its in-house database for labour
costs and subcontractors’ quotations, and the preliminary
guotations obtained from subcontractors, for cost estimation.
The Group will also take into account the contract value of the
previous winning bids and the chance of winning a bid. The
Group will review and compare the prices of previous tender
proposals submitted to both connected persons and independent
third parties, so as to ensure that the tender price is no less
favourable to the Group than those offered to independent third
parties.

COHL is a controlling shareholder of both COGO and the
Company. Accordingly, members of the COGO Group are
connected persons of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the COGO Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the
announcement dated 24 March 2021.
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Framework Agreement with CSC for
Hong Kong Building Construction Main
Contracts

On 22 October 2019, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (“JV Framework Agreement”) with CSC, pursuant to
which CSC and the Company (or their respective subsidiaries)
may cooperate to enter into the main contract(s) (the “Hong
Kong Building Construction Main Contracts”) for private
sector building construction works in Hong Kong (the “Hong
Kong Building Construction Works”) as joint venture main
contractor at the request of CSC or the Company for the
period commencing from 20 December 2019 and ending on
30 June 2022 provided that the total contract sum that may be
awarded jointly to CSC and the Company (or their respective
subsidiaries) as joint venture main contractor for the period
from 20 December 2019 to 31 December 2019 shall not
exceed HK$1,000 million, for each of the two years ending 31
December 2021 shall not exceed HK$2,000 million, and for the
period from 1 January 2022 to 30 June 2022 shall not exceed
HK$2,000 million.

The cooperation between CSC and the Company (or their
respective subsidiaries) as contemplated by the JV Framework
Agreement will take the form of contractual joint venture in
accordance with terms customary in the construction industry
in Hong Kong. CSC (or its subsidiary) and the Company (or its
subsidiary) may participate in the tendering process or such other
prescribed contract award process as may be implemented by
the relevant third-party developer/owner client as joint venture
main contractor if the Company (or its subsidiary), after making
qualitative and quantitative assessment of the scoring criteria of
such process, determines that such joint venture will maximise
the scoring of the tendering process and therefore enhance the
chance of successful award of the contract.

As a general principle and in accordance with market practice,
the contract sum with respect to the Hong Kong Building
Construction Main Contracts shall be determined in the ordinary
course of business on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s
length basis after a tendering process or such other prescribed
contract award process as may be implemented by the relevant
third-party developer/owner client.
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CSC is an intermediate holding company of the Company.
Accordingly, members of the CSC Group are connected persons
of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
JV Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of
the transactions were disclosed in the announcement dated 22
October 2019 and the circular dated 22 November 2019. The JV
Framework Agreement was duly approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 18 December 2019.

Connection Services Framework
Agreement and New Connection Services
Framework Agreement

On 30 December 2019, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (“Connection Services Framework Agreement”) with
COLI, pursuant to which the COLI Group may engage the Group
for the provision of heating pipes connection services for the real
estate projects which are located in the PRC and developed by
the COLI Group (“Heating Pipes Projects”) (i.e. the Connection
Services) from time to time for the period commencing from
1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2022 provided
that the total contract sum that may be awarded by the COLI
Group to the Group under the Connection Services Framework
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2022 shall not exceed HK$70 million.

As the Connection Services Framework Agreement would have
expired on 31 December 2022 and the Directors expected that
the COLI Group would continue to engage the Group for the
provision of the Connection Services from time to time, the
Company entered into a new agreement (“New Connection
Services Framework Agreement”) with COLI on 25 October
2022 to renew the Connection Services Framework Agreement.
Pursuant to the New Connection Services Framework Agreement,
the COLI Group may engage the Group for the provision of the
Connection Services for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025, provided that
the total contract sum which may be awarded to the Group by
the COLI Group under the New Connection Services Framework
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December
2025 shall not exceed HK$50 million.
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The fees for the Connection Services will be determined by the
Group with reference to the pricing standard published by the
Shenyang local authorities, the prevailing market price of similar
heating services offered by other comparable service providers
in the vicinity of the Heating Pipes Projects, the coverage of
heating services, the location, size and development status of
the Heating Pipes Projects, heat capacity and the cost of heating
pipes connection.

The price and terms of the tenders submitted by the Group to
the COLI Group for the Connection Services are subject to the
standard and systematic tender submission procedures of the
Group which apply to tenders submitted to both connected
persons and independent third parties of the Group, in order
to ensure that the price and terms of the proposed tender
submitted by the Group to the COLI Group are no more
favourable than those submitted to independent third parties.

COHL is a controlling shareholder of both COLI and the
Company. Accordingly, members of the COLI Group are
connected persons of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under each of the Connection Services Framework
Agreement and the New Connection Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the Connection
Services Framework Agreement and the New Connection Services
Framework Agreement were disclosed in the announcements
dated 30 December 2019 and 25 October 2022 respectively.

A summary of all related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 is contained in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements. Except for the transactions
with fellow subsidiaries set out in paragraph (a)(i) of the note which
were entered into by the Group pursuant to the continuing connected
transactions described above, none of the related party transactions
described therein constitute “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2022, each of the
continuing connected transactions mentioned above has been subject
to annual review by the Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules who have concluded that each
continuing connected transaction has been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing it on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Based on the work performed, the auditor has confirmed in a letter to
the Board that:

a. nothing has come to the attention of the auditor that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

C. nothing has come to the attention of the auditor that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the attention
of the auditor that causes them to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual
caps set by the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

e

Ernst & Young ZXE TR E AT
EY 27/F, One Taikoo Place & & A F
§j‘ 979 King's Road HEEI795%

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong ~ A&th—E 27 18

To the shareholders of China State Construction Development
Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
State Construction Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 107 to 214,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
Revenue recognition from construction works

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised revenue
from construction works of HK$6,679 million. Most construction works
take several years to complete and the scope of work may change
during that time. Management estimate the revenue and budgeted
costs at the commencement of the contracts and regularly assess the
progress of construction works as well as the financial impact of scope
changes, claims, disputes and liquidated damages. The management'’s
estimate of revenue, budgeted costs as well as the progress of related
construction works requires significant judgement and has a significant
impact on the amount and timing of revenue recognised.

For this reason, we identified revenue recognition from construction
works as a key audit matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures in relation to the revenue
recognition from construction works are included in notes 2.4, 4(i) and
5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the revenue recognition from
construction works included the following:

o understanding and evaluating the Group’s process and control
over contract revenue recognition and budget estimation;

o testing the calculation of the revenue and profit recognised from
construction contracts;

o discussing with management and the respective project teams
about the progress of major projects and the assumptions
adopted in the forecast of contract costs, including estimated
costs to completion and assessment of potential liquidated
damages for major contracts;

o testing on a sample basis the actual costs incurred on
construction works during the reporting period;

o testing the supporting documents of the budgets on a sample
basis, which include sub-contracting contracts, material purchase
contracts/invoices and price quotations, etc.; and

o comparing last year’s budget against the current year’s budget
or actual costs incurred for major contracts on a sample basis.

Key audit matter
Recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recognised net trade receivables
of HK$1,733 million and contract assets of HK$3,998 million, which
were significant assets of the Group as of the year end, representing
56% of total assets.

In assessing the recoverability of trade receivables and contract
assets, management exercised significant judgements to evaluate the
collectability from individual customers after taking into account their
creditworthiness, whether they have financial difficulties, experience of
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy, ageing analysis and forecast of future
events and economic conditions which may impact the recoverability
of trade receivables and contract assets.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

This area has been identified as a key audit matter due to the
judgements applied by management which have a significant impact
on the level of provision required for trade receivables and contract
assets.

The accounting policies and disclosures in relation to the recoverability
of trade receivables and contract assets are included in notes 2.4, 4(v),
21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade receivables
and contract assets included the following:

o understanding, evaluating and validating on a sample basis
the design and operating effectiveness of management control
over the collection and the assessment of the recoverability of
receivables and contract assets;

o testing on a sample basis the ageing of trade receivables at year
end;

o testing on a sample basis subsequent settlements and the latest
amounts certified by quantity surveyors appointed by customers;

o in respect of material trade receivables and contract assets,
inspecting relevant contracts and correspondence with the
customers, and assessing their creditworthiness with reference
to publicly available information, where applicable;

o in respect of material trade receivables balances which are
past due, additional procedures were performed to evaluate
their historical progress payment records, assessing whether
the customers are experiencing financial difficulties, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, and assessing
the probability that the customers will enter bankruptcy with
reference to publicly available information, where applicable;
and

o evaluating the level of provisions made by management for
trade receivables and contract assets using forward-looking and
historical information.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

Assessment of the carrying amount of deferred tax assets of Gamma
USA, Inc. and impairment of goodwill in Gamma North America, Inc.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group carried goodwill of HK$113
million before current year impairment, from the acquisition of a
55% equity interest in Gamma North America, Inc. The Group has
also recognised deferred tax assets of HK$50 million before current
year write down, which is mainly attributable to the tax losses in
Gamma USA, Inc. The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon
management judgement that it is probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available in the future to utilise available tax losses.

In view of the significance of the carrying amounts of both deferred
tax assets and goodwill as at 31 December 2022, management
performed an assessment of the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets of Gamma USA, Inc. as well as an impairment assessment of the
goodwill of Gamma North America, Inc. A write down of deferred tax
assets of HK$50 million and impairment of goodwill of HK$25 million
were recognised in profit or loss during the year.

For the purpose of the goodwill impairment assessment, Gamma USA,
Inc. and Gamma Windows and Walls International, Inc. were assessed
as a single cash generating unit (“CGU"). The recoverable amount
of a CGU is determined based on the value-in-use calculation which
requires the use of management estimates. Cash flow projections used
in the value-in-use calculation were based on the financial budgets
approved by management. The estimated discount rates, revenue
growth rates and gross margins were specific to the risks related to
the CGU.

A change in the assumptions used for the impairment assessment
may impact the carrying amount of the deferred tax assets and the
impairment assessment of goodwill. As the assessments involve
significant judgements and estimates, this is identified as a key audit
matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures in relation to the assessment
of the carrying amount of deferred tax assets and impairment of
goodwill are included in notes 2.4, 4(iii), 4(iv), 9, 18 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures to assess the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets of Gamma USA, Inc. and impairment of the goodwill on
acquisition of Gamma North America, Inc. included the following:

o understanding and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of management control over the review of the
financial budgets;

o assessing the key assumptions used by management in the
assessment of the carrying amount of deferred tax assets and
value-in-use calculations in the impairment assessment of
goodwill, including revenue growth rates, gross margins and
taxable profits by comparing them with economic and industry
forecasts. We compared the current year actual results with the
prior year forecasts to assess the reasonableness of financial
budgets approved by management;

o involving our internal valuation experts to assess the valuation
methodology and comparing the discount rates applied by
management to other comparable companies in the same
industry;

o assessing management’s sensitivity analysis of the impact on
the impairment assessment of goodwill through reasonably
possible deviations to the assumptions, such as changes in
expected revenue growth rates and discount rates, applied by
management; and

o comparing the market inputs used by management to available
market information.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. CHUNG, Ho Ling.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
e lER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12 A31H IEFE

202058 GTHEXREEEEERAT

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = BET T BT T
REVENUE EHEE 5 7,668,983 6,294,827
Costs of sales EEKA 7 (6,843,678) (5,617,973)
Gross profit E 7 825,305 676,854
Other income and gains, net HMWA R - F8 6 25,432 22,622
Administrative, selling and other T - HEREMEEER
operating expenses 7 (291,422) (273,993)
Share of profit of an associate iy N PR 116 44
Finance costs B%ER 8 (51,217) (29,554)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AR A 508,214 395,973
Income tax charge FristHi&R 9 (98,254) (112,066)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR = | 409,960 283,907
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:  Z4F fE(LEF]/ (EE)
Owners of the Company NN 421,852 291,976
Non-controlling interests R A (11,892) (8,069)
409,960 283,907
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AN & IX 2 & 15 & IE B F)
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Earnings per share TR & A
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE GBI 13 19.11 13.55

—— — ==
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 124310 IEFE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A5 i A 409,960 283,907
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hiarmikz (EE)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or FABEEF PP 1By IH A -
loss:
Exchange differences arising on BENIMEEEERER 5
translation of foreign operations (106,297) 99,172
Exchange differences arising on MERBE AT EREN
translation of an associate 2 222 211)
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that BEEMORIBER EMEE
may be reclassified to profit or loss (Eﬂﬁl)/”ﬂl iR (106,075) 98,961
Items that will not be reclassified to profit BT EEF S EE BB -
or loss:
Gain on fair value changes of investment BYE - BMELAREERIKE
properties transferred from property, MERAAREBEEE W -
plant and equipment, net of tax B 75 18 10,943 -
Other comprehensive income that will not ~ T&@EHHEIIER Hib2E
be reclassified to profit or loss U 10,943 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME AREHM2E (EE) WS
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX OF NIL kTN (95,132) 98,961
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE ~ AR&E2E Uz © NBFBE SR
YEAR, NET OF TAX 314,828 382,868
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the AERGE2EM G (FB8) @5
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NECT LS 327,791 390,402
Non-controlling interests JE ¥ R E o (12,963) (7,534)
314,828 382,868
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2022

72022412 A31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=2 BET T PR T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 14 2,019,759 2,269,207
Investment properties wEYE 15 18,864 -
Interests in infrastructure project EEBEEREER
investments 17 40,075 64,539
Interests in an associate REEE R B2 = 8,900 5,375
Goodwill =S 18 87,649 112,649
Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE 27 110,497 169,302
2,285,744 2,621,072
CURRENT ASSETS =V
Interests in infrastructure project ERmEAREER
investments 17 24,440 68,390
Inventories T8 20 173,255 154,153
Contract assets BHEE 21 3,998,389 2,449,554
Trade and other receivables H 5 & H b EUGR 22 1,798,611 1,499,030
Deposits and prepayments ®e RENR 153,095 210,356
Tax recoverable A g B 1 12,908 1,190
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries e TEN NN 23 878,582 877,780
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBESZEEBY 24 974,838 928,104
8,014,118 6,188,557
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREEE
Bank borrowings RITIER 25 419,794 824,563
Contract liabilities AHBE 21 839,819 911,443
Trade payables, other payables and ZFRNR - HAb R
accruals LEEtE B 26 3,486,177 2,072,159
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 23,364 24,786
Deposits received [ & 31,823 41,480
Current tax payables FETHLIE 135,565 178,775
Amount due to an intermediate holding JEAS AR IR RS A B
company 23 = 6,992
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEREBERAR AR 23 1,775,248 1,690,967
Loan from an intermediate holding KEFRMIERREIE
company 23 - 170,000
6,711,790 5,921,165
NET CURRENT ASSETS FmEE E 1,302,328 267,392
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES @& ER R EE 3,588,072

2,888,464
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iR A MR R

As at 31 December 2022 1202212 H31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & BET T BT T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR AR % e s
Share capital % 7 28 22,555 21,555
Share premium and reserves & 7S 5 (B % % 29 2,069,770 1,649,180

Equity attributable to the owners of the RARREEGE =

Company 2,092,325 1,670,735
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR R (98,640) (85,677)
1,993,685 1,585,058

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES E e N=R
Contract liabilities EHEE 21 661,084 766,736
Bank borrowings H|ITE K 25 906,012 508,593
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 23,771 24,557
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBEEE 27 3,520 3,520
1,594,387 1,303,406
3,588,072 2,888,464

Zhang Haipeng Wu Mingqing
RFHE REE
Director Director
EZE EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEER#ER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12 A31H IEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NERRER
Share- Foreign
based  Property  currency Non-
Share Share Special  payment revaluation translation  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Teserves profits Total interests equity
IR
BRI nE  MEER Ak
BE RAEE  RAER Bh  ERER RE  iEEE  REEA @t Bs  BEREE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EETn  E%Tn  A%fr  A¥Trn  AETn  BBTr  B%Tn  BETn E%Tn B%Tr
(note 28)  (note29)  (note29)  (note 29) (note 29)  (note 29)
(H28)  (W&29)  (Wak29)  (Mskao) (Wi29)  (Wz29)
At 1 January 2021 R201%E1A18 21,555 898,654 (1,164,549) 4,636 - 132,39 118,283 1,392,046 1,403,019 (78,143) 1,324,876
ProfitAloss) for the year EREH/ (BE) - - - - - - - 291,976 291,976 (8,069) 283,907
Exchange differences on FERNMEEEEMEL

translation of foreign 2B

operations - - - - - 98,637 - - 98,637 535 99,172
Exchange differences on FERBENE 2R

translation of an associate EiZE - - - - - ) - - 1) - 211
Total comprehensive En2ENE/ (BB)

income/(loss) for the year bk - - - - - 98,426 - 291,976 390,402 (7534) 382,868
Capital contribution relating to MR A DRENRH

share-based payment bome X EBHLE

by an intermediate holding (F3E30)

company (note 30) - - 6,646 - - - - - 6,646 - 6,646
Transfer to statutory reserves £ AEFEE - - - - - - 31,867 (31,867) - - -
2020 final dividend 0205 RERE - - - - - - - (64666)  (64,666) - (b4,666)
2021 interim dividend WNERHES - - - - - - - (64,666) (64,666) - (64,666)
At 31 December 2021 R021E128318 NS5 8BEHT (1157903 4636 - 0K 1S01S0* 1522823 1610735 (85677 1585058
At 1 January 2022 R20251A18 21,555 898,654* (1,157,903)* 4,636* - 230,820*  150,150* 1,522,823* 1,670,735 (85,677) 1,585,058
Profit/(loss) for the year EnERl/ (BE) - - - - - - - 8% A8 (1189) 409,960
Gain on fair value changes wh% - BERAEER

of investment properties IRENELLERD

transferred from property, bt

plant and equipment - - - - 10,943 - - - 10,943 - 10,943
Exchange differences on FEEMIBELN

translation of foreign EXEE

operations - - - - - (105,226) - - (105,226) (1,071)  (106,297)
Exchange differences on ;E:F\\ B NE 2 BRR

translation of an associate EHEE - - - - - 2 - - 2 - 22
Total comprehensive income/ ~ £A2 EE/ (B1)

(loss) for the year % - - - - 10,943 (105,004) - 421,852 321,191 (12,963) 314,828
Issue of shares Bk 1,000 218,028 - - - - - - 219,028 - 219,028
Capital contribution relating to ~ AMERA AR ENH R

share-based payment bome T EBEHLE

by an intermediate holding (Ba30)

company (note 30) - - 3,892 - - - - - 3,892 - 3,892
Transfer to statutory reserves  EAETEE - - - - - - 3812 (3.812) - - -
2021 final dividend WNERERS - - - - - = = (36,644) (36,644) - (36,644)
2022 interim dividend WRERHES - - - - - - - (92,477) (92,477) - (92,477)
At 31 December 2022 R02%128318 055 1016682 (L1801 4636+ 10943+ ISR16+ 153962+ 181042 200305 (98640 1,993,685

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of *

HK$2,069,770,000 (2021:

statement of financial position.

HK$1,649,180,000) in the consolidated

—————h

IEEEEREEVBRARZEARELE
2,069,770,0007T (20214 : /& #1,649,180,000
JT) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 124310 IEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{iE BETT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES LLEFHEENRERE
Profit before tax 7t A A 508,214 395,973
Adjustments for: HEA
Finance costs M%ER 8 51,217 29,554
Bank interest income RITH B WA 6 (5,581) (4,760)
Fair value gains on investment properties BREMERNAREEH 2 M= 15 (4,356) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEM¥E - MENMKRED
plant and equipment BB/ () 68&7 81 (274)
Share of profits of an associate FE(RHEZ A R & F (116) (44)
Warranty provisions, net RERE T8 7 21,800 18,025
Depreciation of property, plant FE-ME BEREE
and equipment 7 16,816 9,276
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TE-CRAEEE 7 10,269 10,380
Impairment of goodwill BERE 7 25,000 17,000
Provision of trade and other B 5 R E fth FE WA B
receivables, net iR EE 7 38,272 628
Equity-settled share-based payment DHEREENRO Y NER
expenses 3,892 6,646
665,508 482,404
Increase in inventories FEEMN (19,102) (16,967)
Increase in contract assets/liabilities, net AWEE/AE BN (1,516,256) (698,394)
(Decrease)/increase in deposits received BliRE (Rid) /i (9,657) 3,785
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 & H A FEUFGE (386,419) (178,642)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and e REMFRD (M)
prepayments 57,261 (82,838)
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  E{&E B R R A & ZUE N 84,281 140,720
Decrease in amounts due from FEM B E A R FOR
related companies - 20,338
Increase in trade payables, other payables BHEAT - B EM TR
and accruals fEET & RE 1,483,051 588,907
Cash generated from operations REMEZRE 358,667 259,313
Income tax paid, net BERAEHFE (113,061) (74,239)
Net cash flows generated from operating REEBMB A TE
activities 245,606 185,074
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERHELNRENRE
Purchases of items of property, plant BEVE BELEE
and equipment (90,368) (228,397)
Proceeds from disposals of items of property, TEME BERREMER
plant and equipment T8 1,660 1,130
Investment in an associate REE QR ZIRE (3,409) (5,331)
Decrease in amounts due from B EBZAR B TR D
fellow subsidiaries 67,612 47,337
Interest received 2 H & 5,581 4,760
Net cash flows used in investing activities RETHMA RS FE (18,924) (180,501)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n/\

fﬁimui%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12 A31H IEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{iE BETR BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETHELANRESREE
Finance costs paid ENMBEER (47,315) (25,920)
Interest paid on lease liabilities Eﬁfﬂfﬁﬁﬂé 31 (2,639) (1,920)
Drawdown of bank loans TEIRE 135,962 481,492
Repayment of bank loans ﬁifﬂamféi (116,177) (213,078)
Repayment of a loan from an intermediate ANERARERESR
holding company 31 (170,000) (60,000)
Decrease in amount due to an intermediate R RN ER QBTN D
holding company 31 (8,255) -
Decrease in amount due to a related company & #& 2 7 208 2 = (1,547)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITR M E 219,028 -
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities ~ T E & EAL % (28,454) (19,664)
Dividends paid B A (129,121) (129,332)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from BEEY (FTA) Bz
financing activities e 558 (146,971) 30,031
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RekBReSEWFEM
EQUIVALENTS 79,711 34,604
Cash and cash equivalents at HRe RREEEY
beginning of year 928,104 858,154
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INEERBBFE - TR (32,977) 35,346
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HRRERREZEY
AT END OF YEAR 974,838 928,104
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  B& SR L SEBYOMN
Bank and cash balances RITRIBR S M 974,838 928,104
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REAB B RIIRZ
consolidated statement of financial position HeMIREEEY 974,838 928,104

—— — ==
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 124310 IEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

China State Construction Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
are involved in the general contracting business, the facade
contracting business (including the design, engineering,
manufacture and installation of curtain wall systems) and
operating management business.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is 16th Floor, Eight
Commercial Tower, No. 8 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company's immediate holding company is Add Treasure
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and a wholly-owned subsidiary of China State
Construction International Holdings Limited (“CSC”) whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company’s intermediate holding company is China Overseas
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong which,
in turn, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited (“CSCECL"). CSCECL is a joint
stock company established in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") with its shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
The Company’s ultimate holding company is FEZEEEE
[® 2 &) (China State Construction Engineering Corporation*,
"CSCEC"), which is a state-owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

* The English name is a translated name and is for identification
purpose only.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

20226 5% HERERXEEMERDA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A WIS RR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12 A31H IEFE

2.1 REEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT RR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 124310 IEFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework”) issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of
the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations that
occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no
business combinations during the year, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

(b)  Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while
bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items
as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss.
The Group has applied the amendments retrospectively to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale of
items produced prior to the property, plant and equipment
being available for use, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12 A31H IEFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@)

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has
applied the amendment prospectively from 1 January
2022. As there was no modification or exchange of
the Group’s financial liabilities during the year, the
amendment did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 124310 IEFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
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financial statements. HAER] o
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BEPBREER REZHEREZULE
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its F10% (BRI ) R PRZEMEELESL
Associate or Joint Venture’ BEGHER HE
£285: (20114)
Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and BERMBREEN EROHYHHEEL
Leaseback® £16%% (BT A)
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ ERUBREEN  REAE
F175%
Amendments to HKFRS 17  Insurance Contracts”* EEMBREERN  RAESEY
F175 (BFTA)
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 E\“%Eﬁ%i&ifﬁﬁﬂ BB BHEERE17H
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Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’ BB ERESY B EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR ME
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of HKFRS 17

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered
into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1
January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect
the classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by
an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements
as non-current when it has a right to defer settlement of those
liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. An entity that applies the
2020 Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously
the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether existing
loan agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EMERKRERNE B

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The
Group is currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to
ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EEMEERERNETERM
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BREEE 2
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial BB ERIE125 (BEIAR) 5N T ES
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies 2 2RI 1255 H 89 %0 45 B RR B SIS R B
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible HE FATHEARELEHEENERN
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning MAHMRESREEZENRS flmEEM
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a REEG -Hit BERFEZHIABLEME
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is MEE (AR ARHNEMNT TSR M
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences HEERHGEENEREZENRIEMS
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective MBE &Y 52023F18188%k 2%
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January RO FEREHER  WEART R
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and SRR AHVEREMREREHAEN
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest R ERREZERI/EAVIRED
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect ARBEANEXZAEEN SN EMmA
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained FREB 9 o LN - (& FT E AT IE ME M@ A AN A
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date. EMERREBAINNZS - A FRAEKRA -

In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted.

The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact EHZEETTEHAEENMBREE
on the Group’s financial statements. MERTE -
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24T EETHEHME

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of an associate is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment
in the associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of an associate is included as part of the Group's
investment in an associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in consolidated income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant shares acquired or disposed of the carrying amount of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to or acquisition from non-controlling interests of

partial interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement

or equity as appropriate.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations — common control combinations

Business combinations under common control are accounted
for in accordance with the Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
. In applying
merger accounting, the consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements items of the combining
entities or businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the control of
the controlling party.

Accounting for Common Control Combination”

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the results of each
of the combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The consolidated income statement also takes into account the
profit or loss attributable to the non- controlling interests of
the controlling party. Upon the completion of common control
combinations, the retained profit of the combining entities or
business is transferred to the retained profits of the Group.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the beginning of the previous reporting period
or when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations — acquisition method

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations other than common control combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in consolidated income
statement.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances, and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform to the Group’s accounting policies.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s

presentation currency.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
income statement within ‘other income and gains, net’
and 'administrative, selling and other operating expenses’
respectively.

Translation differences related to changes in amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified
as available for sale, are included in other comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the end of the reporting period;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Group companies (Continued)

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the equity holders of the Company are reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in
the Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint
ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control) the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
consolidated income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets are calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of the term of the
relevant lease of the leasehold land
or 50 years

Over the term of the relevant leases

Over the shorter of the licence
operation period or 20 years

Right-of-use assets
Heat and electricity
supply facilities

Leasehold 4 years
improvements

Plant and machinery 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 to 10 years

equipment

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and machinery pending installation, and is stated at
cost less impairment losses. It will be reclassified to the relevant
property, plant and equipment category upon completion and
depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available for
use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“other income and gains, net” in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment” for owned property and/or
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use
asset up to the date of change in use, and any difference at
that date between the carrying amount and the fair value of
the property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance
with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment”
above. For a transfer from inventories to investment properties,
any difference between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Interests in infrastructure project
investments

Interests in infrastructure project investments represent loans
advanced to joint ventures whereby the Group’s return is
predetermined in accordance with the provisions of the relevant
agreements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in infrastructure project
Investments (Continued)

The Group’s interests in the infrastructure project investments
are stated at amortised cost using effective interest method. The
carrying amount of such interests is reduced to recognise any
identified impairment losses of individual investments.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred over the Group's
interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is allocated to cash generating unit
("CGU") or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units
to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
is not subject to amortisation and is tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement category - those to be measured at
amortised cost. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Impairment

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables, see note 22 for further details.

For other financial assets which have been classified as
financial assets at amortised cost under HKFRS 9, the
Group applied the general approach and has determined
that reliably assessing the probability of default of the
counterparties at the initial recognition of each financial
asset would result in undue cost and effort. Provision
for impairment of receivables for these financial assets
will be determined based on whether their credit risk are
low at each reporting date, and if so by recognising a
12-month expected losses amount until the financial asset
is derecognised. If the financial asset is not of a low credit
risk, the corresponding provision for doubtful debts will be
recognised as equal to lifetime expected losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12 A31H IEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed in note 22.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Impairment (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

If the Group performs by transferring goods or provide services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, retention receivables are recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A WIS RR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12 A31H IEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24X EESHBEBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. See “Financial
assets” above for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, pledged bank deposits, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated and
entity statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities.

Trade payables, other payables and
accruals

Trade payables are obligations to pay for materials or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables, other payables and accruals
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, other payables and accruals are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in income

statement.

Borrowing costs

Relevant general and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in income statement in

the period in which they are incurred.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents connection fee income not yet

recognised in relation to heat transmission services.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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24T EESTHERME R

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(i) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(i) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that their future utilisation is probable. Deferred income
tax arising from revaluation of investment properties
is recognised on the rebuttable presumption that the
recovery of the carrying amount of the properties would
be through sale and calculated at the applicable tax rates.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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24T ESTHRBE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the provision
of construction services for general repairs of defects occurring
during the warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Leases, the Group as a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which
the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and
non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24X EESHBEBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases, the Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third party financing;
and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12 A31H IEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases, the Group as a lessee (Continued)

. any initial direct costs; and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in consolidated income
statement. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
twelve months or less.

Leases, the Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
other income in the consolidated income statement due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
other income in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Employee benefits

(i)  Pension obligations
Group companies operate various pension schemes.
The schemes are generally funded through payments to

insurance companies. The Group has defined contribution
plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 124310 IEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in consolidated income statement such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve. When the share
options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12 A31H IEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

(@) Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
(Continued)

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

(b) Share-based payments transactions among group
entities

Incentive shares granted by an intermediate holding
company to the employees of the Group is treated as
capital contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the fair value of
incentive shares on the date of grant, is recognised as an
expense over the vesting period, with a corresponding
credit to equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of incentive shares that are
expected to be vested. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the good or
service is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control
of the good or service may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. Control of the good or service is transferred over time if
the Group's performance:

(a) Provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

(b)  Creates or enhances an asset that the customer control as
the Group performs; or

(c) Does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the good or service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on one of the following methods
that best depict the Group’s performance in satisfying the
performance obligation:

(a) Direct measurements of the value transferred by the Group
to the customer; or

(b)  The Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected
efforts or inputs (“input method”).

Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contract, if recoverable,
are capitalised as contract related assets and subsequently
amortised when the related revenue is recognised.

Revenue from contracts with customers
() Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised when
or as the construction projects are transferred to the
customer. Depending on the terms of the contracts and
the laws that are applicable to the contracts, control of the
construction projects may transfer over time or at a point
in time. If (a) the Group creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
or (b) construction projects have no alternative use to the
Group contractually and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment from the customers for performance
completed to date, the Group satisfies the performance
obligation over time and therefore, recognises revenue
over time in accordance with the input method for
measuring progress.

(if)  Service income

Revenue from service income, including consultancy service
income and management services income, is recognised
over time when the corresponding services are rendered.

(ili)  Thermoelectricity business

Revenue from thermoelectricity business consists of
revenue from the supply of heat, steam and electricity, and
connection service income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12 A31H IEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(iii)

Thermoelectricity business (Continued)

Revenue from the supply of heat, steam and electricity are
recognised upon output delivered and capacity provided at
rates specified under contract terms.

Connection service income received and receivable, to
the extent which is attributable to the initial pipeline
construction and connection of transmission of heat
and steam, is recognised over time upon the completion
of services provided for the relevant connection works.
Connection service attributable to the continuing heat and
steam transmission is recorded as deferred income and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected service
period of heat and steam transmission to be rendered
with reference to the term of the operating licence of the
relevant entities.

Revenue from other sources

(1)

(i)

(iif)

Income from interests in infrastructure investment projects

Income from interests in infrastructure investment projects
is accrued on a time basis with reference to the carrying
amount and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash flows through the expected life of the infrastructure
project to that project’s net carrying amount at initial
recognition.

Interest income

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be

measured reliably.

A contingent liability, other than that assumed in a business
combination, is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it

will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly

within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is

recognised.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’'s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are

approved by the Company’s shareholders/directors.

Contract related assets and contract
liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer and
assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or provide

services to the customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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24T EESTHERME R

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contract related assets and contract
liabilities (Continued)

The combination of those rights and performance obligations
gives rise to a net contract asset or a net contract liability
depending on the relationship between the remaining rights
and the performance obligations. The contract is an asset and
recognised as contract assets if the Group has the right to
consideration in exchange for goods and services transferred
to the customers. Contract assets are transferred to receivables
when the rights become unconditional. Conversely, the contract
is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the cumulative
payments made by customers exceeds the revenue recognised in
income statement.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the simplified
approach. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Group transfers the goods or services to the customers and
therefore satisfied its performance obligation.

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
are capitalised and presented as contract related assets, if the
Group expects to recover those costs, and are subsequently
amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customers of the goods or services to which the
assets relate. The Group recognises an impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement to the extent that the carrying
amount of the contract related assets recognised exceeds the
remaining amounts of consideration that the Group expects
to receive less the costs that relate directly to providing those
goods or services that have not been recognised as expenses.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group; (If the Group is itself
such a plan) and the sponsoring employers of the
post-employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BEBEE
Financial instruments by category SEMITREZER
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T PR T
Financial assets cMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost N AFTENSREE
Interests in infrastructure project ERBEREHREER
investments 64,515 132,929
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JEWERE ZAR TR 878,582 877,780
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b fE g sk 1,078,767 890,885
Deposits "e 12,868 73,026
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBESEEBY 974,838 928,104
3,009,570 2,902,724
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost NEHEK AT ENeREaE
Trade payables, other payables and accruals & 5 EN K - H b A&
fEEtE A 3,486,177 2,072,159
Amount due to an intermediate holding JEART RN ERR R B3R
company - 6,992
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERNEBRART K 1,775,248 1,690,967
Bank borrowings IRITER 1,325,806 1,333,156
Deposit received g 31,823 41,480
Loan from an intermediate holding company KRB S ML A T E = - 170,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 47,135 49,343
6,666,189 5,364,097

The group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed below. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying
amount of each class of financial assets mentioned above.

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the United States
dollar and the Australian dollar. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

The Group’s foreign currency exposures primarily arise
from monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency,
where these assets and liabilities are mainly denominated
in United States dollar and Australian dollar.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to the United States dollar, the foreign currency exposure
of operating units having the Hong Kong dollar as their
functional currency on United States dollar transactions
and balances is minimal.

At 31 December 2022, if the Hong Kong dollar had
weakened/strengthened 5% against the Renminbi,
Australian dollar, Macau Pataca, and United Arab Emirates
Dirham with all other variables held constant, the
consolidated profit for the year would have been HK$3,000
higher/lower (2021: HK$7,908,000), HK$270,000 lower/
higher (2021: HK$309,000) and HK$518,000 lower/higher
(2021: HK$261,000 lower/higher), HK$1,071,000 lower/
higher (2021: HK$8,000) and respectively.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated in the relevant
foreign currencies.

The Group currently does not have a formal foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. However, the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings
and loan from an intermediate holding company.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. During 2022 and 2021, the Group's
borrowings at variable rate were denominated in the Hong
Kong dollar, Canadian dollar and United States dollar.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for floating
interest bank borrowings and loan from an intermediate
holding company. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of asset and liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
(2021: 50) basis points increase or decrease representing
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates is used.

At 31 December 2022, if interest rates at that date had
been 50 (2021: 50) basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit for the
year would have been HK$4,789,000 lower/higher (2021:
HK$4,620,000 lower/higher), arising mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on bank borrowings and
loan from an intermediate holding company, netting off
against bank interest income.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents, deposits
and prepayments, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, contract
assets, trade and other receivables and interests in infrastructure
project investments included in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group's financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to customers, fellow subsidiaries and related companies with
an appropriate credit history. In addition, the directors review
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt regularly
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 3, B 7% [ b & 38 (40
Financial risk factors (Continued) Eyjﬁ%ﬂpﬁa[g =8)
Credit risk (Continued) SERK (&)

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on interests in infrastructure project investments
is limited because the counterparties are mainly Chinese
government-related entities.

The credit risk on contract assets and most trade receivables
is limited because the history of default is low. The Group
assessed the credit losses against contract assets and trade
receivables and the lifetime expected credit loss rate is below
1%, except for trade receivables relating to several accounts
from thermoelectricity business which are long overdue with
significant amounts or known insolvencies or non-response
to collection activities which are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. As at 31 December 2022, the expected
credit loss rates for these trade receivables from thermoelectricity
business were ranging from 3.5% to 100% (2021: 3.5% to
100%).

ZS%%HI?MQ‘%&(%%%TQ%%?&E}E :
HitEE R EEAEET -
EZRBEREEENERERRER EHE
HOLTRTERTHEBER -

ARNEERABHDESERFENEER

AR AAENLCHRE AEEFTH

EHRWFBRANEENEZEBE M
ﬁéaﬁﬂrﬁﬁﬁﬁ%)ﬁﬂaifﬁ&ﬂ% BT
FHREERAESENCNEENRE
WK ESIEFHEENRBAHEES R E
fhEURRERF - AL EH ELERFERP
BE AR E R - 52022128318 -
ERELABTEBNERFEFPENEE
B ENF3.5%E100%,2 H (20214 :
3.5%%F100%) °

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because WELRBES2EBEYHNEEEREER BA
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned Q%i"\}%z%ﬁél RIMEBLRTEEREE

by international credit-rating agencies.

The credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised

cost is considered to be “normal” as they are not past due and

FEAREIIRTT -

NEERAENEREENEREEHR
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there is no information indicating that the financial assets had RUAREEHRARBAZEINE R A
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. They Bl oMY IRE —RBEETHLE  UFE
are all classified under Stage 1 for measurement of expected BEHERAEL BN EFEAB T AT

credit losses except for trade receivables and contract assets that
do not contain a significant financing component which apply
simplified approach in calculating expected credit losses.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 3, Bt 7§ [ Bt B 18 ()
Financial risk factors (Continued) B A E e (A & (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEE R (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial TRFWAEBRARRETESREE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the AN B AR EELEB NMBREESE T
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the ENESBUKRMRBETREY -
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1year and2years andb5 years 5 years Total
1E LR 122% 2E5F BB5F ‘st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT BETT
Group KEE
At 31 December 2022 720225128318
Trade payables, other payables and BHEMNZ - HAEMT
accruals, excluding warranty provision REER  TeER
EEE 3,197,437 237,651 - - 3,435,088
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENEBZANAIR 1,775,248 - - - 1,775,248
Bank borrowings RITHER 420,220 520,327 415,872 - 1,356,419
Lease liabilities HEBE 25,151 15,887 8,606 - 49,644
5,418,056 773,865 424,478 - 6,616,399
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H
Trade payables, other payables and BHERMK - MR
accruals, excluding warranty provision LETER - TeER
BB 1,861,320 174,869 - - 2,036,189
Loan from and amount due to an KEFNMERARET R
intermediate holding company RN ERARR 176,992 - - - 176,992
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries o IEEAINGIE S 1,690,967 - - - 1,690,967
Bank borrowings RITER 834,399 1,005 521,129 - 1,356,533
Lease liabilities HERE 25,432 15,454 8,275 1,298 50,459
4,589,110 191,328 529,404 1,298 5,311,140
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce

debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total bank borrowings (including “current and non-current bank
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents. Net assets are calculated
as "equity attributable to the owners of the Company” and
“non-controlling interests” as shown in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

The gearing ratio is calculated as follows:

3.
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2022 2021

2022%F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Bank borrowings RITER 1,325,806 1,333,156
Less: Cash and cash equivalents IR REEEEY (974,838) (928,104)
Net debt FIEE 350,968 405,052
Net assets FEE 1,993,685 1,585,058
Gearing ratio FEEE 17.6% 25.6%

The decrease of net gearing ratio from 25.6% to 17.6% was

resulted by an increase in net assets.

FEBELER25.6%RBPE17.6% R AT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Fair value estimation

The fair values of the following financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts:

. Trade and other receivables

° Deposits and prepayments
° Cash and cash equivalents
° Interests in infrastructure project investments

° Amounts due from/to an intermediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries

o Trade payables, other payables and accruals
° Bank borrowings

° Lease liabilities

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(V)

(ii)

Construction contracts
Progress of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation
of the individual contract of construction works. The
progress is determined by the aggregated cost for the
individual contract incurred at the end of the reporting
period compared with the estimated budgeted cost.
Management’s estimation of the cost incurred to date
and the budgeted cost is primarily based on construction
budget and actual cost report prepared by internal quantity
surveyors, where applicable. Corresponding revenue from
contract work is also estimated by management based on
the progress and budgeted revenue. Because of the nature
of the activities undertaken in construction contracts, the
date at which the contract activity is entered into and
the date when the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. The Group regularly reviews
and revises the estimation of both contract revenue and
contract cost in the budget prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progresses.

Estimation of foreseeable losses in
respect of construction works

Management estimates the amount of foreseeable
losses of construction works based on the management
budgets prepared for the construction works. Budgeted
construction income is determined in accordance with
the terms set out in the relevant contracts. Budgeted
construction costs which mainly comprise subcontracting
charges and costs of materials are prepared by
management on the basis of quotations from time to
time provided by the major contractors/suppliers/vendors
involved and experience of management. A foreseeable
losses is resulted from a contract in which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received under it.
In order to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date,
management conducts periodic review on the management
budgets by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
amounts incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of assets

4. EESEH{EE R M E )
(iii) EERE

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2.4. The recoverable amount of goodwill is
the higher of the fair values less costs to sell and value in
use.

A considerable amount of judgement and assumptions are
required in estimating the recoverable amount of goodwill,
including financial budgets prepared and approved by
management, revenue growth rate, gross margin and
weighted average discount rate applied to the discounted
cashflows. Further details are disclosed in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group regularly reviews whether there are any
indications of impairment and recognises an impairment
loss if the carrying amount of an asset is lower than its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of the fair value less costs
to sell and value in use calculations.

In determining the value in use, the Group assesses the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected
to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its
disposal at the end of its useful life.

Estimates and judgements are applied in determining
these future cash flows and the discount rate. The
Group estimates the future cash flows based on certain
assumptions, such as market competition and development
and the expected growth in business.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
(iv) Income and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain.

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon
whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and
suitable taxable profits will be available in the future
against which the reversal of temporary differences can
be deducted. To determine the future taxable profits,
reference is made to the latest available profit forecasts
and relevant tax law is considered to determine the
availability of the losses to offset against the future taxable
profits.

The Group has exercised significant accounting judgement
on recognition of deferred tax assets in respect of losses,
particular for the North America division. The amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are
derived from the Group’s best estimation and judgement
regarding the future financial performance of the relevant
division. Those significant estimations and judgement
include financial budgets prepared and approved by
management, gross profit margin, overhead and capital
expenditure applied to the profit forecasts.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(v) Impairment of receivables, contract
assets and amounts due from related
parties

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its receivables and
amounts due from related parties carried at amortised
cost and contract assets. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. To make that assessment, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable
and supportable information, that is available without
undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition. Significant
estimates and judgements are required in determining the
probability-weighted amount that is not recoverable and
the forecast of future economic conditions.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the facade contracting
business, general contracting business and operating
management business. The Group's revenue represents revenue
from construction and management contracts.

The Group has classified the reportable segments into three
operating segments, principally based on reportable business
units as well as the reporting organisation hierarchy, which are
determined as follows:

- Facade Contracting Works

- General Contracting Works

- Operating Management

Operating management segment includes the Group’s urban
planning management and consultation services, engineering

consultancy services, thermoelectricity business and funding to
infrastructure projects.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. XKD EER#®)
INFORMATION (Continued)
The executive directors of the Company are the Group’s chief NEHITESAEEREELSERFTE &
operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM assesses the FEERFERBRAER X RFHEAAN
performance of the operating segments based on a measure of RGBT A ERE D AR o It
adjusted profit or loss before interest and tax. This measurement HA EHERAIERL S IEE Y
basis excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure from the s 2 flinEAKAN - EZEERANLNEE
operating segments, if any, such as restructuring costs, legal WE ZBEAEEHITBIEREDZEE LA
expenses and impairment of goodwill. The measurement also B AEMNRIESR TARERKE
excludes the effects of share-based payments and unrealised BENEE - FERART B ESREE
gains/losses on financial instruments. Interest income and P O EAAHEAETHEHEEEEALASE
expenses resulting from the central treasury function are not ERSMRAOP R ELFAHEE o
allocated to segments.
Segment results for the years ended 31 December 2022 and B ZE20229F R2021F12A31BIEFERNZ
2021 are as follows: DEEEZFOT
Revenue Gross profit Segment result
EEE E DEEE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20214 20226 202145 20226 20214
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BRI BT BETr BT B%Tr  B¥%Tx
Facade Contracting Works BETE 5,784,122 4,478,100 695,819 356,339 589,143 249,345
General Contracting Works wEATE 894,992 806,592 4,211 99,161 1,743 96,659
Operating Management BEER 989,869 1,010,135 125275 221,354 63,749 181,442
Total B 7,668,983 6,294,827 825,305 676,854 654,635 527,446
Unallocated corporate expenses RAPEB7EER (108,765)  (106,014)
Other income and gains, net Hi A Rz - 558 13,445 4,051
Share of profit of an associate FEMEHE AR R 116 44
Finance costs B ER (51,217) (29,554)
Profit before tax A% 508,214 395,973

Segment revenue of Facade Contracting Works comprises
revenue from Hong Kong, Mainland China and other region
amounting to HK$5,263,887,000 (2021: HK$3,956,043,000)
and revenue from North America region amounting to
HK$520,235,000 (2021: HK$522,057,000). Segment revenue
of General Contracting Works and Operating Management
represent revenue from Hong Kong and Mainland China.

ERIENSHEEXEEETEZREE
BERFE AL REEMIDENKAR
7 #5,263,887,0007T (20214 : B ¥
3,956,043,0007T) F 4t 3t [& &9 g A
A 520,235,000 (20214 « B
522,057,00070) ' A NIEBELEEEK
ZWAEERBEERFEAML -
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EXRERDBER

INFORMATION (Continued)

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: REFRELEBO DL :
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue from contracts with customers BEPARKA
Timing of revenue recognition U A T R Y B
— Over time — BEEERENER 7,618,942 6,233,971
- At a point in time — X ERER 36,262 40,661
7,655,204 6,274,632
Revenue from other source H A AOR A
— Interest income generated from — EREEHEANMNSKA
infrastructure projects 13,779 20,195
7,668,983 6,294,827

Amounts of administrative

, selling and other operating expenses
included in the measurement of segment result:

DHBEBFELETR HEREMEE
BHAWNT :

Loss/(gain) on disposal of

Depreciation of property, items of property, plant and

plant and equipment equipment
HEVE BERREN
NE- BERREZHE B (K#)
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022F 20214 2022%F 20214
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T ok e
Facade Contracting Works HEiE TR 15,927 16,154 (26) (214)
General Contracting Works — #&7# & T2 24 17 - -
Operating Management EEER 10,034 3,385 107 (60)
25,985 19,656 81 (274)

—e—i—ie—i——— 1 Tl i
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. EXBERDHER

INFORMATION (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s financial position by territory is as
follows:

AEBRMWFHB WM BEARDFTAT

Addition to property,

Non-current assets* plant and equipment

FRBEE* REYE BERRME
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022%F 20214 20224 20214
HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T

Hong Kong, Mainland China &% « Bl A

and Others M EAM 1,566,333 1,746,180 89,924 68,868
North America b3 568,839 641,051 444 162,020
2,135,172 2,387,231 90,368 230,888

* Other than deferred tax assets and interests in infrastructure

project investments.

Segment assets and liabilities

No assets and liabilities are included in the measurements of
the Group’s segment reporting that are used by the CODM for
performance assessment and resource allocation. Accordingly,
no segment assets and liabilities are presented.

* TEEBRERIAEENARBR R ERES -

THEERAR

TR RKE TFHERR RA RS KA
ZARESBEE 2 BRI LRBE
AEREE B AEEIHEFNHE
EEREME-
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

Major customer information

Revenue from two major customers in Facade Contracting
Works each contributed revenue more than 10 per cent of the
Group's total revenue for the year is set out below (2021: two
major customers in Facade Contracting Works each contributed
revenue more than 10 per cent of the Group’s total revenue).

EXRERDBER

EXEFESR

ERPAEEF AR A10%L A &)/ E
FTEERBRIREREFPREZEREHI T (2021
F RErZEEIEEFhEEE %5
BiB10%) °

2022 2021

20224 20214F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Customer A ZEA 1,002,839 1,382,010
Customer B BB 856,406 667,059

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Htb g AR W - FHEE

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Bank interest income AT B A 5,581 4,760

Exchange gain, net PEH Iz - FEE 3,946 8,990

Insurance claim received R EEE 16 305
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE BEMREOWRZ

plant and equipment - 274

Rental income Ha WA 644 284

Service income AR 75 A 4,620 5,477

Sundry income FIERA 6,269 2,532

Gain on fair value changes of investment KEMERARBEES KA
properties 4,356 -

25,432 22,622

——

=i
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. RUEBE S 2HX
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T T
Profit for the year has been arrived at after RERFENR, (GTA)
charging/(crediting): TF|&1g :
Costs of sales EER AR
Costs of contracting works performed G T FE A AR 6,210,459 5,030,810
Costs of supply of heat, steam and electricity {28 - 25 S H it fE &K A 611,419 569,138
Warranty provisions, net REBE FE 21,800 18,025
6,843,678 5,617,973
Administrative, selling and TH- -HERHEMKSEER
other operating expenses
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments: BIXA  BIEEEME :
Salaries, bonuses and allowances * e o U4 RERL 1,128,192 1,042,858
Retirement benefits scheme contributions ** iR K@ K &+ 2 f 7o+ * 93,265 74,703
Less: Amounts included in costs of sales B BEEEERAZ©E (1,082,979) (945,880)
138,478 171,681
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, #12 « = EREZITE -
excluding right-of-use assets EAEEEZITERIN 118,583 146,370
Less: Amounts included in costs of sales B BEEEEKRAZ SR (101,767) (137,094)
16,816 9,276
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEECTE 33,910 28,486
Less: Amounts included in costs of sales B BREEEERAN 2SR (23,641) (18,106)
10,269 10,380
Expenses relating to short-term leases RHEERX 19,542 24,925
Less: Amounts included in costs of sales W BEEEEMNAR LS (18,409) (23,767)
1,133 1,158
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A&
Audit services Z R 7% 2,711 2,614
Non-audit services BT 604 291
3,315 2,905
Provision of trade and other receivables, net B S REM R REE  F5 38,272 628
Impairment of goodwill [EEENERE 25,000 17,000
Loss on disposal on items of property, HeEWE  BERRENER
plant and equipment 81 -
Others Hi 58,058 60,965
291,422 273,993
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7. BMEEE S 2B X @
Note: o
K Wage subsidies of HK$7,535,000 and HK$Nil granted from the * HE2022F128318 L FE - HEKRDE
Employment Support Scheme under Anti-Epidemic Fund in Hong BRMBRESHRBMEIFEPESBE
Kong and the “Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy”, respectively, 7,535,000 TE M RSB R MER
had been received during the year ended 31 December 2022 BT EM PESITEMEL (20214F ¢
(2021: Wage subsidies of HK$Nil and HK$3,163,000 granted EERENRENEESHRRE]F2
from the Employment Support Scheme under Anti-Epidemic Fund PESTIEMIINMERBEST EMHAN]
in Hong Kong and the “Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy”, R 1S 53,163,000 ) T & i Bh) © 7%
respectively had been received). The amounts were recognised CHEHAREEXNAMITE  HERHE
in costs of sales and administrative, selling and other operating e ERANEEEBMNERHIKE - 8E
expenses and had been offset against the employee benefit FRELEHEEENRERGGHNEE
expenses. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies MBI
relating to these grants.
**  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by * REBEAEE T FEE LAY
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of VIR A B ROKF o
contributions.
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBEH
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts BITERRBZHF L 47,315 25,920
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGENE 2,639 1,920
Interest on loan from an intermediate KEPNMIERREERTFE
holding company 1,263 4,205
51,217 32,045
Less: Amounts capitalised in property, plant  J& : B4&t AW E BHE R RE
and equipment = (2,491)
51,217 29,554

—— — ==
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9. INCOME TAX CHARGE

(@) The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated

income statement represents:

s & A

() HEHEAWBERFAZHEASEMT :

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax REARRIE — BAEFEH
Provision for the year FAEE 41,057 43,846
(Over)/underprovision in prior years BEFE (GBRE) /TREE (107) 85
40,950 43,931
Current tax — Mainland China and overseas  ZAHEAF{IE — B A [ 35 4b
Provision for the year F NG 7,750 58,575
Deferred tax IR R IR
Write-down of deferred tax assets SREHIRIEFTIS B & B 50,000 13,000
Credit for the year F AR (446) (3,440)
49,554 9,560
Income tax charge for the year FAMEHER 98,254 112,066

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% of the

estimated assessable profit for both years.

The tax charge on estimated assessable profits elsewhere has
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretation and practices.

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China were
approved as new and high technology enterprises pursuant to
which the Mainland China subsidiaries can enjoy a preferential
income tax rate of 15% effective from 2020 to 2024. The
income tax rate of most of the Group’s remaining subsidiaries in

the Mainland China is 25%.

The income tax rate of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries range

from 12% to 28%.

SLUL M - B NE B IIAF A G ER
TR ML E16.5%=1H -

H 3 & 2 fh AT FE SR B FI R I IR AN &
BEGAREBRRXZEABRE REEHZ
WITED - 2B REPE -

SE 2 BB BB A R B E RS T
i3\t %P BB QR 820206
F2024F A ZEH15% 2 BEMEHRE -
HABOTEMBRARASHHBEERR
25% °

SEZEBIMBRABRMBHRBEENF12%

£28% °
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9. INCOME TAX CHARGE (Continued)

(b)  The taxation on the Group’s profit before tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation

rate of Hong Kong as follows:

202058 GTHEXREEEEERAT

=
re 8

FREBi8E M=

(b)

& E A RARR B AR M 2 DR E R A
FAEVERFENERESEORENT :

2022 2021

2022F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Profit before tax A 508,214 395,973
Taxation at Hong Kong profits tax rate at REBEFNEHREE16.5%

16.5% AFERBIE 83,855 65,335
Effect of different taxation rates in other EMBERTRAMENTE

countries (59,937) (794)

Income not subject to taxation HER A (3,311) (495)

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes A~ A] #1755 &9 5 5% 5,674 5,233

Temporary differences not recognised REREREET (492) (182)

Write-down of deferred tax assets SREEIREFT ST E E 50,000 13,000

Tax losses not recognised RERBIEER 22,572 29,884

(Over)/under provision in prior years BAFE (BRE) /TR RE (107) 85

Income tax charge M E R 98,254 112,066

~————F—JF
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10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments

The remuneration of each director and the chief executive

is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

10. EE R ZMER

(a) EERITHAER M

BREZERTHRAZNFMET :

HZE2022F128318 L EE

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as

a director whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

ERHES (FEREAQAAREFLAALE)
RUEBREMIAREROHE

Employer’s

contribution

Salaries and Discretionary to benefit
Fees  allowances bonuses schemes Total

EIRER

sHElm
e FHERER BiERe R #t
Name ma HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET R BET R BET R BETR BETT
Zhang Haipeng KM - = - - _
Wu Mingging KA - 1,718 3,352 18 5,088
Wang Hai T - 1,850 2,099 - 3,949
Wong Man Cheung (Note i) TEH (Kt - 1,713 602 9 2,324
Huang Jiang =L - - - - -
Zhou Jinsong SRR 230 - - - 230
Chan Man Ki Maggie (Note i) R S (#/72ii) 125 = - - 125
Zhang Xinyu (Note ii) SRARF (W itii) 125 - - - 125
Hong Winn (Note iij) Hong Winn (47:#iii) 75 - - - 75
Kwong Sum Yee Anna (Note jii) BB (#7 52iii) 75 - - - 75
630 5,281 6,053 27 11,991
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10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. EEMNRN R FER @
(a) EERITHARFM @

HE2021F12A31H IEFE

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as

a director whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
EREZ(TMERARAKEFRALE)
H2 A Al 75 T S 1 sk e &) M 2

Salaries and
Fees allowances

we HaLEM
Name #E HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary to benefit
bonuses schemes Total

RIREF

sHElm
BiE#E T mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT BETT BETT

Zhang Haipeng RFHE - - - - -
Wu Mingqing RHHE - 2,138 4,064 18 6,220
Wang Hai T - 1,803 2,456 - 4,259
Huang lJiang =)L - - - - -
Zhou Jinsong ISEIRN 180 - - - 180
Hong Winn Hong Winn 150 - - - 150
Kwong Sum Yee Anna B ovta 150 - - - 150
480 3,941 6,520 18 10,959
Notes: iz
Appointed as executive director with effect from 1 July (0 RZEZZ_Ft+tA—BEZEARX
2022. NEMITES -

ii. Appointed as independent non-executive director with
effect from 1 July 2022.

iii. Resigned as independent non-executive director with effect
from 1 July 2022

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

—m———E

4

(i)

(iii)

R-ZE-_—F+tA—AEZEARK
NEBIYIEWMITES -

R-EBE-_—_F+A—HBETAAR
AIBNIEITES -

REZANHFHR - RRBALEER

TAPRAEEZEBEMARBZE

FERRHEEETHREAERZ
BX5  LHHEAER -
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10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included two (2021: two) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.

10. EEMNRN R FER @
(a) EERITHARFM @

AfisxmH AL

RER > REBRUKSFHALE
oA (20215 - —f1) BE - HF
MERERDITARER - % T =4I

The emoluments of the remaining three (2021: three) (20214 : =61) AL 2 HBIEFI T -
individuals are set out below:
2022 2021
20224 20214
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEF T
Basic salaries and allowances BERFH S RFER 3,684 5,227
Discretionary bonuses B 15 4T 6,634 5,757
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRAE R ET IR 199 164
10,517 11,148
(b) The emoluments fell within the (b) HEBRN T3 &EH :
following bands:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
No. of No. of
employees employees
EE®E EE %R
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 7 #3,000,0017T £ % #3,500,0007T 2 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 7 #3,500,001 7T 2 /8 #4,000,0007T 1 3
3 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

FRAEEREAERNEERER
Fr B A 1 SN ) 57 B 4 R B L n
BAREESMARER R REHE
RBERAEE -
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11. SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the senior management (excluding directors
and chief executive) for the years ended 31 December 2022 and

M. SREBAEME

HE2022F K2021F12A31H L FE S &
BEEAB (ESRTHAHRKIN (B < 5

2021 were as follows: G :
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEF T
Salaries and other benefits e M EAMEF 22,087 25,811
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes EAK DI 552 703
22,639 26,514

The emoluments of the senior management for the years ended

BREIEABRN20229 2021512 A31H

31 December 2022 and 2021 were within the following bands: MBS BIATER :
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
No. of No.of
employees employees
EE®A EE#E
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7 #1,500,0017T 2 % #2,000,0007T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 7 #2,000,0017T 2 % #2,500,0007T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 72,500,001 7T £ % #3,000,0007T 3 3
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 783,000,001 7T 2= 8 #3,500,0007T 2 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 78 163,500,001 T & 7% #4,000,0007T 1 3
8 9

—m———E
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. R E
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interim dividend of HK4.1 cents per ordinary A1 B 459 A% & 38 A% A% 2.8 #5411
share (2021: HK3 cents per ordinary share) (20214 : R I BARBEEW) 92,477 64,666
Proposed final dividend of HK2.4 cents per EEAHKRE  FRETERK
ordinary share (2021: HK1.7 cents per B2 A0l (20214 -
ordinary share) FRREBRAE.71) 54,133 36,644
146,610 101,310

The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2022 was not
recognised as a liability at 31 December 2022 and is subject
to approval by shareholders in the forthcoming annual general

2022F12A31BEFMEZE N AREBERE TS
{E2022F12A31EMEE  EENARERK
EEFRABZBRBEFRESRE -

meeting.
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. 5 RER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AATIREEESKRERNRHERRN TR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the EATEETE
following:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEF T
Earnings ZR
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, stEGAXE AN N #EEF 2
used in the basic and diluted earnings per AR B R R EAE & T
share calculation 421,852 291,976
‘000 ‘000
T’ T
Number of shares BHOBE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EtEERERREERTN
used in basic and diluted earnings per share 38 A% IN#E F 158
calculation 2,207,874 2,155,545
Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK cents) & i% Z 7K 7 58 2 F GB1L) 19.11 13.55

The Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

KARNR2022F12A31BIEFERBERE
BREENE MR (202146 - ) o
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% BERZE

Heat and Furniture,
Plant electricity fixtures
Land and Leasehold and supply and Motor  Construction
buildings improvements machinery facilities ~ equipment vehicles  in progress Total
TH#R BE R
BEN L - E HERE  RERRR RE ERIB &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB RETL BB AETTL BB BB BETL RETL
Cost R
At 1 January 2021 2021 E1 518 920,290 5,763 90,076 2,146,292 81,184 17,267 198,297 3,459,169
Exchange difference EXEE 26,621 106 2,281 85,389 1,692 (604) 3,705 119,190
Additions BE 40 - 14,435 3,496 21,886 594 190,437 230,388
Disposals e (809) (108) - - (3,990) (914) - (5.821)
Transfers 8% 33,227 - - 43210 5,235 - (37,732) -
At 31 December 2021 and ~ H2021F12A318 &

1 January 2022 2022F1A18 1,269,369 5,761 106,792 2,278 447 106,007 16,343 20,707 3,803,426
Exchange difference EXEE (89,589) (250) (5,989) (198,177) (5321) (98) (1332) (300,756)
Additions BE 3,910 3,531 14,401 2,004 31,791 1,029 33,642 90,368
Disposals e (1,152) - (1,701) (509) (1,830) 2,212) - (7,404)
Transfers & - - - 22,078 - - (22,078) -
Surplus on revaluation EfHBH 10,943 - - - - - - 10,943
Transfers to investment EHERANE

properties (18,249) - - - - - - (18,249)
At 31 December 2022 20225128318 1,175,232 9,042 113,503 2,103,903 130,647 15,062 30,939 3,578,328
Accumulated depreciation R HERFE
At 1 January 2021 H2021F1A18 280,104 4,301 44,768 1,171,668 62,133 13,467 - 1,576,441
Exchange difference ERZER 9,809 80 611 49,058 1,412 126 - 61,096
Charge for the year REEER 34,567 798 10,089 86,820 13,232 864 - 146,370
Disposals & (68) (108) - - (3,895) (894) - (4,965)
At 31 December 2021 and ~ #2021F12A31B R

1 January 2022 2022F1818 324,412 5,071 55,468 1,307,546 72,882 13,563 - 1,778,942
Exchange difference EXEE (24,367) (234) (2,551) (73,434) (3,806) (836) - (105,228)
Charge for the year TEEER 39,224 1,238 8,155 54,671 13,482 1813 - 118,583
Disposals e - - (1,405) (480) (1,669) (2,109) - (5,663)
Transfers to investment ERERENE

properties (3,741) - - - - - - (3,741)
At 31 December 2022 120225124318 335,528 6,075 59,667 1,288,303 80,889 12,431 - 1,782,893
Net book value as at REFER
At 31 December 2022 2022128318 839,704 2,967 53,836 815,600 49,758 2,631 30,939 1,795,435
At 31 December 2021 202145128318 944,957 690 51,324 970,901 33,125 2,780 20,707 2,024,484

P — —i—iii

175




176

China State Construction Development Holdings Limited 2022 ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 75 R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 124310 IEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

An analysis of the cost of the Group’s land and buildings is as
follows:

14. 9% - BMERZXE#

AEB T REEMZRASTNAT :

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Located in: AR -
Hong Kong BE 50,645 50,645
Mainland China A A b 690,364 751,257
Canada, freehold MER - KA ERE 434,223 467,467
1,175,232 1,269,369

As at 31 December 2022, certain land and buildings of
the Group situated in Mainland China, with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$78,910,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$90,701,000), did not have the property certificates registered
under the name of a subsidiary of the Group.

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the risk of the Group
not being able to obtain the legal titles for the relevant land
and buildings is low and the Group will continue the ownership
registration of the land and buildings.

At 31 December 2022, the Group's land and buildings
of HK$14,952,000 (31 December 2021: HK$16,418,000)
were mortgaged to secure the Group’s banking facilities of
HK$10,346,000 (31 December 2021: HK$11,561,000) (note 25).

At 31 December 2022, Group’s land and buildings of
HK$401,585,000 (31 December 2021: Nil) and construction
in progress of HK$16,623,000 (31 December 2021: Nil),
respectively, were charged to secure the Group’s banking
facilities of HK$365,058,000 (note 25).

R2022F 128318 AEEURFBE K
PEry L+ MEEYEREAERBE
78,910,000 7T (20214F : 7% #90,701,000
L) RBNESEAMB AR AR TMAH
EHR -

RAEERR FNEEEBLZESEHE LI
MEEYMNEEZMBRNERR ) A&
B EEN T MERY O AEETE
fff o

R2022F 128318 - A& B A EKHR
IT1E &5 10,346,0007T (20214 « ##
11,561,00070) 2 £ R LY REEAS
#514,952,0007T (20214 : ##16,418,000
7t) (Mt5E25) °

2022128318 REB L RE
FREEZEIBEWERUMB AL EE
#401,585,0007T (20214 : &) kB
16,623,0007C (20214 « &) MIRTTME A
75 #365,058,000T (M 5E25) -




14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Net book value of property, plant and equipment including
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14. 9% - BMERZXE#

ME BMEMRE(BREREEE) WK

right-of-use assets: HFE

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 1,795,435 2,024,484
Right-of-use assets (note 16(a)) FAEEE (M:E16(@a)) 224,324 244,723
2,019,759 2,269,207

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REW =
2022
2022
HK$’'000
BETT
Carrying amount at beginning of year FOREEE -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment AR EEAENFYE 4,356
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment WTAHE  MEMREERE 14,508
Carrying amount at end of year FREEEER 18,864

The Group’s investment properties consist of four office
properties in Mainland China. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of one
class of asset, i.e., office, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property. The Group’s investment properties
were revalued on 31 December 2022 based on valuations
performed by Roma Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$18,864,000. Each year,
management of the Group decides to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group's properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s senior personnel from the finance
department reviews the valuations performed by the external
valuer for financial reporting purposes and reports directly
to senior management. Discussions of valuation processes,
assumptions and results are held between the Group’s finance
personnel and the external valuer twice a year when the
valuations are performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

P — =i

REBRIEEYE B E T EM R B KRE
NEFEME - ARAIEECREETEY
¥MtEE BHELREABRETREDER—
HAEENK BBRAZE -AEBENEED
ER202F12A3MHREBEBLEESER
HEMARZSEETGEERA AT
HEEEABE18,864,0007T - B4 » K&
EEBBATZAISEEMEBEASEE
MENINDEE - BIEBIZERETISNE -
BE CBUBNEARBEEZRE - L&
EYBBANESRABEAEVEREENSE
BN EEMETHEE TEERASR
EEERE RPHRFEYEREET
HER AEBEMBABS BN EERMS
FRIGERF BRRERETMR®
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

15. RE WY &)
KREMERELEHELHEE=7 "
IEE A5 RERMIE16 ©

EU\LIE

operating leases, further details of which are included in note 16
to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are REBKEMENTE ZHIEHNFE216H -
included on page 216.

Fair value hierarchy

The recurring fair value measurement for all the office properties
of the Group uses significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) and
details of their movements are disclosed below.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

AREEER
AEEFRARDMENEEND 1 BE
BERAEATTREHAM(E3R)  £2
BHERENT -

AEERBERABEAEEE EARHE
FE_BRZEMNEBALELE=E R (2021
FE\) -

3

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within NABEEREIRPENAAREE

+

£
Ll

feln

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: £5 -

Office
properties
WAEYE
HK$'000
BT T

Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 2022F 1V ATHERMEEE =
Net gain from a fair value adjustment AR EBEFAENF RS 4,356

Transfer from properties, plant and equipment WAEE  BEMREES 14,508
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 202212 A3 A EEEEE 18,864
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REYE =)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

AREBEEFRKE
TS AR R R A Y
EBHALE -

Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input Range 2022
1B B9l EENTITEENGEA & E20225F
Office properties Direct comparison method Price per square foot HK$2,684 to HK$3,392
Fi/NEL Y ES BELEE BIYHERNER V52,684 T = H3,3927T

As at 31 December 2022, the valuations of investment properties
were based on direct comparison method by reference to
comparable market transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the price per square foot in

isolation would result in a significantly higher/(lower) fair value
of the investment properties.

- T H—F

M2022F12A318 - REUEHEMNGE
RAEBRLEE 2 LMEHERS -

BYHEREBEROEBREL N, ORL)
BERREMEN DA BEBRZEM O
)

o

al

//\
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16. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

(@ Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
shown on the consolidated statement of financial position
includes the following amounts relating to leases:

16. A
AEBEELEEA

ARB BRI R R A SR

HEMBARKRBRATERERMH
MME  BERREZFER

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT T BEF T
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE

Prepaid land lease payment* B £ 7 & o 148,795 166,392
Buildings Y 75,529 78,145
Motor vehicles 2R - 186
224,324 244,723

Lease liabilities HEESE

Analysed into: DT -

Repayable: JEIE -
Within one year —F R 23,364 24,786
In the second year F_F 15,887 15,454
In the third to fifth year, inclusive FoFEFRTF BRE 7,884 9,103
47,135 49,343
Less: Non-current portion o FERENE D (23,771) (24,557)
Current portion e A o 23,364 24,786

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2022 were HK$29,151,000 (2021:
HK$40,889,000).

* The Group has land lease arrangement with Mainland China
government and leasehold land in Hong Kong.

Q02BN FEMFEREEEENA
75 #29,151,0007T (20214 : &
40,889,0007T) °

* EEERERAERTE THEER
P UERBHBERE LM -
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16. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following

16. A& @)

REBEREBEAN S
(b) HEWERFHERNTHE

GalRaXRBRATEHEFHENS

amounts relating to lease: 2g
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets F AEEENITEE
Prepaid land lease payment A L E R 4,855 7,596
Buildings ZEY) 28,869 20,703
Motor vehicles E= 186 187
33,910 28,486
Interest expense (included in finance cost) MEaEXH(BIEEVKERS) 2,639 1,920
Expenses relating to short-term leases BGHHEEENER (RELEEX
(included in cost of sales and administrative, BZARFITE ~ $5E % E b 48 &
selling and other operating expenses) ZRF) 19,542 24,925
22,181 26,845

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$50,635,000 (2021:
HK$46,509,000).

The Group's leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and vehicles.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 2
to 10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor.

—m———E

i

Q02FHEMNB R BB AL

#50,635,000 JT (20214 : B
46,509,0007T) °
AEEMHERHULELE
ENL: 0k =a5 s D7
ZI&%IZ‘H?—?W@ RE -BEME
H-HEARBE 221060 NETE

HARR ©

FEGER2BIEEBNE R E®ETE
B e e &EAR A G E
H-BRTHAABENHESE+TN

ERERS BEHETHEINERE
BAIE -
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16. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its properties consisting of four (2021: Nil)
office properties in Mainland China under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits. Rental income recognised by
the Group during the year was HK$310,000 (2021: Nil), details
of which are included in note 6 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments
receivables by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

16.

i SNE D

AEBEHAEBAA
AREBRESELEHELHHEE N FEH
ABEEM B (20214 : &) B RAEYE -
HMOBGER—BREXRBLINRESL - T &
EFAERZNEE WA AEBEE310,0007T
(20214 : &) ' F BRI EHRKRMIFT6 -

M2022F12A318  AEBEBFEERK
HRBRE T RSN EEHERKM AT
BEEMTOT

2022

20225
HK$’000
BT T

Within one year —F R

After one year but within two years —FEEMFR

1,024
370

1,394
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17. B2 EERERER

PROJECT INVESTMENTS

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Interests in infrastructure project investments A &2I8 H IR & M 64,515 132,929
Less: Portion due within one year included in 3§ : —E R E| BT AR B A ER I H

current assets (24,440) (68,390)

Portion due after one year —F R B H A 40,075 64,539

On 7 January 2019, the Group acquired 100% of equity interests
in and shareholder’s loan to Fuller Sky Enterprises Limited (“Fuller
Sky”) and Value Idea Investments Limited (“Value Idea”) from
Ever Power Group Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSC at
a total consideration of HK$295,000,000.

Interests in infrastructure project investments represent funding
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") for infrastructure projects
located in Mainland China. The Group is responsible to provide
finance for the construction of the infrastructure of these
projects, whereby the Group’s return is predetermined in
accordance with the provisions of the relevant agreements.

The yield on the infrastructure project investments ranged from
10.2% to 10.7% (2021: 10.2% to 10.7%) per annum. The
interests in infrastructure project investments were not past due
as at 31 December 2022.

The directors of the Company reviewed individually the
infrastructure projects’ operations and financial positions as at
31 December 2022 based on the present values of estimated
future cash flows from those investments, discounted at their
respective original effective interest rates.

201951 A78 - & B () A B 2 4L B IR
K2 & ] )& A AEver Power Group Limited
WETEREEARAR ([EX]) kvalue
Idea Investments Limited ([ Value Idea )
B100%RERBREER  BREBE
295,000,0007T °

# X KValue ldeatf B RZIAE R AR
RETEZHEENREBR(UARETD
R ZEFEZERURTEAM - AEE
BEMARMERBEENRERHKES M
7K 5 [B] 19 [ 3 15 AR 4% 40 B 190 o B IR SR TR
BE-

EREHEREMKRZETFAI02%E
10.7% (20214 : 10.2%£10.7% ) - H =
2022%12A31H EEBEERENEZH
RE|ER -

NAEEREBEELERENGETARR SR
EMNHRE UESAENRAEERMNERE -
BEBHEST2022F12A3BE2EENE
RN S AROR, o
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18. GOODWILL 18. B &
HK$'000
BT T

At 1 January 2021: 202151 H18 -

Cost B 2 159,707

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (30,058)

Net carrying amount fREE 129,649
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated BAR2021F1A18 - Mk K:HR1E

impairment 129,649
Impairment during the year FARE (17,000)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 BREEMN2021412H31H 112,649
At 31 December 2021: R2021F 128318 -

Cost X 2 159,707

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (47,058)

Net carrying amount fREE 112,649
Cost at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022, AR 202112 4318 &2022F1A1H ¢

net of accumulated impairment Mk REHRE 112,649
Impairment during the year FARE (25,000)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2022 BREEMN2022512H31H 87,649
At 31 December 2022: MR2022F12A318 -

Cost X 2 159,707

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (72,058)

Net carrying amount RHEE 87,649

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that

business combination.

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the CGU
relating to the operations of Gamma North America, Inc. and

its subsidiaries (“Gamma Group”) within the North America

division.

MEBE G U 2 /B TR IRE R DB
ERHKERETGAHRESZREELE
W ([REEEEM]) -

HEZEMMELD S ZE 8Gamma North
America, Inc. R EIEDHZHE R A
([Gamma Groupl) EEMIE & ELEN -
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18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. B2 #w)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from value
in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, revenue
growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover during
the period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are
based on the long-term average economic growth rate of the
geographical area in which the businesses of the CGU operate.
Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on past practices
and expectations of market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next
five years with the revenue average growth rate of 3% (2021:
4%) and extrapolating the average revenue growth rate of 3%
(2021: 3%) from sixth to fifteenth years and then applied the
residual period using the growth rate of 3% (2021: 3%). These
rates do not exceed the average long-term revenue growth rate
for the relevant markets. A financial budget of a fifteen year
reflects the medium term plan of management in expanding
the customer base and market share. The pre-tax rates used to
discount the forecast cash flows range from 15.9% to 28.2%
(2021: 21.9% to 23.7%).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, an impairment loss of
HK$25,000,000 (2021: HK$17,000,000) has been provided for
the Gamma Group CGU as the recoverable amount of this CGU
was reduced to HK$112,008,000 (2021: HK$141,258,000) at the
end of the reporting period. The impairment loss was as a result
of the less than satisfactory past and expected performance of
the Gamma Group CGU.

With all other variables held constant, if the revenue growth
rates used in the value-in-use calculation was decreased by 0.3%
or the discount rate used in the value-in-use calculation had
been increased by 1.00% than the management estimates as at
31 December 2022, the recoverable amount would be further
reduced by HK$1,170,000 (i.e. additional impairment loss of
HK$1,170,000).

ReEEBMZAINE SR REREE
AENEBE HEEREBEMEZER
BRDERAARZEERE ERFREX
REHAENEREXEEHR AEETIN
RETERSHEEBERBEEESEMN
B E B R 2 REAE BB AT b R AR REIR K o
BEXDEXNRGELABENLEMERR
ZERHFHEEERE - B EMNRRE
EBRNDERMSRRZBEEN B -

RNEERBEFHERRAF 2 HAHY
BEENFHEEEERE B3% (2021
F A% RHEHERETAFMNFYE:
ISR R A3% (20214 : 3%) » W 1% Fl 4
FEI3% (20214 1 3%) 2 M ERREER &
METER ZEERTARBAMEEMSEZ
FHRBERE -+ AF 2V KEE B
FHERHIUNBREFPELMEBLE
EoBUMBBEHReREZHAIERR
N F15.9%%E28.2% (2021F : 21.9% =
23.7%) °

H E2022F12A31H I E © Gamma
GroupW R ¢ ELE BN EFRAEREBAES
#25,000,0007T (20214 : ##17,000,000
L) RAZBEEASEMMARDE S FER
& B R R > = 5% 112,008,0007T (2021
F B 141,258,0007T) R EEEEH
MGamma GroupH) IR & 2 4 & A7 #9381 A0
TEHAR I T ERTE ©

EABEEMEERFTENBERAT AR
FERAEEAERINRABREERBET
03%  HAEFHEBEFEPNITBRL
EREREMNMEIIRES 71.00% 8152022
F12A318 ok € 55 E— PR D
7 #1,170,0007T (BN &E Sk (B &5 1B 78 B
1,170,0007T) ©
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Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

= NCIES

Place of incorporation/

registration and operation
FRRy/ BEEREE NS

Issued and paid up capital

BEETRARKE

19. (B 2 A

B AR ER

TEMBRARINFERE

Percentage of
ownership interest

LI

Principal activities

Far East Global Group Limited

ERRFEEERAA

Far East Facade (UAE) Limited

Venture Synergy Limited

Netfortune Enterprise Limited

NECEBRAF

Willbert Limited

FEA Investments Limited

Fuller Sky Enterprises Limited

BRELARAF

Value Idea Investments Limited

China Overseas Public Utility

Investment Limited
FEBINA AR E
BRAH

Far East Facade Investments

Limited

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
SRERRES /BB
British Virgin Islands
REERRES
British Virgin Islands
REERRES

British Virgin Islands
AEERRES

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
SRERRES /BB

British Virgin Islands
RBERRES

British Virgin Islands
ABERRES

British Virgin Islands
ABERRES

British Virgin Islands

REBRARES

British Virgin Islands

RBAARES

6,000 ordinary shares of

US$1 each

6,000 B REE1ZETH

BBk

10,000 ordinary shares of

US$1 each

10,000 HFREEIZTH

BBk

1 ordinary share of US$1
TREEIETHEBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
TREEIETHSER

1 ordinary share of US$1
TREE1R T ERR

1 ordinary share of US$1
TREE1R TR ERR

1 ordinary share of US$1
TREEIETHSER

1 ordinary share of US$1
TREEIETHEER

1 ordinary share of US$1

TREEIRTHERR

10,000 ordinary share

of US$1 each

10,000 HFREEIZTH

BBk

BEEES
2022 2021
2022 20214
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

Investment holding
REZR

Investment holding

REZK
Property holding
RENE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

BARK

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding

REER

Investment holding




19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation/
registration and operation
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19. B A 7 &)

Issued and paid up capital

Eop= PNCIR=¢ S3C 2

Percentage of
ownership interest

Principal activities

i EPNGIE ] MR BEERE BN BETREARRA BREAAN TEREK
2022 2021
2022%F 20216
Far East Facade (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong 900,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Design, manufacture and
Limited HK$188,952,242 installation of curtain
5,000 non-voting deferred walls, aluminium
shares of HK$500,000 windows and other
related products
BERER(BB)ERAA BB 900,000 & 5 i Rt HERLZERRE
(781%188,952,2427T) nE kA AR ER
5,000k BR FHEZ
IEFER 7 (7 #500,0007T)
Treasure Construction Hong Kong 150,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Building constructions
Engineering Limited of HK$150,000,000
BHRETRERAA BE 150,000,000/ & i A BFRE
(7#150,000,0007T)
Heng Fai International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BB TREBRGEBITL) REZK
Netfortune Limited Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$500,000
NEBRAF BE 500,0008% & @it (&% RAERK
500,0007T)
China State Development Hong Kong 5,000,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited HK$5,000,000
TREAXSEERAA BE 5,000,000f % 1 REER
(7%5,000,0007T)
Far East Aluminium Works Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding
(Guangzhou) Company
Limited
ERBEIR (BN BRAF B REBR (B2 HENE
Better View Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding
BARERRLA B REBR (B2 HENE
FEA Corporate Services Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of company

BE

2B (B 2T

- T H—F

secretarial services to

Group companies
M ERK 8 D AR

ARMERY
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation/
registration and operation

Issued and paid up capital

19. B A 7 &)

Eop= PNCIR=¢ S3C 2

Percentage of
ownership interest

Principal activities

Lol PN ES ] HMRY/ EEREEDSE BERIRERRA BEEAON EX-+ 37
2022 2021
2022%F 20216
China Construction Think Tank Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Consultancy Service
Limited HK$1,000,000
hREEERAF S 1,000,000% & &% (B A AR
1,000,0007T)
REEERE(HE) The People’s Republic Registered capital of 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRAFY of China RMB200,000,000
mEARAAE AR REZR
A K 200,000,000
MEAER NERETR The People’s Republic Registered capital of 100% 100%  Consultancy and
ERAF" of China RMB50,000,000 construction service
mEARAAE AR BARRERY
A K %50,000,0007T
EREE(FAR)ARLF"  The People’s Republic Registered capital of 100% 100%  Design service
of China RMB10,000,000
mEARAAE ERIE-EN BaEi
AE 10,000,000
mEERERAR" The People’s Republic Registered capital of 100% 100%  Provision of project
of China RMB50,000,000 consultancy service
mEARAAE ERIE-EN RETREIERE
A E%50,000,0007
BHEEHAEERAF"Y  The People’s Republic Registered capital of 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
of China RMB680,660,000 heat and electricity and
investment holding
mEARAAE AMAER HERENNEEREER
AE 680,660,000 REER
BB 2 mNEREN The People’s Republic Registered capital of 100% 100%  Trading of coal
ARAF" of China RMBS,000,000
mEARAAE AR BxZ5
AE 8,000,000
FENERETIRARAT" The People’s Republic of Registered capital of 100% 100%  Design, manufacture and

China

PEARAME

RMB37,958,749

B AR
AR #37,958,7497C

installation of curtain

walls, aluminium windows

and other related
products

Rt HERTEEE 8
EREMEEER




19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation/
registration and operation
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19. B A 7 &)

Issued and paid up capital

Eop= PNCIR=¢ S3C 2

Percentage of

ownership interest Principal activities

Lol PN ES ] HMRY/ EEREEDSE BERIRERRA BEREBOL FEER
2022 2021
20225 20214
EREECEINARLT"  The People’s Republic of Registered capital of 100% 100%  Manufacture of curtain
China HK$70,000,000 walls, aluminium windows
and other related
products
mEARLME AMAER SUERME  BEREMIES
#%70,000,0007C 7
EREE(5E)ARAT"Y  The People’s Republic of Registered capital of 100% 100%  Manufacture of curtain
China US$25,000,000 walls, aluminium windows
and other related
products
mEARLME 1 & 425,000,000% 7T BLUERME  BEREMES
Em
FIFBBEIRERARLD The People's Republic of Registered capital of 100% 100%  Provision of project
" China RMBS8,000,000 consultancy service
mEARLME ERIE-EN RETRER RS
AR #8,000,0007C
Far East Facade (Macau) Macau Registered capital of 100% 100% Installation of curtain walls,
Limited MOP25,000 aluminium windows and
other related products
ERERECRM)BRAR RF T & AR P 25,0007 ZEER  REREMIER
Em
Far East Facade, Inc. United States of America 100,000 common shares of 100% 100% Installation of curtain walls,
US$0.01 each aluminium windows and
other related products
%H 100,000k B R EE ZEER  REREMIEHE
0.01E T ERK Efm
Far East Aluminum Works United States of America 200,000,000 common stock 100% 100% Installation of curtain walls,
(U.S.) Corporation of US$0.001 each aluminium windows and
other related products
EJE 200,000,000 B iR EI{80.001 ZEBR  BERAMAH
ELHETBR Em
Gamma Buffalo, Inc. United States of America 1 share of US$1 100% 100%  Property holding

*H

TREE1E TR

——F———HF

RENX
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation/
registration and operation

19. B A 7 &)

Issued and paid up capital

Eop= PNCIR=¢ S3C 2

Percentage of
ownership interest

Principal activities

Lol PN ES ] HMRY/ EEREEDSE BERIRERRA BEREBOL FEER
2022 2021
20225 20214
Gamma North America, Inc. United States of America 7,060 shares of 93.63% 93.63% Investment holding
US$0.001 each
EJE 7,060 BIRAEE REZRK
0.001 € TTHI AR 17
Gamma USA, Inc. United States of America 1,000 shares of 93.63% 93.63%  Design, manufacture and
US$0.001 each installation of curtain
walls, aluminium windows
and other related
products
%HE 1,000/ 5 fX [ (8 Rt HERTEER 15
0.001E TR &7 EREMAEER
Gamma Installations, Inc. United States of America 100 shares of 93.63% 93.63% Installation of curtain walls,
US$0.001 each aluminium windows and
other related products
%H 100 BREE ZEER  BEREMIERE
0.001 € TR 17 7
Gamma North Corporation United States of America 1 share of US$1 93.63% 93.63%  Manufacture of curtain
walls, aluminium windows
and other related
products
=35 TREE1ETER R HEERE BEREMES
Em
Gamma Windows and Walls ~ Canada 100 common shares of 93.63% 93.63%  Design, manufacture and
International Inc. CAD53,362.36 each installation of curtain
walls, aluminium windows
and other related
products
IEYN 100 BRER Rt HERREEE-
INHE53,362.3670 B i Ak BERAMAEER
Hygate Development Corp. Canada 100 common shares of 100% 100%  Business development
CAD1 each
mex 100k SR EEME1TH S




19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation/
registration and operation
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Issued and paid up capital

19. B A 7 &)
- RNCIE=8 1€ )]

Percentage of

ownership interest Principal activities

i EPNGIE ] MR BEERE BN BETREARRA BREAAN TEREK
2022 2021
2022%F 20216
Hygate Investment Corp. Canada 100 common shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
CAD100 each
IEYN 1008 & A (B & %5 10070 49 RERZK
Hygate Property Corp. Canada 100 common shares of 100% 100%  Property holding
CAD1 each
IEYN 1000 F AR EE MBI RENE
Hygate Management Services  Canada 100 common shares of 100% 100%  Provision of management
Corp. CAD1 each service
UESS 1008 R 0% 17 TERY
Far East Facade (UK) Limited ~ United Kingdom 1 ordinary share of GBP1 100% 100%  Design, manufacture and
installation of curtain
walls, aluminium windows
and other related
products
2 TREEIEENTRR Rt WERLTERE
BERAMAEER
World Eastern Cladding United Arab of Emirates 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Installation of curtain walls,
Works (LLC) AED3,000 each aluminium windows and
other related products
B4 REE & R E 100/ & % (€ &3,000 ZEBR  BERAMAH
o Bt 8 et 0 ) IR Efm
Notes: Notes:

(1) Limited liability company registered in the PRC

(2) Registered as sino-foreign joint venture enterprise

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the

opinion of its directors, principally affect the results or assets of

the Group.

———r—

(1 EFEFMNERIEEAR
2 HEMARTIEELE

FRINMEERRUEEXEXLEERE
TENMBRAR -
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) Material non-controlling interests

The negative non-controlling interest as at 31 December
2022 of HK$98,640,000 (2021: HK$85,677,000) is mainly
for Gamma Group within the North America division.

Set out below is the summarised financial information for
Gamma Group that has non-controlling interests that are

19. B A &) )
(a) EAFEEZERER

20225128318 © B 5B I A4
mFZRBRIEEDH 2Gamma
Group ' B @ # = & /8 98,640,000
70 (20214 : B %85,677,0007T) °

AT REEEERFERESTEE

material to the Group. BEE -
Summarised statement of financial position B R R E
Gamma Group
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BEF T
Current B
Assets BE 585,870 612,792
Liabilities a8E& (2,142,346) (2,016,812)
Total current net liabilities BREaE (1,556,476) (1,404,020)
Non-current FERE
Assets BE 17,006 69,246
Liabilities B8E& (9.829) (11,032)
Total non-current net assets BIERBEE 7,177 58,214
Net liabilities FEE (1,549,299) (1,345,806)




19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Material non-controlling interests

202058 GTHEXREEEEERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19. B A 7 &)

(a) ERFERES @)

(Continued)
Summarised income statement WmRBE
Gamma Group
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue ] 520,235 522,057
Loss before tax A& 18 (136,682) (113,669)
Income tax charge FIETE B (50,000) (13,000)
Other comprehensive income H b2 mE ks (16,811) 8,393
Total comprehensive loss THEBERE (203,493) (118,276)
Total comprehensive loss allocated to FERERELEMEEER
non-controlling interests (12,963) (7,534)
Summarised cash flow RERERBE
Gamma Group
2022 2021
2022% 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Operating cash flows REBER
Cash from operations KEFREZIRE 20,026 35,030
Finance costs B 75 & A 4,757 3,888
Net cash from operating activities RESEBE 2R F5 24,783 38,918
Net cash used in investing activities REEBACE ST (322) (1,914)
Net cash used in financing activities MEETHFIA RS F5E (21,827) (32,751)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBESSEMEINFE 2,634 4,253
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of  E¥RELREREEEY
year 10,006 5,753
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRASEEYD 12,640 10,006

The information above is before inter-company

eliminations.

— e

VA BB R R BB SR AE SR ET 3R BT
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 7 &
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Raw materials FE 173,255 154,153

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
‘costs of sales’ amounted to approximately HK$1,110,602,000
(2021: HK$760,279,000).

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract
assets and contract liabilities:

FEKRAERABRX W AEEKRSENRE
#1,110,602,0007T (20214 : 7 #760,279,000
JL) °

21. ENEEREHNER

AEECHERATERARBNRNEE

ReaHaE:

31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
20224 20214F 20214
12A31H 12A31H 1HA1H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
bz BET T BT T BT
Contract assets related to HEERBEEBEBHNENEE ()
construction services 3,998,389 2,449,554 1,451,792
Contract liabilities related to HEERKEENEHEE
construction services (376,150) (441,106) (309,603)
Contract liabilities related to HHABEKEENEHOEE (i)
thermoelectricity business (1,124,753) (1,237,073) (1,224,408)
(1,500,903) (1,678,179) (1,534,011)
Less: Current portion B BN ER (D 839,819 911,443 778,041
Non-current portion IERENEB 1D (661,084) (766,736) (755,970)
Notes: M =

(i) Contract assets related to the Group’s right to consideration for
construction work completed but yet to be certified by surveyors
appointed by the customers as at the reporting date. Contract
assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

(ii) Contract liabilities related to payments received in advance of
the performance under supply of heat, steam and electricity and
pipeline construction contracts.

() HEERGHEBNGOEESERRER
ARAW BT EMERNSEBBRER

WHHSEMELHNRFARESE -

a8

BESNRBRERRERITEREK

"
Ko

BN

ZF
m

(i) l

NS
=}
&/v N

m
ik

ERETRS -
R

I

BRARE N KB B -

K N G IA
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. G EEREGHNARB®
LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised TRETRNAFEHEMBERANEFIHE
in the current reporting period which relates to contract liability FAEBEERMEFBITHNENZSHEEAD
balance at the beginning of the year and the amount relating to WA £ %E :

performance obligations that were satisfied in previous years:

2022 2021
HKS$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Revenue recognised that was included in BEEFUNERABERP

the contract liability balance at FrigEsd ey A -

the beginning of the year:

— Construction services —BER 312,172 269,672

- Thermoelectricity business —BFEK 433,009 525,430

745,181 795,102
Revenue recognised from performance NATEIRT & Ao FERNER

obligations satisfied/partially satisfied in FTHERE A -

previous periods:

— Construction services —ZER 62,535 103,487
The following table shows the amount of unsatisfied TEBRABABHERSE
performance obligations:

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Expected to be recognised within one year R E —FRER 5,555,083 4,469,231
Expected to be recognised after one year TERHE —F 12 ®R 4,978,761 4,197,641
10,533,844 8,666,872
For all other contracts with an original expected duration of one WRYIATE RS ERRE A —E A THAT
year or less or are billed based on time incurred, as permitted BEMAENNIBIER BT ERELERFE15
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these SRR MBESEERETRENEE
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. AN EZERFTABLNEBRNESLNR S

BRATHE -

—— AT i il | ::!;
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. EZ R H AWK

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Trade receivables g 5 ER 1,082,862 863,555
Retention receivables EUIRE 2 757,767 623,185
1,840,629 1,486,740

Less: Provision for impairment R E (108,119) (73,550)
1,732,510 1,413,190

Other receivables H th i 3k 66,101 85,840
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b JE R 1,798,611 1,499,030

The Group’s trade receivables mainly represent progress
billing receivables from facade contracting works and general
contracting works and construction contracts of thermoelectricity
business. The Group adopts credit policies which are
consistent with the trade practices prevalent in the building
industry in countries in which the Group has operations. The
Group recognises its trade receivables when the value of the
subcontract works is certified by the architect. Pursuant to the
trade practices, the main contractor from time to time makes
applications for payment certificates which include the certified
value of the nominated subcontract works.

Retention receivables represent certified contract payments in
respect of works performed, for which payments are withheld
by customers for retention purposes, and the amount retained is
withheld on each payment up to a maximum amount calculated
as a prescribed percentage of the contract sum. No ageing
analysis of retention receivables is presented as the retentions
are released to the Group pursuant to the provisions of the
relevant contracts after the completion of the projects.

Trade receivables include balances with related companies
amounting to approximately HK$724,415,000 (2021:
HK$705,025,000), which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable in accordance with the terms of relevant agreements.

FEBNE SRR E2EINEIIRZME
AETIRRABEBNIRZAOEBUKEE
WK REBRANEERRERNEEE
BHREBRTHNRETREERANES
B —H - AEBEROBIREEEBEELE
REREREESEER - REEHIE
) ABRETRELNRERENSRE
HbBEEEDBEIRNOREEE-

BRFRESEEFEEREBEZIRNRE
BABRMZAIE - EFREBARNKEEHN
HREZ RRBREARASBENETE
BALFE -REBHEARGR  RE
MREBEBB KBRS HETAER B
AREFNEBREZHORE DT

BEORBFBERIEEHBAERAIANER
#) B HET724,415,0007C (20214 - B
705,025,0007T) - i& L fE U 302 A
R B RAR R e M R AT AR e




22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
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2. EFREMERRE

(Continued)

The analysis of trade and other receivables, including the ageing
analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date, and net of
provisions, is as follows:

ZohEMERR (BERERZEAHRI
BrEERIELHNE S EKRZOER ST 5
Wanw -

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Trade receivables: B 5 WK
0 to 30 days ZFF30H 347,438 379,758
31 to 60 days 31£60H 138,530 100,951
61 to 90 days 61290H 37,370 17,082
More than 90 days 90H KA k 489,328 307,254
1,012,666 805,045
Retention receivables EUWRE S 719,844 608,145
1,732,510 1,413,190
Other receivables o th i sk 66,101 85,840
Trade and other receivables B 5 N HE i e R 1,798,611 1,499,030

Except for the receivables arising from construction contracts
which are billed and immediately payable in accordance with
the terms of the relevant agreement, the Group generally allows
an average credit period not exceeding 90 days (2021: 90 days)
to its customers and the retention receivables are repayable
approximately one year after the expiry of the defect liability
period of construction projects.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade and retention receivables. The Group
determines the provision for expected credit losses by grouping
together trade and other receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessing them for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account prevailing economic conditions.
For trade and other receivables relating to accounts which are
long overdue with significant amounts or known insolvencies
or non-response to collection activities, they are assessed
individually for impairment allowance.

BRITRARMNEWZEBREBHEREN
ML BRI AMIN REE—RELH
FHEEFTZMKI0H (20214 : 90H) 2 °F
HEEH MERRESNIREERS
EFHEREHN —FANEE-

AEBRBEBMBHRELERNFEORMX
HMEBESEERANGFERERERE
B ERBEERERE AEBBESESR
BAUE AR BB B 5 e MR & R MR
BEl& A G — R AR A EE KA RN -
I & B2 E AR BN - LAREE BH(E
EERBE HRARSENREHHRE
BRI FOEEE L @M R A E
ZREMERFERP  AIEFFHRE
B e
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, trade and retention receivables of
approximately HK$26,764,000 (2021: HK$11,575,000) were
impaired and fully provided.

The individually impaired trade and retention receivables relate
to contracts under disputes with customers and are expected not
to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

Movements of provision for impairment of the trade and
retention receivables are as follows:

2. EFREMERRE

R2022F 128318 © & 5 E R & EWR
B & 47 #26,764,0007T (20214 : B #&
11,575,00070) E 8B © 72 &EAE -

&R 2R EE 5 U &R E S 8
R EFERAR - LEMAAKRE -
AEBEYERZEFERTAEAMERDK
EHEMEEF R 2L -

BHREFLERFRESHREREED
LI

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At 1 January ®1A1H 73,550 70,944
Addition of provisions 1% 0 38,872 7,128
Write back of provisions P {8 [0 7% (600) (6,500)
Exchange differences IEHZE% (3,703) 1,978
At 31 December W12H31H 108,119 73,550

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

AR EE 5 R AR R E A 5 T3 &
WA

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Hong Kong dollar BT 610,432 477,205
Renminbi AR 869,715 731,962
United States dollar e 52,001 98,130
Canadian dollar hnis 179,273 117,604
Macau Pataca BT 66,137 50,546
Great British Pound B 20,979 23,509
United Arab Emirates Dirham o] Bk 78 s 4 74 74

1,798,611 1,499,030
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23

(Continued)

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
and retention receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables
approximate the fair values of these balances.

AMOUNTS/LOAN DUE FROM/TO AN
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY
AND FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

Balances with fellow subsidiaries and intermediate holding
company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The balances are mainly denominated in RMB.

The receivables from fellow subsidiary in the amount of
HK$708,142,000 was due from a subsidiary of CSC in mainland
China and the payables from fellow subsidiary in the amount of
HK$724,670,000 was due to a subsidiary of CSC in Hong Kong
which are related to the acquisition of 100% interest in &5 2
HEVE B R A & (“Shenyang Huanggu Company”)(details of the
transaction were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 22
November 2019) and the amounts are included in amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries (being the onshore receivable as referred
to in the circular) and amounts due to fellow subsidiaries (being
the offshore amount due payable as referred to in the circular),
respectively.

The receivables from fellow subsidiary in the amount of
HK$149,293,000 was due from a subsidiary of CSC in mainland
China and the payables from fellow subsidiary in the amount
of HK$287,050,000 was due to a subsidiary of CSC in Hong
Kong related to the acquisition of 100% interest in Value Idea
Investments Limited and Fuller Sky Enterprises Limited (details of
the transaction were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
22 February 2019) and the amounts are included in amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries (being the onshore receivable) and
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries (being the offshore amount
due payable), respectively.

The loan from an intermediate holding company of
HK$170,000,000 as at 31 December 2021 was unsecured,
interest-bearing at HIBOR+1.7% per annum and repayable in
2022 and denominated in HKD.

22.

23.

B2 REMEBWRR

HRASEHRBEREREF, AUALERH
BHRUAEEERES ERNEREE
2B

AEBESREMERR 2EEEREZS
B ARERE -

ERRER RN ERD
AREERARAT

W NEBRARTNERRRRIAR
BRI 2R RREREE - ZHRBERA
REHR -

AR AR AR FRIEE 708,142,000
T2 FE U P B i R E R R P B kb Y — R
MEBEARMAEKBRANRRENREBEBE
724,670,0007C 2 fEN R B BB R EE B
H—EHBAR xR BEEERWE RS
SHEBRERRATNI00%ERE ([EH 25
~Ell) (XS FBEEHN BB A2019F11 A
NHEZRABBEF)ZFIBD I BIEEREK
R AR AR (BN R R R E 9 35R R FE UE0)
N e 2R B F (BB 1 P BT 48 Y 55 O g
O

KB RN QA MU IEE 149,293,000
TREWRFEEEBERE R E AN E —
MK ERRFAKE RAR R ENKES
#& 287,050,000 LB HEERK T
EAN—HWMBRAR  ZAELENUE
Value Idea Investments Limited K& & Kb 3
BRAAIAII00%E s (RS FBHNAH
A 2019 F 2 A 22 HZRARBEF) » %
REDRBEERKAEANRR K (AIEARE
Wesk) RS ZRARIFR (BIESNEULER) -

R2021F12A318 - REFR N IER QG
#:170,000,0007C 0 f& A2 KA HY - F 5
R AHIBOR+1.7% * BR2022F EFR K AH
EHE -
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are cash and bank
balances denominated in the following currencies:

2. RERBEEEY

AEBEREERBECETEVRAT RRTHE
# - BREEN T EEEHE

2022 2021

20224 20214F

HK$"000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Renminbi AR # 764,935 662,888
Hong Kong dollar BT 147,333 227,927
Great British Pound HgE 1,584 9,209
Australian dollar picels 6,467 7,408
Canadian dollar pilik:=s 2,682 2,919
Macau Pataca BT 11,764 5,949
United States dollar eV 14,389 11,570
United Arab Emirates Dirham ] B 2 36 4 45 25,669 201
Others Hib 15 33
974,838 928,104

In respect of the cash balance denominated in RMB which
is held by the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC,
conversion into foreign currencies and remittance out of the PRC

RAEERTREIMOMBELRRZ ARKE
RIAME - LR INE R E P BAE S
TESNEETER HE SERMEE

is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

BARE o




25. BANK BORROWINGS
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25. SRITE K

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T PR T
Bank loans, secured B g 375,404 11,561
Bank loans, unsecured # ﬁf%f??\ A 950,402 1,321,595
1,325,806 1,333,156

The borrowings are repayable as follows: ERAER Y FHHEE :
On demand or within one year FEERY R —FRNEE 419,794 824,563
In the second year RE_FEE 508,340 551
In the third to fifth years, inclusive REZZERFEE (BEEEME) 397,672 508,042
1,325,806 1,333,156
Less: Current portion B R BB (419,794) (824,563)
Non-current portion FEm BN E D 906,012 508,593

At 31 December 2022, bank loans of HK$10,346,000 (31
December 2021: HK$11,561,000) were secured by a mortgage
on the Group’s land and buildings of HK$14,952,000 (31
December 2021: HK$16,418,000) and banking facilities of
HK$365,058,000 (31 December 2021:

Nil) were secured by

MR2022F 128318 RITEREE
10,346,000 T (20214128318 : &
#11,561,00070) WA EEEEE®
14,952,0007C (20214128318 : B
16,418,0007T) M) -t K2 3 S 1E B IR HE -

charge over the Group's land and buildings of HK$401,585,000
(31 December 2021:

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are

Nil) and construction in progress of
HK$16,623,000 (31 December 2021: Nil) respectively. (note 14).

denominated in the following currencies:

N R 17 B BB %365,058,0000T (2021412
A31B &) UAEB LM REEYRE
BIRMNMAE D 5l A %¥401,585,0007T
(20219 12A318 : &) &5 %16,623,000
JC (20219F12A318 : BEZ o) o (Wi
14)

AEBERITEREEEATIEEFE :

Hong Kong Canadian
dollar dollar Total
B s BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BT T
31 December 2022 2022F12H31H
Bank loans IRITER 896,183 429,623 1,325,806
31 December 2021 20214 12A31H
Bank loans RITER 896,362 436,794

1,333,156

=

- T H—F
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25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

26

The average bank loan interest rate at 31 December 2022 was
3.11% (2021: 2.03%) per annum.

Most bank borrowings are arranged at floating rates, thus
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate the fair
value of these balances.

The secured bank loans include the bank loans with assets
pledged as security to the bank. The unsecured bank loans
include the bank loans with financial undertaking required to be
fulfilled by the Group.

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS

The analysis of trade payables, other payables and accruals,
including the ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice
date, is as follows:

25.

26.

RITER#=
R2022F12A31B Z FHRITERFR =X
733.11% (20214F : 2.03%) °

REORITEFRGLF B R E - Bkt
AEEmRREREN S AR

RITBERCEHERZEEHRZAAER

Ao
BERNBITERBERTENR HEE

BERARBRITNER - BERORITERE
EEEFERTORITERKL S BIAGE

ESZEMAR
FEstEH
BHEMANT - EthENRRESER (B
RIERZANNEIEMNRNERRSIT) 5
W

HtEMNRK

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Trade payables: B SEMAN
0 to 30 days T F30H 2,543,342 1,206,687
31 to 60 days 31£260H 95,621 53,254
More than 60 days 608 A 275,478 209,390
2,914,441 1,469,331
Retention payables ERRER 293,971 323,384
3,208,412 1,792,715
Other payables and accruals Hi R RESER 277,765 279,444
Trade payables, other payables and accruals & 5 B - H e 5 & fE 2 3,486,177 2,072,159

As at 31 December 2022, the amount of retention payables
expected to be settled after more than twelve months was
approximately HK$237,651,000 (2021: HK$174,869,000).

R2022F 128318 » FEH & R 1218 B &
M EMNRES A B ®237,651,0007T
(20214F : ##174,869,0007T) °
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26. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, other
payables and accruals are denominated in the following

26 EZEANR HtEARK

EsTER@®
AREE PR R R A B
A2 R LA TFI S A 5 -

currencies:
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong dollar BT 1,626,250 809,698
Renminbi AR 1,582,698 1,073,290
Canadian dollar hns 73,123 137,337
United States dollar ETT 19,178 21,659
Macau Pataca SRFY T 177,786 22,439
Great British Pound HEE 5,832 6,472
Others Hib 1,310 1,264
3,486,177 2,072,159

The carrying amounts of trade payables, other payables and
accruals approximate the fair value of these balances.

Movements of warranty provisions included in other payables
and accruals are as follows:

BIREMNR EMENRREAERAZE
HEEZFERZAAERE -

REMENRKREABERTZRERBE
BT

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

At 1 January M ATHE 35,970 31,391
Addition 1 90 21,800 18,025
Exchange differences &5 =% (296) 357
Utilisation [SRER:E (6,385) (13,803)
At 31 December ®12H31H 51,089 35,970

The Group provides warranties to its customers on facade
contracting works in accordance with terms and conditions as
stipulated in contracts, under which defective works are rectified
or replaced.

The amount of the warranty provision is estimated based
on the past experience of the level of defective works and
the estimation basis is regularly reviewed and revised where
appropriate, and is included in “other payables and accruals”.

ik

AEBAREA F P56 K A& 1 ot H = i
TRAEPRERHEMRE B AWK IIE
MoK TEEH R -

REBBELHEDIRBBALBEERET
BED2IREMET - ZAFTEEEH TN
ma RRNEERFLETRBENIELM
ENRRESAERT -
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and (assets) during the

year are as follows:

27. EERE

AREBRLEHREBEN (BE) DWWT :

Undistributed
earnings of
Accelerated  Revaluation Mainland
tax  of land and Tax Contract China
depreciation buildings losses liabilities Provision  subsidiaries Total
ReEIRE
MERE Btk KEARZ
il EEY REFE ANEE BE  AIEAE L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BB BETL BETL BETT
At 1 January 2021 W202151818 2,283 753 (70,813) (93,726) (13,323) 3,908 (170,918)
Exchange difference EXEE - - (62) (3,865) (497) - (4,424)
Charged/(credited) to consolidated REARERNR/ GEA)

income statement (note 9) GES) - - 18,541 (9,929 1,628 (680) 9,560
At 31 December 2021 and P2021F12A318 )

1 January 2022 202251718 2,283 753 (52,334) (107,520 (12,192) 3,228 (165,782)
Exchange difference EAZEE - - - 8312 939 - 9,251
Charged/(credited) ERzERGARER

to consolidated income statement N/ (GEA) (W E9)

(note 9) (1,991) (753) 52,334 (166) 130 - 49,554
At 31 December 2022 20226124318 292 - - (99,374) M123) 3,228 (106,977)
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 27. EERIE (2)

The following is analysis of net deferred tax balances for
statement of financial position purposes:

HRERPBMRRKRM T 2 BT IR A 8 F
BMOMWT :

2022 2021

20225 20214

HKS$'000 HK$'000

BEEF T BEF T

Deferred tax liabilities BT IEAE 3,520 3,520
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEAE (110,497) (169,302)
(106,977) (165,782)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The
Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,975,531,000 (2021:
HK$1,808,595,000) to be carried forward in offsetting future
taxable income. The expiry dates of these tax losses are subject
to the tax rulings of the respective jurisdictions, which is 20
years in Canada and available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits in USA.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2022, deferred tax of HK$3,228,000
(2021: HK$3,228,000) has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, the rest of the unremitted earnings will not be
distributed by the Group’s subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in these subsidiaries in Mainland China
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
amounted to HK$1,020,349,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: HK$913,205,000).

BREMSHEEN A BEE 2B IES
BRER o ME DA TJ BE DA SR 3K B AR B R A &
REBHREBEEERR AEEEB AL
B AR RERB WA 2 R ERIE
B9 1878 #1,975,531,0007C (20214F : & #&
1,808,595,0007T) ° 7% 35 T 18 E5 18 1) B 23
BREBAVEEERMOMEIAME - M
2 AEIE B BR B20F 0 N EE Al E R H
AR ARRIERBIFTSEE -

BEFBECEMSHE HEFPE AR
YHHNHEESENRINEFEEEIRE 2
& EBU10% K TEIRTE - Z B K H20084F1
A1EBAERR - WAMN2007F12A8318 2%
HIRA c IR AR AFEEINEEEENE
EEz2EAEBRWHE - A8 LAERABRED
TERME « HRAEE - HEAB X A5%3K
10% ° At - B 57 B2008F 1 A18 AR TE
HRE A ER SZ RO B R B PR B MR B
AEBEBREERIMRBAEH -

M2022%F12A310  AEEF A HEAH
B S RO BT B A R FE TE 0 R Bl s A TE 0 AR
SREERR TR E T B 63,228,000t (2021
F : E¥3,228,0000T) c RAIEERAE
ERTTE B A ok - H R p R BE B IR A&
CHASENNE QR DE - B2022F
12A31H  HBEEFEANMBHBEAFH
HHEREEZHAERELEHEAGBR
%8 /576 #1,020,349,0007T (20214 : B i
913,205,0007T) °
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

28. I A&

Issued and fully paid

ERTRAR
Number of  Share capital
shares amount
RHHE NG ]
‘000 HK$'000
TR BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRME.CIE Tz Ti@mik
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 MR2021F1F1H » 20214
and 1 January 2022 12)5J31 HNR2022F1A1H 2,155,545 21,555
Issue of ordinary shares (Note) BT LR (M) 100,000 1,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREECOE L LA
At 31 December 2022 72022124310 2,255,545 22,555

Note: On 24 June 2022, an aggregate of 100,000,000 ordinary shares
were issued at the price of HK$2.20 per share pursuant to the
placing and subscription agreement dated 20 June 2022 and net
proceeds of approximately HK$219,000,000 (after deducting
relevant expenses) were raised.

29. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(a) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium and retained profits

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium and retained profits
of the Company are distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations and an associate. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

MisE: R¥E B H A202266H8208 2 Bi &
RE W 0 R2022F6H248 - &
$£100,000,0004% I i I% LA 5 % 78 #

z 202 fEIG BT EEMBRE
#%&i(ﬁé?ﬂﬂﬁ%@?ﬂi’ifé)%’]z%/’é@%
219,000,0007T ©

29. &
(a) X&EHE

AEENEESEREDERGAR
L DELELR

(b) RENHEEREN

(I) HXTD/E{,\&1 Ela/_ml%u
BERESHESQARE  ARdA
RHEERRERFNE A
HORERTARRRE - AIIR A
%%E%%&MEE%&'K
RIBBRENERAENRBEE

%ﬂ&$ﬂﬂ%%%%°

(i) HMNEEE X Rt
INEERFRHEREMBERES
INEBONMBRREMRBE R
BlzEmmELMINEZRR -
ZiEBIREM B RAKE2.4
FRENE & St IR B IR ©
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29. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

(Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payments reserve represents the
fair value of the equity instruments granted to
directors and employees of the Group, recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves, which are non-distributable,
are appropriated from the profit after taxation of
the Group’s PRC and Macau subsidiaries under the
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC and
Macau respectively.

Special reserve

On 11 March 2014, the Group acquired 100%
of the equity interests in Treasure Construction
Engineering Limited (“Treasure Construction”)
from Barkgate Enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CSC, which is an intermediate holding
company of the Company, at a cash consideration
of HK$2,000,000. The excess of approximately
HK$1,970,000, representing the difference between
the fair value of consideration paid for the acquisition
and the net asset value of Treasure Construction at
the acquisition date, was charged to special reserve.

During 2016, the Group increased its equity interests
in its subsidiary, Gamma North America, Inc. by
38.63% through capitalisation of shareholder’s
loans. The net liability value of Gamma North
America, Inc. of HK$287,768,000 has been
transferred from non-controlling interests to special
reserve in equity.

On 26 June 2018, the Group acquired 100% of
equity interests in China Overseas Supervision Limited
("COS") from Shenzhen CS Grand Wealth Investment
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CSC, at a cash consideration of RMB70,000,000.
HK$180,564,000 represents the excess of
consideration paid over the share capital of the COS
net of distribution of the former shareholders.

29. f# & &)

(b) BEHNMERB W )

(iii)

(iv)

CABU A7 73 BT AN SR 4
ABDRERMRFEERT
AEREEREENBRATA
MR 7B - To AR R R R
RE2 ARE LA BR 17 A BT 9 3K T 4R
W ST BOR T ARERR ©

AT R

AT 53 iR B0 % 5E 4 T0 5 B1AR
i o B R P PR R 1 O
15448 7N 5 [ ) o B O PO B
AR Z B PR -

5 Rl R

M2014F3811B RNEEUHB
2,000,000t 2 & AW —H N
ERAFE-HPREEEREEF 22
& [} BB /A A)Barkgate Enterprises
Limiteddg ABIHZETIEAR
ARA(EREE]) 2 kER
moWBEHEEZ AREBER
EEHERNKBRAEEFEZE
585 #1,970,0007T B R B 4
RIREEA -

20165 » A& EFE B K
REXRBA bz ARE—F
#% HE 72 AlGamma North
America, Inc. 38.63% 2 i% 4 &
z ° Gamma North America, Inc.
8 & F1E 25 %287,768,0007T
HIFERERERERRIREE -

MR2018F6 A26 B RNEFMUAAR
#£70,000,0007C 2 3R & A — &
MR A B — o B2 S
PEWB AR —FIIFRERE
REBRARBARESERS
RAaa ([h/GEErE]) 228
HE 25 o 75 #5180,564,0007T A U
BREEHRBARZRAR
BBRUEFESWE ()
FRIBREZZE -
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29. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

(Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(v) Special reserve (Continued)

On 30 December 2019, the Group acquired 100% of
equity interests in &5 2 EHR A F) (“Shenyang
Huanggu Company”) by way of purchase of (i)
the entire issued share capital of China Overseas
Public Utility Investment Limited (“COPUI"”) which
owns 99.69% of the registered capital of Shenyang
Huanggu Company; and (ii) the 0.31% of the
registered capital of Shenyang Huanggu Company
held by RIIGLEEREHR A AI("Shenzhen
Haifengde”), for an aggregate consideration of
HK$673,580,000. The excess of approximately
HK$673,580,000, representing the difference
between the fair value of consideration paid and the
share capital value of Shenyang Huanggu Company
at the acquisition date, was charged to special

reserve.

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to the A-shares Restricted Stock Incentive Plan
(Phase Ill) (the “Incentive Plan (Phase III)”) of CSCECL,
2,430,000 incentive shares were granted to certain employees
of the Company (including one director and certain senior
management) on 26 December 2018 (the “Grant Date (Phase
I)") with an exercise price of RMB3.468 per share, subject to a
lock-up period of two years’ service from the Grant Date (Phase
) (the “Lock-Up Period (Phase IIl)"). During the Lock-Up Period
(Phase lll), these shares are not transferrable, nor subject to any
guarantee, indemnity or pledge. One-third of the awards are
vested each year starting from the beginning of the third year
on a time-apportionment basis since the Grant Date (Phase IlI).

Subject to CSCECL's achievement of performance conditions
and individual's key performance indicators, the restriction
over these shares will be removed, otherwise, CSCECL has a
constructive obligation to repurchase the ordinary shares in cash
if the performance conditions of CSCECL or the individual’s key

performance indicators are not achieved.

29. f# & &)

(b) BEHNMERB W@

(v) FFhlfFE#E)

M20194E12 A308 » A& B A
75 #673,580,0007T 1 (& U B8 /%
SEMBEERAE ([EEE
AT ) Z100%MERE S - 1tk
W Ty B () BB 5 599.69%
BEERAREMEAZFEH
HINARARMEIREBRAR ([F
B SN FRER BE D) 100% iR 4 4
H(DNEEOINEB 2 M A
AEMEARZ FINGLERE
BERAR (TFRIGLE]) - W
BEGEHRRZALBERE
HERKEARASIE 2 Z5E
7 #673,580,0007T & = R 4 7
BN o

30. AR B ER BT

RIEANEE P NIRRT P ERDE = A
B SZRR B = Bt 2 ([ st 8l (B =
) ARRETEE (AERAL]
PIE—ZEFRETERAEEAEB)R
2018512268 ([ BEA (B =H1) |) %
$%2,430,0000% BB AR 1h - TTEEATRA
R¥3.4687T  XRARERL BB (F=H)
R ABREREHRESN (F=2) (IR
EHE=H])) -RREMH(E=H) - &
ERMAEEE ITAARERIEE
B -BEHAH(EZSH EEF=ZFFL
Fis - BEAIRNEESEREE 8F
SEHP=H2—-

TR R 3 A0 5 PR 2% 3R AR £ DA % 8 A 52 K BB
REABERE - ZFRMHORBG SR
DR - PEBROAHEERY P ERN
REEEARIIFFSEAREERBRE
BER PERNANRSBRZSER
% o
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 30. AR B EB W R

The fair value of incentive shares on the Grant Date (Phase III)
determined using a comparable generally accepted methodology
was RMB2.112 per share. The significant inputs into the
methodology include closing price of RMB5.58 per share on
the Grant Date (Phase lll), exercise price of RMB3.468 per share
and share-based payments cap at 30% of respective two years’
employees’ remuneration.

Pursuant to the A-shares Restricted Stock Incentive Plan
(Phase 1V) (the “Incentive Plan (Phase IV)") of CSCECL,
5,490,000 incentive shares were granted to certain employees
of the Company (including two directors and certain senior
management) on 23 December 2021 (the “Grant Date (Phase
IV)") with an exercise price of RMB3.06 per share, subject to a
lock-up period of two years’ service from the Grant Date (Phase
IV) (the “Lock-Up Period (Phase 1V)”). During the Lock-Up Period
(Phase 1V), these shares are not transferrable, nor subject to any
guarantee, indemnity or pledge. One-third of the awards are
vested each year starting from the beginning of the third year
on a time-apportionment basis since the Grant Date (Phase IV).

Subject to CSCECL's achievement of performance conditions
and individual's key performance indicators, the restriction
over incentive shares will be removed, otherwise, CSCECL has
constructive obligations to repurchase the ordinary shares in
cash if the performance conditions of CSCECL or the individual’s
key performance indicators are not achieved.

The fair value of incentive shares on the Grant Date (Phase V)
determined using a comparable generally accepted methodology
was RMB1.94 per share. The significant inputs into the
methodology include closing price of RMB5 per share on the
Grant Date (Phase V), exercise price of RMB3.06 per share and
share-based payments cap at 30% of respective two years’
employees’ remuneration.

RIFELEHE B (E=H) BERMODH Q2 EA
EREXNALBNTEEERERAR
B2 BATDENBERBBEBEERY
B (F=H) kmEESRARMK5.58T
TEREFHRARKE3.468T  URH ABE
MONKERAZSRERESBMFHIMD
30% °

BIE AN S B op N E AR A B AR 2 AR {7 55 1Y #A
% 52 PR I 1 B% S B ET &) (B &t 8l (5
) ARRBEFTEE (AERAL]
PR ZEERATRAEEAR)R2021
F12A238 ((BE B (EME) ) - #EH
5,490,000/% EHE I 10 - ITHEEBAEBRAR
¥3.06T XA BRLE A (FHE) 8
TAMMFERBAOREH (BN ((RE
H(EEEH)]) - RREH(FHE) ZE
BHTAEEE A AR ERSEEE
HeoaRE B (ENE) BE =ZFFVH
B O BEUEERESEREREE BFEH
BEP=D2—-

1R R 3 AR 53 AR R IR AR 4 DA R (B A S22 P R
RRMIERR  ZFERMHORBG SRR
BA-hEBRhBEEERS  WHERNH
R BE s AR IR AT S A A RBEE R B &
BER PERNVEANREBEZE L

R e

REL B (FMOE) BREROHH R LB
ERESHNALBNTEEERERAR
194 BATENEZRBEE|ER T
BH(EMH) KT EERAREST 17
B ARE3.067T - UG & E# R
RERRZEREZBMFFHIMAI30% °
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$$29,151,000
(2021: HK$40,889,000) and HK$29,151,000 (2021:
HK$40,889,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings included in property, plant and

equipment.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 75 R MY o

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 124310 IEFE

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities from
financing activities

China State Construction Development Holdings Limited 2022 ANNUAL REPORT

31. %68 &

e R

() EXRFRERS
FA AEERBERAYE KBE
LEBEFEANEFHERY RS
ENFEREEERHERBES A
78 #$29,151,0007C (20214 : B
40,889,0007T) & 7% 29,151,000 T
(20214 : #%40,889,0007T) °

(b) REBMEXBNEBEH K

Loan from an

Amounts due
from an

intermediate intermediate

Lease Bank holding holding
liabilities  borrowings company company Total
R ER EfHRN
HEEE RITER  LAFNER ERATIX &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BETT BT T
At 1 January 2021 H2021F181H 27,797 1,062,166 230,000 2,787 1,322,750
Cash flows BEm (21,584) 268,414 (60,000) - 186,830
Foreign exchange adjustments sk 321 2,576 - - 2,897
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 8) & & &F & (Mi:8) 1,920 - - - 1,920
Increase in lease liabilities from  #HAR3|ELWAE
entering into new contracts BEELM(PHEE16(a)
(Note 16(a)) 40,889 - - - 40,889
Interest on loan from an REFNERAT
intermediate holding company BRHE - - - 4,205 4,205
As 31 December 2021 and PR2021F128318 K
1 January 2022 202241 A1H 49,343 1,333,156 170,000 6,992 1,559,491
Cash flows BeR (31,093) 19,785 (170,000) (8,255) (189,563)
Foreign exchange adjustments &5 A% (2,905) (27,135) - - (30,040)
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 8) & & &F & (Mi:E8) 2,639 - - - 2,639
Increase in lease liabilities from ¥ ARSI LHEE
entering into new contracts aEEm(HE166)
(Note 16(a)) 29,151 - - - 29,151
Interest on loan from an REFNER AT
intermediate holding company EBRHE - - - 1,263 1,263
At 31 December 2022 M2022F12/31H 47,135 1,325,806 - - 1,372,941
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32. COMMITMENTS 32. A&
At 31 December 2022, the Group had the following R2022F12A31H " A&EBEEULNTEEREL
commitments contracted but not provided for in the BERRGE B ERER AR 2 APE :

consolidated financial statements:

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEET T
Contracted but not provided for BEENERAR
— Construction in progress for property, —HEEIREDE BENMERE
plant and equipment 198,188 23,569
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3.FAEALRS
In addition to those related party transactions and balances BN GEEBEHREMIE LR EEA
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had TG RERI REBRNRERNEHEREE
the following transactions with its related parties during the ATHTTTHIRS :
year:
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EERAEANL 2R 5
(i)  Transactions with fellow subsidiaries () BHEBXANQARETHR
2
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Construction fees received from fellow MEBRARAIKRTEE
subsidiaries 2,468,723 2,295,506
Service income received from fellow MEBERARQ BRI Z REKA
subsidiaries 119,064 142,166
Insurance premium paid to fellow subsidiaries [A152 @ Z A A & % 2 RBREE 1,239 19,505
Purchases of materials from fellow subsidiaries [7] 5 B & N A 7] 2 2 M E 50 12,940 11,729
Leasing of machinery from fellow subsidiaries 1% B & A2 7] 32 (4 2 #4510 & 3% 514 5,701
These related party transaction also constitutes HERE AT ZIEKE S
continuing connected transactions as defined in AT SMERARBSE T
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of #AEI([ETHBA B14AE BT
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong BTENEEHERS
Limited.

—— AT i il | ::!;
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties
(Continued)

(i) Transactions with other state-controlled
entities in the Mainland China

Certain of the Group's businesses are operated in
an economic environment currently predominated
by entities directly or indirectly owned, controlled
or significantly influenced by the government of the
Mainland China. In addition, the Group is itself part
of a larger group of companies under CSCEC.

Apart from transactions with its fellow
subsidiaries, the Group has transactions with other
state-controlled entities, mainly interest income.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary
course of the Group’s businesses on terms
comparable to those with other entities that are not
state-controlled.

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

3B.EABALIRE @)
() BEFEAL 2K H &)

(ii)

B rp B H B SR 4% I B RS
EITNRS

AEBETEBTINBATHRF
BRRERKERER  Z
REATEZERBRMITENE
BEREPEE - o NEE
BEATREEEKERARZ — -

BREEEBAEAANAAEITHR
S50 - AL B U5 B H b B K 4%
BIBEBETRS TZ2RFE
I A e

ZERGIRAEBEZAEE
%8 %EPLTT H 5K H A
FEFEHERMAERU -

(b) TEEEAERHE

FRAEEMHEMBEERTHRABFH

management during the year was as follows: T
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BE T T
Short term employee benefits EHEERA 34,051 36,752
Post-employment benefits LILEAERA 579 721
34,630 37,473
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined EENTIETHRAEZHEM I BATMES

by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

SRENRBETSBEEE -
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

34. 2R 1 B B B B AR R R I A

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE HEE
COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the PR A B R B A AR R R
Company
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current asset RBEE
Interests in subsidiaries Aol NGTREOR = E 1,526,152 1,434,732
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% ~ 8- 5k K H  fig Y 7% 55 53
Amounts due from subsidiaries A= NGIE ¢ 50,000 50,000
Cash and cash equivalents BENBEEED 986 942
51,041 50,995
Current liabilities RE&E
Loan from an intermediate holding company K & f N 12 7 E R - 170,000
Amount due to an intermediate holding FERT R AR A B R
company - 6,992
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ENEBRAR 229,898 229,580
Other payables and accruals H b JE A 3R K R Jr;%}fﬁ 757 600
Current tax payables JE R TR 480 607
231,135 407,779
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBAE (180,094) (356,784)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRBDAR 1,346,058 1,077,948
Capital and Reserves B &G
Share capital fi% 7 22,555 21,555
Share premium and reserves (note (a)) R 1 i (8 2 % #8 (Fft 3E(a)) 1,323,503 1,056,393
1,346,058 1,077,948
On behalf of the Board AEERw
Zhang Haipeng Wu Mingqing
RGNS REAF
Director Director
5F EBFE

i}
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Statement of financial position of the

Company (Continued)

34. 2R 1 B B B B AR R R I A

15 48 B ()

ZERQF M BRR R &

Note: ffaT -
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) PR A TIREEE
Share-based
Share payments Special Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
B 5RE AR R B R B A B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT T BT
At 1 January 2021 MW2021F— A —H 898,654 4,636 2,468 185,091 1,090,849
Profit for the year FREF - - - 88,230 88,230
Capital contribution relating to R A B EES

share-based payment borne by an BHZHEED

intermediate holding company HE - - 6,646 - 6,646
2020 final dividend 2020F REARR B - - - (64,666) (64,666)
2021 interim dividend 2021 R ERRL B - - - (64,666) (64,666)
At 31 December 2021 and M2021F12A318 &

1 January 2022 2026 — A —H 898,654 4,636 9,114 143,989 1,056,393
Profit for the year FREF - - - 174,311 174,311
Issue of shares BTG 218,028 - - - 218,028
Capital contribution relating to R E R A B AIER

share-based payment borne by an BHZHEED

intermediate holding company HE - - 3,892 - 3,892
2021 final dividend 2021 REARL B - - - (36,644) (36,644)
2022 interim dividend 2022F P HARY B - - - (92,477) (92,477)
At 31 December 2022 MW2022F12A31H 1,116,682 4,636 13,006 189,179 1,323,503

35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 35. B/ &

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 20 March 2023.

B BmARCN2023F3A20H EZE S @ E

W EEM -




The table set out below summarizes the results and the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the Group's published consolidated
financial statements of the respective years and restated/reclassified
as appropriate. This summary is not part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

20226 5% HERERXEEMERDA

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFHBERE

EE o

mEXE

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12A318LEE

TERHFIAEERNBERAEPBRFEZRERE
E BEMIEEEESHME DREAEEAR
FEZERAMEAUBERE  LEBIN EFH

= A

B(ER) o A2 IFRBZER

MBH/RZ

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
2018%F 20194 20204 20214 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
(restated)
(2731))
Revenue X 4,243,167 4,619,412 4,535,657 6,294,827 7,668,983
Gross profit EF 486,073 544,064 488,460 676,854 825,305
Profit before tax B A 252,208 276,913 256,292 395,973 508,214
Income tax expense, net  FTERER - F5 73,519 109,173 73,432 112,066 98,254
Profit for the year ARG F 178,689 167,740 182,860 283,907 409,960
Profit/(loss) for the year R FE(GH A
attributable to: (E18):
Owners of the /NS S
Company 182,780 175,560 194,344 291,976 421,852
Non-controlling FEIE AR R
interests (4,091) (7,820) (11,484) (8,069) (11,892)
Basic earnings per share & & E A& 7
(HK cents) (B 8.48 8.14 9.02 13.55 19.11
Diluted earnings per FREEAT
share (HK cents) (AL 8.48 8.14 9.02 13.55 19.11
CONSOLIDATED NET ASSETS SEEEEHE
For the year ended 31 December
HE12A31HIEFE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20204 20214 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BETT
(restated)
(E31)
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,315,494 2,461,154 2,545,414 2,621,072 2,285,744
Current assets REBEE 4,423,704 4,592,840 4,843,484 6,188,557 8,014,118
Current liabilities mEAE 4,069,372 4,748,706 4,646,686 5,921,165 6,711,790
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 1,701,270 1,246,775 1,417,336 1,303,406 1,594,387
Net assets FEE 968,556 1,058,513 1,324,876 1,585,058

1,993,685
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
RENFER

Approximate

gross floor Group’s
area interest
Address Use Lease term (sq.m) %
wiEm rEE
EBEAH EifER
B Az B4 H PR (FE753K) %
Unit 606, 607, 1906 and 1907 of Commercial Medium-term lease 598 100
Golden Magnolia Plaza,
No. 1 Da Pu Road,
Luwan District,
Shanghai City,
Mainland China
e S i EREE R 598 100
LA™
B2
FIH 158
EEHEES

606,607,1906 21907 =
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